S T R R I T -

W

10.

11.

12.

Meeting Date: May 12, 2025

VILLAGE OF LANCASTER
BOARD MEETING

AGENDA

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

MINUTES OF MEETINGS DATED: April 28 (regular meeting)
ABSTRACT OF AUDITED VOUCHERS
LISTED CORRESPONDENCE
RESOLUTIONS

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
COMMITTEE REPORTS - FOLLOW UP
DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS
HEARINGS

MISCELLANEOUS

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDULED REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, MAY 26, 2025 (Memorial Day)

MONDAY, JUNE 9, 2025



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY

April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Village of Lancaster Board of Trustees was held in the Municipal Building
Council Chambers, 5423 Broadway, Lancaster NY, on Monday, April 28, 2025, at 7:00 P.M.

Trustee Malone Schaefer led the pledge to the flag.

MEETINGS TO DATE 3
NO. OF REGULARS 2
NO. OF SPECIALS 1
Attendance:

William C. Schroeder
Tammie E. Malone Schaefer
John Mikoley

Deirdre A. Miller

Gavin J. O’Brien

Also Present:
Arthur A. Herdzik
Michael E. Stegmeier

Attended / Absent
Mayor 3/0
Trustee/ Deputy Mayor 3/0
Trustee 3/0
Trustee 3/0
Trustee 3/0

Village Attorney
Clerk-Treasurer

Wayne Cisco Superintendent of Public Works

Thomas Kukoleca Fire Chief — Assistant 9-2

Michael Meyer Historic Preservation Commission Chairperson

Matthew Fischione Town of Lancaster Supervising Code Enforcement Officer
Captain Jeff Smith Town of Lancaster Police Department

| ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES |

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee O’Brien to accept the minutes of the April 7, 2025
organizational meeting and the April 14, 2025 regular meeting.

Adopted Resolution: 65

Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,

Miller, and O’Brien

[ ABSTRACT OF AUDITED VOUCHERS

Motion by Trustee Miller and seconded by Trustee O’Brien that the Treasurer be authorized to pay,
from the vouchers, all the claims against the GENERAL, SEWER, TRUST, CAPITAL, EQUIPMENT
RESERVE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT and SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUNDS for the

period from 4/15/2025 to 4/28/2025.

Further, that the report of the Finance Committee be accepted from the abstract of the audited vouchers, a

total of 94 claims were approved, and that all claims were paid against the:

GENERAL FUND in the amount of $ 620,531.77
SEWER FUND in the amount of $ 13,750.63
TRUST FUND in the amount of § 950.00
CAPITAL FUND in the amount of $ -
EQUIPMENT RESERVE ---c-ccecmmeceeaeee| in the amount of §
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT --—--——in the amountof $ -
SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUND ----in the amountof §

For the period from 3/25/2025 To 4/14/2025



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER., NY April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 2 of 8

Claims that were processed and paid are identified by the following check numbers:

General Fund checks # 92818 through # 92889
Sewer Fund checks # 12247 through # 12252
Trust Fund check # 2604

Adopted Resolution: 66 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

| CORRESPONDENCE: |

1) Correspondence from the Town of Lancaster Building Department providing a report of building
permit applications, inspections, and open complaints that were filed for properties within the Village
of Lancaster from April 3, 2025 — April 16, 2025.

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Miller to receive and file this correspondence.

Adopted Resolution: 67 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

2) Correspondence from Kristen M. Abato, 109 Avian Way, Lancaster, NY, requesting the Village
Board to proclaim May 14™ as Apraxia Awareness Day.

Motion by Trustee O’Brien and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to approve the proclamation as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 68 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

3) Correspondence from NYS Department of Transportation Office of Diversity, Inclusion and
Opportunity providing notice that the Village of Lancaster is currently found In-Compliance with all

applicable Federal and State regulations mandated for a Civil Rights Program.

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee O’Brien to receive and file this correspondence.

Adopted Resolution: 69 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

4) Correspondence from Picasso’s Pizza & Subs, 5413 Broadway, providing notice of its renewal
application for an on-premises alcoholic beverage license with a renewal date of May 31, 2025.

Motion by Trustee O’Brien and seconded by Trustee Miller to receive and file this correspondence.

Adopted Resolution: 70 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

5) Correspondence from Eric Feldmann, Fire Chief, requesting to purchase 4 new SCBA cylinders from
Dival Safety under NYS Contract PC69018 at a total cost of $6,396.00 with funds available in budget

line A3411-26026.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 3 of 8

Motion by Trustee Miller and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to approve the purchase of four (4) new
SCBA cylinders as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 71 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

6) Correspondence from Eric Feldmann, Fire Chief, requesting to purchase 10 new fire Pagers from
Motorola Solutions (Saia Communications) under NYS OGS Contract #PT68722 at a total cost of
$4,588.00 with funds available in budget line A3411.2604.

Motion by Trustee Miller and seconded by Trustee O’Brien to approve the purchase of ten (10) new
fire pagers as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 72 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

7) Correspondence from Mike Reinhold, Planning Commission Chairperson, indicating that the
Temporary Special Use Permit for outdoor dining was recommended for approval for James Spano,
Papi Grande Mexican Restaurant and Cantina at 20 West Main St., Suite 100, following review by the

Commission at its April 17% meeting.

Motion by Trustee Mikolev and seconded by Trustee O’Brien to approve the Temporary Special Use
Permit for outdoor dining for Papi Grande’s Restaurant as recommended for approval following review

by the Planning Commission.

Adopted Resolution: 73 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

8) Correspondence from Nicholas Hirsch and Samantha Tisdale, owners of 66 and 64 Pleasant Avenue,
requesting to purchase land at the east end of Palmer Avenue which is adjacent to their property.

Motion by Trustee O’Brien and seconded by Trustee Miller to receive and file this correspondence and
place the matter into the Economic Development Committee for further review and consideration.

Adopted Resolution: 74 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

| RESOLUTIONS: |

Motion by Trustee Miller and seconded by Trustee O’Brien to approve budget transfers for the
Lancaster Fire Department as follows:

$35.00 from A3411.401 (Office Supplies) to A3411.432 (Dues & Subscriptions)
$48.15 from A3411.2 (Equipment) to A3411.26043 (CO Meters)

$57.44 from A3411.2 (Equipment) to A3411.2602 (Helmets & Supplies)

- $53.50 from A3411.401 (Office Supplies) to A3411.479 (Yearly Svc & Certification)

Adopted Resolution: 75 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 4 of 8

Motion by Trustee O’Brien and seconded by Trustee Miller authorizing Mayor Schroeder to sign and
approve a Member Participation Agreement with NYS Municipal Workers’ Compensation Alliance for
workers compensation insurance coverage for the period from 6/1/2025 to 5/31/2026.

Adopted Resolution: 76 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Miller authorizing Mayor Schroeder to accept and
approve Proposal #24-731 from Watts Architects & Engineers for professional engineering services in the
amount of $39,600.00 for Mini Systems 4 & 7 Storm Sewer Investigations with funds available in the

Sewer Fund.

Adopted Resolution: 77 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

[ AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: |

-none-

[ HEARING @ 7:15 PM UNSAFE CONDITIONS — 81 4t AVENUE |

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Miller to open the hearing at 7:15 p.m.

Adopted Resolution: 78 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

NOTE - This hearing is a continuance of a hearing for this matter that was held on March 10, 2025.

Natalie Grigg from Tromberg, Morris & Partners, PPLC representing M&T Bank and Tom Frederick,
Associate General Counsel for M&T Bank, attended the hearing. M&T Bank holds a mortgage on the

property.

Attorney Herdzik asked the M&T representatives to speak about the bank’s intentions to address the
concerns expressed by some of the neighbors.

Ms. Grigg stated that once the property becomes 120 days delinquent, M&T Bank will be able to start the
foreclosure proceedings. They have performed inspections in February, March and April. The property will
also be registered with the Statewide registry.

Mr. Frederick stated that they will keep the building inspector and Village informed throughout the process. -

Within the next two weeks, the property will be registered with the NYS registry. After that, the bank will
be able to secure the property and remediate immediate concerns including cleaning the trash off the back
patio. The remaining trash and contents would be addressed within 1 to 2 months. They will work with the
Village to determine a timeline. They do not believe that it’s a zombie property.

M. Frederick noted that this is a small balance loan that could be charged off, but the bank prefers to work
with the Village to address the concerns rather than walking away.

Matt Fischione commented that M&T Bank is following the process, and he appreciates their willingness
to take on the responsibility to address concerns at the property. The goal is to turn the property into a
livable and usable residence. There is an inspection every two (2) weeks by his office. He further explained



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 5 of 8

the Department of Financial Services (DFS) process and the foreclosure timeline. The property is not a
public safety issue, but it is an eyesore to the neighborhood.

Motion by Trustee O’Brien and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to close the hearing at 7:24 p.m.

Adopted Resolution: 79 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

[ COMMITTEE REPORTS & FOLLOW UPS: [

» FINANCE & CLAIMS — Trustees Miller & O’Brien

No report.
» PUBLIC WORKS - Trustee Mikoley

He discussed the need to install new sidewalks on the east side of Lake Avenue along the west side of
Veterans Park. He has been discussing it with Superintendent Cisco, and he will provide details for the

next meeting for approval.
» PUBLIC SAFETY — Mayor Schroeder

He spoke with County Legislator Todaro regarding the proposed ADA crosswalk on Clark Street from the
parking lot across to Town Hall. There may be funding available through the Legislator’s office that can be
allocated for this project.

There was a request for a crosswalk on Central Avenue at West Drullard Avenue. He wants to review this
request for consideration as part of the TAP grant project.

> BUILDING, LIGHTS & CODES — Trustee Mikoley

We posted on social media about short-term rentals for public feedback before considering a proposal.
There have been three responses to date. He will also meet with Matt Fischione to make sure that proposed

regulations can be enforced.

» HUMAN RESOURCES - Trustee Malone Schaefer
No report.

» COMMUNITY EVENTS - Trustee Malone Schaefer
No report.

» ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT — Mayor Schroeder
No report.

» SEWER - Trustee Mikoley

The Watts proposal for storm sewer investigations in MS 4 & 7 was approved earlier in the meeting. He
reviewed the locations of these mini systems that will be investigated.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 6 of 8
» GRANTS — Trustee O’Brien

Cayuga Creek Park

The construction fence has been removed around the newly constructed building and Tom Sweeney
(owner) has begun cleaning up around that area. He is working with the gas company to have the torn-up
spots in the grassy event area remediated.

He has a meeting with Attorney Herdzik and Clerk-Treasurer Stegmeier on Tuesday to discuss the next
steps to finish the final closeout of the project.

USDA Forest Service Tree Plantine (Federal) Grant

The trees were received and planted. Over 50 volunteers showed up in the rain and cold on Saturday
morning to plant 21 trees.

NY Forward — LMB Pocket Park

We received the contract from NY State. He is working with Clerk-Treasurer Stegmeier on the next steps
which include a couple of resolutions that will be ready for the next meeting.

NY Forward- Small Project Fund

The application period closes on Friday, May 2nd. The Selection Committee will have an opportunity to
review the applications and will meet later in the month.

SAM Grant — Wayfinding & Fire Equipment

We will be able to add the Fire Department gear racks to this grant application.

» TECHNOLOGY & MARKETING — Trustee Miller

She met with Ashley in the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office regarding the website, Facebook page, and contact
forms page. Currently, committees, email addresses and phone numbers are not listed for board members.
She will ask that the committees be listed in the contact form to help guide people to the correct point of
contact for their issues.

She will contact the vendor to look into YouTube for live streaming.
» CLIMATE SMART - Trustee O’Brien

North End Fire Hall — Here is a summary of the top recommended Energy Efficiency Measures that fit
within the grant budget and we must have quotes by 10/31:

= Interior Lighting- Upgrade lighting to LED

= Improve Temperature Control- New thermostats

= Building Airflow Reduction-Weather stripping and sealing
= Install Duct Insulation

« Install Double Glazing

DPW Superintendent and Fire Chief are in agreement with these listed priorities.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY April 28. 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 7 of 8

There is a battery storage webinar on Wednesday, May 7th that Amy Stypa will attend to represent the
Climate Smart Committee.

Starting this month, the management platform for EV charging stations will change from EV Connect to
SynergEV. There are no expected changes for the Village or for the users of the stations.

There is a tree dedication event on West Main Street on Saturday, May 3rd at 10:00 a.m.
The Community Tree Planting event took place last weekend.

Mayor Schroeder commented on his attendance at the Arbor Day Ceremony and the tribute to honor
veterans as part of the event.

| DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS & FOLLOW UPS: . _]

» SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS — Wayne Cisco

All of the trees are planted for the spring.
Private side inspections are completed.

» CLERK - TREASURER — Michael E. Stegmeier

Annual mandatory NYS Sexual Harassment Prevention training classes are scheduled for Wednesday,
May 7th at 10:00 a.m. and Thursday, May 8th at 6:00 p.m. at the Municipal Building.

His office is working to close out the sewer bill accounts for 2024-2025 to levy unpaid balances on the
upcoming village tax bills.

» FIRE CHIEF — Thomas Kukoleca (Assistant 9-2)
No report.

> TOWN BUILDING DEPARTMENT — Matt Fischione

May is Building Safety month.

Trustee Mikoley asked about a property on Quincy Avenue where there was a fire a few years ago. It was
noted that a restoration permit is in place for the property, and there is no specific timeline for completion

of the work.
» TOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT - Captain Smith

He commented that there will need to be sufficient barricades for the Cinco de Mayo event for public safety
with the expected large crowds.

» VILLAGE ATTORNEY - Arthur A. Herdzik

He commented on the hearing for 81 Fourth Avenue earlier in the meeting. There was no specific action
taken by the Village Board following the hearing and he recommends that it should be noted as part of the
resolution and formal record of the meeting,.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY April 28, 2025

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 8 of 8

Motion by Mavor Schroeder and seconded by Trustee O’Brien to document that no action was taken
regarding the property at 81 Fourth Avenue following the conclusion of the hearing to consider
potentially unsafe conditions at the property.

Adopted Resolution: 80 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

» HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION — Michael Meyer

No report.

[ MISCELLANEOUS: _ B |

Representatives from Flock Safety attended the work session at 6:00 p.m. prior to the regular meeting to
give a presentation and review a proposal for video camera services for the purpose of public safety.
There was no action taken or further discussion of the proposal during the meeting.

-

| ADJOURNMENT: r

Motion by Mayor Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Malone Schaefer to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 p.m.
in memory of Dennis Przykuta and Nancy Lyon.

Adopted Resolution: 81 Ayes: Mayor Schroeder, Trustees Malone Schaefer, Mikoley,
Miller, and O’Brien

Respectfully submitted,

Michael E. Stegmeier
Clerk — Treasurer



ABSTRACT May 12, 2025

Motion by _ , seconded by , that the
Treasurer be authorized to pay, from the vouchers, all the claims against the GENERAL,
SEWER, TRUST, CAPITAL, EQUIPMENT RESERVE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT,
and SPECTAL REPAIR RESERVE FUNDS for the period from

April 29, 2025 to May 14, 2025

Further, that the report of the Finance Committee be accepted from the abstract of the audited
vouchers, and that all claims were paid against the:

GENERAL FUND in the amountof § 151,969.42
SEWER FUND in the amount of § 13,794.51
TRUST FUND in the amount of § 177.50
CAPITAL FUND in the amount of §
EQUIPMENT RESERVE in the amount of $
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ------—-- in the amount of §

SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUND --—in the amount of  $

TOTAL 165,941.43

For the period from April 15, 2025 April 28, 2025
to

MAYOR’S CERTIFICATION:

I certify that the vouchers above were audited by the Village Treasurer and the Finance and Claims
Committee in the amounts above. You are hereby authorized and directed to pay each of the claimants

the amount opposite name.

Total Claims.............. 69
General Fund Ck#......... " 92890-92941
Sewer Fund Ck#............ 12247-12258
Trust Fund Ck#....ceeevrvee 2605 N

Capital Fund Ck#...........
Community Development
Fund Ck#

1\_/Iayor William Schroeder



€FIP6'SOT  § |[SANNA TTV TVIOL

- $ 0SLLI $ ISP6LCT $ 6961ST $ STVILOL
T 168 $ IT°LIFS $  STOT/ST/Y IPydnoA YOI
LE8TLL $ TLL88°69 $ STOT/ST/Y IoyonoA [[o1keq

v0°'L66°9 $ YOIBIA - DSV.L

198png $TOT-¥T0T
0S'LLT § TovLy'S § S5°L99°69 $ ¥OUD Aq pred SIOUSNOA

(A pung ende)y (I pungisnil (D) pung PoMaS (V) pung [eiouen

$TOT ‘p1 Ay :91e(q SuneaA pieog

Spun jo ATewruing joensSqy



Geoz/LLiv S2ILLIVD S2/LLIVO d 3N Od SIAVIAYIS 40Ud-ONINNY1d 3 000-vE¥-0C08-V  00°'06$ HIGWTW - NOISSINNOD DONINNYId L
HAANVYXITY ‘'¥MZSNG  S000ZSNg SZ/LLAv0 0.€10-52
G202/LL 1y GZ/LLIY0 SZ/LLIVO d JW Od SIVINYTS JOUL-ONINNY1d 3 000-FE€¥-0208-V  00°06$ HIFNTIA - NOISSININOD DONINNVYId L
HONNOO ‘O1S0dSVY  S00SOdSY Gz/2L/v0 69¢10-62
eL'8LL'LS
G206681£0L Se/veiv0 GTIve/vo d YIA? SHIVAIY-SHIMIES AUVLINVYS 3 000-€Sv-0C18-O €S°vPr$ NOOLSTH dOHS +
G206681£0L SZ/ve/vo STiveivo d '8 dIvd3Y MONYL-S334 1L 3AVHS 3 000-2S5¥-0958-V  €9'vhv$ MO0LSIHJOHS €
G20668L€0L S2/¥Ziv0 STiveiv0 d ONYL LINIVW/AHIVAIY-ONINYITO 1S 3 000-2S¥-0118-V €S V¥¥$ MOOLSIH dOHS ¢
S206681€0L S2IveivQ Seive/vo d ILLNIVA/SHIVAIY-LNIVIN S13341S 3 000-2S¥-0LLS-V  $SvPr$ MO0LS3IHd dOHS |
HO331 IVIYLSNANI G3NddY oLolTddv S2/ive/v0 89¢€10-6¢
00°6t$
08.898000 Ge/veiy0 SZvEIvo bS] ONINIVHL-NOLLYYLSININGY 3 000-LL¥S51i8-D  GC'LL$ dIHSHIgGWINVMdY ¢
08.898000 S2IvTIv0 SeIvz/vo A NIdX3I-NOILVHISININGY S13THLS 3 000-L4¥-0105-V GL'€€$ dIHSHIgGWIN YMdY |
"00SSY SHHOM JINgNd NYOIHINY  SO0INMINY S2/ve/v0 29€10-52
G2Oe/LLy G2/LLIV0 ST/LLIPO o I Od SIDIAYTS JOHd-ONINNY1d 3 000-v€¥-0208-V  00'06% HIGNIN - NOISSINNOD ONINNVId |
NERRLASE SOOIV Se/LLIVO 99¢€10-9¢
ScoT/LLY SCILLIYO SelLLiv0 d 3N Od STDINYAS HOHd-ONINNY Id 3 000-v€¥-0208-vV  00°06$ HIGWIN - ONINNVTd L
HVZOWVAVY AHOD  SO0OWVYQAY S2/21L/70 S9eL0-52
8010AUY ereq sleqg YnAelS uoydussa adAy unoooy ebieys Junowy uopdusse(y wey
PIOASIYD PA3Y QUZ ISl 103y
8dil Od 0BAUCD 0pUBA o8] Od #0Od
1Y :S10pUBA A IPA2Y
19UI] JBBA JOLId Suedy , N nudy
N :AjuQ 4ea g soug A dwoxg N :pley
A :pejalipng-uoN apnyauy A 910 N :pred G2/LE/50 01 i1 rebuey szeq aaueiquInouz
SOJON Wyl 8ur oYM [ie1sq Jeiioy A oe)s N ‘PIoA 1587 0} 1541 :9buey p] yoyeg pAdy
ity :8dAL "0d Apig N :uadg jseq o} jsii :abuey
ISIN sadA] aseyaing snejs waj| sabuey

Wd 8¥:10

G202/82/v0

JaquINN “O'd Ag Bunsi Jeplio eseyoing
AOVTTIA ¥3LSVINVY

| :abed



¥ITIOULNOD ALNNOD AT SLODIRIA SZIWT/P0 081052
SPLSIZLANIA STISZIY0 SZ/STIYO TVNLOVHINOD - TVINIANOYIANT 3 000-G£7-0608-V  29°'94$ $738V1 3 SYOSSIOS |
A1ddnS 301440 NOLYI  SOONOLY3 SZ/5Z/%0 62£10°62
86889€ S2IZZIV0 SZITTIY0 SY3LANUOLOFLIA 091dIA WS 3 0EY-09Z-LLvE-Y  09'ELL$ L3N SVOP HIVATY 8 ISNITVNNNY L
'ONI dIND3 ALIJIVS TYAIQ  SO0TVAID SZ/Ze/to 8LEL0-SZ
L£1596685 S2IVEIP0 SZIVEIP0 LNIVA OAS - 43UNSYIHL IONYNIA 3 00Z-GEV-SZEL-Y  00'0LLS STOZAVW L
OAS TYIONVNIJ NIANYTIOVT3a  S009V13A SZ/verv0 11£10°5C
$202/T/E STIVEIYD STIVTIYO LYW 2 S3NddNS - NOLLYOIHILNY3g 3 000-L01-0158"V  ¥8'56$ OIHILNYIE-SIAOTO-LNIWISHNNIEY |
ANC'SILIND - SQ0ILYND  S2/PE/P0 9/€10-5C
serlozs
¥82008L SZIVEIV0 STIVTIv0 /NLOVHINOD - SFDINYAS FWVHS 3 000-G€+-0Z91-V  66°ELS SINNOOOVOLO B Mdd €
¥82008.1 SZIVEIY0 STIveIvo NS 301440 - YIYNSYIUL IONYNIA 3 000-L0¥-GZEL-V  24°0%$ SINNODOVOLO 3 Mdd 2
¥82008.1 SZIYEIv0 SZIveTIv0 1LOVHINOO-SHHOM Ol18Nd Ld3a 3 000-GE7-0¥9L-Y  68°9¥L$ SINNOJOVOLO B Mdd L
OTIMOO0Y WLSAYO  SOOLSAMO S2/HZ/v0 $1€10°52
yo'sges
S8YYQ/P8YYa STVZIVO S2VTIY0 I A8 INIVIN 8 SHIVIT-1dIA 3HId 3 000-9St-1i¥E-V  00°0LLS S3MddNS WOOY ¥VID ad1 ¢
$8Y¥Q/v8YYa STIVZIVO SZIVTIPO 93 ONIQTING - SFDINYIS GFdVHS 3 000-05+-0291-V  $9'8/2$ $3ddNS WOOY ¥vVIO Q41 |
$3IX0d3 AIMOT0D  S00HOT0D SE/ve/v0 ¥.€10-52
¥1Sta SZEIY0 STIVTIvO D B ONIQTING - SIOIAYIS AFUVHS 3 000-07-0Z91-V  86'669% WOOMATBNISSY BINTHO4 AXOdT |
$3IX0d3 GFWOTI0D  SO0MOT0D STUVT/H0 £L610-6Z
S2L0V0L00VLLLYL SZISTIV0 ST/STIPO TLOVHINOO-SHHOM OI18Nd Ld3a 3 000-GEV-0¥9L-Y  $ZZTH$ MdQ AL OISYE B SHIAIFOIY |
SNOILLYOINNAINOD ¥3LHVHO  SOOLYVHO SZ/SZ/ho 2I810-52
¥8£25Z STIVEIVO STVTIPO TLOVHINOO-SHHOM O18Nd Ld3a 3 000-GE7-0¥9L-Y  1Z'6$ S3OUVHO INIYd 03407000 |
ONI ‘SLNVLINSNOD IX8  SO00DIXE Se/ve/v0 LLEL0°ST
82/0AU} o187 ejeq uopduasecg adAl Junoody ebieyy  junowly uonduoseq wey
PIOAPID  pAoY oug sii w0y

Wd 8t'Lo

S20¢/8¢/v0

8dAL Od JorjUOD

Jopusp  eleq Od #0d

JaquinN ‘Q'd Ag Bugsr 1epiQ sseyaing

JOVTUA H3LSVINY

g :abed



"ONI ATddNS SHOLOVHINOD S8 X SGOONOOSM §e/Sc/v0 68€10-52
ve'ove'zs
ZrS890Y Se/veIv0 seiveivo d A8 IVLIdSOH-1I43N38 33A07dN3 3 000-008-0906-© 69°€LLS JONVIHNSNIHLTVYIH AVIN €
25890t SZ/yeiv0 S2/¥e/v0 d 8 IVLIdSOH-S1I43N3g9 33A0TdN3 3 000-008-0906-V S9'2.L'T$ JONVHNSNI HLTVAH AVIN - L
HLIV3IH INJAN3I43ANI  SO0043ANI S2/¥2/v0 88€10-9¢
£0°9¢££'sZ$
GZ0¢ AVIN Se/ve/v0 Seiveivo o A8 TVLIdSOH-1143N3g 33A0dN3 3 000-008-0906-9 78'996'L$ FONVHNSNI HLIVIH AVW ¢
G20C AV S2ive/v0 Geive/vo d ¥ IVLIdSOH-S1i43N3g I3ACTdNE 3 000-008-0906-V  1Z'69¢'€C$ JONVHNSNI HLIVIH AVIN L
ANMSEOG HHVINHOIH  SOOWHOIH Se/ve/v0 28€10-5¢
[ALAARS, S¢/G¢Iv0 §2/S2/v0 d ONYA 2 TOHOJTV-NINAY S133HLS 3 000-2.¥-0L0S-V  00°LLt$ ONILS3L ONYAd WOANYH |
dTT ANM - SHHOMHLIVIH  SLOLTVIH §2/S2/v0 98¢€10-G¢
STAVAL T4 §2/2eIv0 GTleT/vo d IVNLOVHLINOD - 301LSNr JOVTIIA 3 000-SEV-0LLL-V  00°02% ONINVITO AYQ 3904 3oanr L
NVAY “TIVSAQVYH  0LOVSAVH S2/22/v0 g8€10-6¢
S0L0 §e/ve/v0 seive/vo d  SHIVd3IY - T1VH 3did ANI H1HON 3 000-0S¥-129L-V  6S'0FLS HITIOHLINOD NIHIS 30VId3d |
HILIVM Z8VLE104  S00VLTIOd SZ/ve/t0 ¥8€10-5¢
00'0r¥'1L$
S¥999 S2/velv0 SZiveivo d 7 3HI4-394H9 SHHOM O118Nd 1d3d 3 000-2E¥-0V9L-V  00°02.$ NOILOA4SNI TVNNNY GWTYMda ¢
999 S2/veIv0 S2ive/vo d VWHVYTVY 3HId - SFOIAYIS dIHVHS 3 000-LEv-029L-V  00°02.$ NOILO3dSNI TVNNNY GWT/Mda L
SWILSAS ALI4VS FHIH S00S3did  G2/Pe/v0 £8€10-6¢
96819 G2/SZ/¥0 GE/SeIv0 d ILANIVIA/SHIVAIY-LNIVIN S1334LS 3 000-25¥-0L1G-V  +8'05Z% 921 ML A1aNISSY ISOH |
ONI AYYE3d  S00AHH3d S¢/9e/v0 ¢8e10-5¢
1€/6.0008L §2/S¢/¥0 S¢/52Iv0 | SNOIS-LNIVIA S13341S 3 000-TL¥-OLS-V  LLPLLS 1NOIVANNOY SNOIS ONMYIVd dH < L
HITIOHLAWOD ALNNOD FIM3 SL0O3IM3  SE/S2/v0 18€10-6C
1256.00081 SZ/veIv0 SeIVE/F0 d D 4O INYd - H3INSYIYL ONVNIZ 3 00L-GEV-GZEL-V  LL'8E0'CH G20C S1S0D d3dd XVLTIOA L
psanupuogy junosay HITIOHLAWOD ALNNOD JId3 SL0D3EZ S2/ve/v0 08€10-52
8910AU] e ored YoAeIS uonduIsag adAy unooay ebieyy  junowny uondusse( sy
PIOAMYO pASY Uz Jsdio el 4
8dfl 0d pRAUOD Jopuap  ereg Od #0d
Nd 8110
JaquinN 'O'd Ag Buysi J8piQ aseyoing
§20¢/8¢/¥0

FOVTIIA YALSVINV

¢ ebed



FAVIR WA S2/veiy0 SzZiveivo d VO-3OVHVO SHHOM 21gnd 1d3a 3 000-0v¥-0v9L-V  96'€20'Z$ 8/v-0L/E -Mdd 1
13Nd TVNOILYN SLO0OILYN SZ/¥2/v0 86€L0-G2

€0 0¢eeLlee S2/veiv0 S2ive/vo o SVO - T1VH 3dId N3 HLHON E| 000-0¥v-1291L-V  LELGP$ SC0C OL/P-LIE HAGN |
13N4 TYNOILVYN SLOOILYN Se/ve/vo 16€10-SC

£€0998060¢ SZiveiv0 G2iveiv0 o SV - SIDINGTS dIFHVHS E| 000-0v¥-029L-V  0€°.€9'L$ PLP-PLIE - INNODDVEANT L
T3N3 IYNOLLYN  SLOOILYN Ge/vZ/0 96€10-5¢

S 2EV'LS

G202 HOYV G2/SCIv0 G2/Se/P0 d | LINJNDINDI-T9OVEHVD B ISN43H E| 000-£S¥-09.8-V  99'v9% G20C HOYYN SAINddNS 2 S1¥vd S

§20Z HOYY SZ/STIV0 ST/STIY0 ¥ INJWCINDI OL SYIVAIY-SHYVd 3 000-€ESY-0LLL-V  €27L0L$ S20Z HOYVA SHAANS B SLdvd ¥

G202 HOYUVIN G2/SCIY0 S2/Se/v0 d I LANIVW/SHIVAIY-LNIVIN S133HLS 3 000-2Sv-0LLS-V €£L€62% G202 HOYYN SANddNS ® S1dvd €

S20Z HOYVIN §¢/S¢iv0 Ge/S2iv0 o LNivd 2 STOO0L-INIVIN S13341S 3 000-6Lv-0LLG-Y 62°ChPS S20C HOHVYIN SAINddNS B S1lHvd ¢

G20C HOYVN G2/SCIv0 S2/Se/v0 d 10 A9 INIVIN 8 SHIVdIY-Ld3d 3HI4 3 000-9St-LiveE-V¥  €2°0€5$ G202 HOHVYIN SAITddNS 8 S1Hvd L
S1dVd OINYVYAYN  0L0VYVdVN SZ/S2/+0 S6€10-5¢

eTAN {14 G2/S¢iv0 S2/Se/v0 o LVIA 8 S31ddNS - NOILYOIdlLNY3g 3 000-L0¥-01S8-V  00'8.E$ 0S8 ONILLOd SAAND Y L
ASNOHNIIYO T1AHOLIN - SOOHOLIN G§2/Se/v0 ¥6€1L0-9C

PLESIP/0LERIY G2/Se/v0 S8/SC/v0 d VN8 S3INddNS -~ NOILvDI411Nv3g 3 000-L0¥-0198-V Q0°ZLS LS 710S ONILLOd 40 SGAND 91 L
ASNOHNIZIHO TIIHILIN  SOOHDLIN S2/52/+0 £6£10-52

Gcoe/8lLiy G2/8L/¥0 SE/8L/v0 d 3N 3d SZOIAYTS dOHd-ONINNY1d 3 000-¥€¥-0208-V  00°06% HIGWTIN NOISSIAWOD ONINNYId |
TANNYS "HITTIN GZOITIN SZ2/8L/Y0 ¢6E1L0-G¢

G2 ANOD NITdVHD G2/eeiv0 SZ/eeiv0o o ONINIVYHL-1d3a 3dId 3 000-0LV-LLYE-V  00°05¢$ NITdYHO Q47 LNJWISHNEGWIIY L
1d30 34 YILSYINVYT  0SOVINY S2/22/+0 L6€1L0-8C

0.509¢ S¢/veiv0 G2ive/vo d IS TVNLOVHLINOD-AIA JINONODT El 000-GEV-6868-V 8L0EL'LS$ LINVHO QUVYMHO4 AN 8¢/€-SZ/L l
SALYIDOSSY V113av S007139vY1 S2ive/v0 06€1L0-GC

£81L¥-6¢ S2/SEIP0 S2/S2/v0 o Adid B STVIRIILVIN-IOVNIVYEJ E| 000-vLv-0bS8-V  00'8€8% SHIAITOIH IV LT 'SONIY IAveD |
PBNURUOYD JUNoIDY "ONI ATddNS SHOLOVHINOD S8 X  SOONODSM S2/SZ/+0 68€10-G¢

8D10AL] aeq aeq] aleqg SUDNEIS uogdusssq adA} junoaay ebieyyn  Junowry uonduoseq wiey
PIOASIYD PAOY o 15414 oY

Nd 8¥:L0o

§20¢/82/¥0

8041 Od 0B4UOD

laquinN "Q'd Ag Bunsi Japlo eseyoing

AOVTIA Y3 LSVINVYT

H0pUsA  e1eqg Od #0d

p :obeyq



O93ISAN GL00000N Se/Se/v0 S0v10-9¢

29/2988 §Z/STIYQ ST/STIVO S| G314ISSYTIONN-S33Y L IAVHS 3 000-G.P-0958-V 0T .tG$ Y¥I1HVLS INOL Ol YNOdSTE |
N3IQUVYD ANV AYISHNN IOAIYHLYON  SYOHLYON S2/SZ/v0 ¥0v10-SZ
66°TL$
¥801€0€1dS S2IveIv0 STIYTiv0 ¥ 39N7% 13N4-SHIMIS AUVLINYS 3 000-9L¥-0Z18- 9 20'22L$ Jand13s3id ¢
¥801€0€LdS SZIVeIv0 SevEIvo d 0% ANINOSYO-S334L AAVHS 3 000-91¥-0968-V  2£'€0Z% J3a3nd13s3a ¢
¥801€0€LdS SZEv0 G2Yeiv0 H 10 % ANIOSYO-INIVIN S13JHLS 3 000-9L+-0LLG"V  G9ZLYS 1and3s3ig i
$73N4 -d4OD ADYANT OOON  S00JOION STFe/0 €010
19998
LOGEE0E | dS G2/vTIV0 STIVEIv0 ¥ 39n7% 713N4-SHIMIS AUVLINYS 3 000-9L4-0218-9  60°99L% JEnd3saia v
L0S8E0E} dS SZ/beiv0 STIvEv0 H 10 ® INITOSYO-ONINYI IO 13341S 3 000-9Lt-0L18-V  60°99i$ RE[EREE][d
LOGBEOEL dS GZ/ve/v0 SZIvEivo ¥ 710 2 ANMOSYO-LNIVIN S133MLS 3 000-9Lt-0LLG-V  60°99L$ End1Esaa ¢
LOSREOEL dS SZ/vZIY0 SZIvEivo o 710 3 ANIMOSY9-1d3d Fdid 3 000-9L¥-LL¥E-Y  0L'99L$ 13nd3saig
S73N4 ~dH0D ADY3NT ODOON  S003000N  §Z/¥e/v0 2ovi0-sz
69'85.%
969820£1dS SZ/STIP0 STISTIVO ¥ 3dN7T 9 13NS-SHIMIS AHVLIINYS 3 000-9L7-0Z18-9  TG'SO0LS d3aaaaNsvyIaNdxInNg L
969820€1dS S2ISTIV0 G2/ST/v0 d O % INIMOSYD-$33dL IAVHS 3 000-9L7-0958-V  Z5°S0L$ dagaansvIandying 9
969820€1dS §2/STIv0 ST/STIY0 S| 710 2 INIOSVYO-IOVYNIVHA 3 000-9L¥-0¥58-V  £5°S0L% g3gIansvianding s
969820€1dS GZ/STIYO GT/STIP0 d % ANIOSYO-3OVEYO % 3SNJ3Y 3 000-9LY-0918-V  €£5°G0L$ gagaaNsvIENININg ¢
969820€1dS SZ/STY0 GT/ST/P0 o 0 8 SYO-SHHVd 3 000-9LP-0LLL-Y  E€5°GO0LS d3gaansviand¥ing ¢
969820€1dS §2ISTIVO G2ISZIVO d IO 2 INIMOSYO-IVAOWIYH MONS 3 000-9LYZELS-V  €9°G0LS g3aaIaNsvIEnNaMIng
969820€1dS SZ/STIY0 ST/STIVO0 d 710 2 INITOSVO-LNIVN S133MH1S 3 000-9L¥0LLG-V £9°G01% d3agasNsvIandying L
713N -dHOD ADHANT 000N S0030D0N  §Z/S2/P0 LO¥10-62
2960%G8 SZIvTIv0 STIvE/v0 ¥ /N ONIDVAUNSIY-LNIVIN S133MLS 3 000-€L¥-0LLG-V  EEELYS vHdSY L
00 INIT® INOLS ISIIAYIALNT MIN  SOONIMIAN SZ/H2/0 00¥10-52
659.€58 S2ISTYO GZISZIP0 Y INOD3Y B ONIAVA-LNIVIN S13341S 3 000-vEV-0LLG-V  2T'T29% d34 HOLVd LOH L'IVHASY NN G'6 L
02 JWIT 2 INOLS ISIYdYIINT MIN  SOONIMIAN §2/S2/0 66€10-GZ
asIoAU] areq ajeq ereq YRS uojdussaq] adA] Junosoy sbieys  Junouy uoyduosag wey
PIOASIYD  pr2Y OUT JSdl oy
8dAL Od oefUOD J0pUSA  8Jeg Od #0d
Wd 8¥:10

1BquWInN 'O'd Ag Bunsi Jeplo eseyand
Geoe/8e/rQ FOVTIIA 43LSVINVY G abed



OTT18H NVAIM3HS  G00I¥IHS Se/ve/v0 9L¥1L0-5C

166001-G¢1 §2/S¢/v0 S¢/Se/r0 o 3dld ® STIVIHILVYIN-IOVNIVAA 3 000-P1¥7-0vS8-V  09°108% SHIVAEY ¥IAIFOTH ILIMINO |
NS SH3ATING AVMNHHL SINOLNYHIS  SOONYHOS S2/S2/¥0 Sivlo-Ge

105016200 SZ/9LIv0 G2/9L/¥0 = | S$3341-5334d1 AVHS 3 000-PE¥-0958-V  00Vv¥L$ Av@ HOgHY S33H1 ang aade L
"ONI ‘AYISHNN S 13LHOIHOS S00DIHOS §2/91/v0 riv10-G2

106288200 S2/91/1¥0 SZ/9LIV0 d S3IYL-SI3YL 3AVHS 3 000-vEV-0958-V  00'L¥S'6% S3FYL L )
“ONI 'AY3SUNN STFLHOIHOS  G00OIHOS S2/9L/t0 €L¥10-62

L-GZLL000E6 S2/eeiv0 S2/eeivo d YW LNIWLIND3 Olavy-1d3a 3914 3 00£-09Z-LLvE-V  Q0'G6L$ ¥30Vd V40 dIivdad L
ONI SNOILYJINNWINOD VIVS  S000VIVS §2/22/v0 clvl0-Se

¥#000S6-2 S2/Se/v0 S2/52/¥0 | A34ISSYTONN-SIIYL IAVHS 3 000-S.v-0958-V  00'096% SIMVLS F3HL 4O 43Tvd |
WHY4H gNYHS B 3341 S1N1ISSNY §003SSNY  §2/5¢/v0 LvL0-G2

S TAVATR Y] 4 SC/LLP0 STILLIP0 ¥ 3N Od SIDINETS JOUd-ONINNY1d 3 000-¥€4-0208-V  00°GLLS HIVHO - NOISSININOD ONINNVYId |
J3VHOIN ‘GTOHNITY  SOOHNITY SZ/LL/V0 olvi0-Se

S20z/LLY Ge/LLv0 S2/LLIV0 d 3N 3d S3ITIAYIS JOUd-ONINNVYId 3 000-vEY-0208-V  00°06$ HIAWIN NOISSINNOD DONINNYId |
NVYOIIN-ATTITH HL38VZIT13 G007713H  SZ/LLIFO 60¥10-G2

G20e/eTy SZiveiv0 S2i¥T/v0 H  JIVISOd - ¥34NSYIHL IONVNIH 3 000-9€¥-G2€L-V  00°005'C$ HILANW FOVLISOd NO TI43d |
INNODOV IAYISTIY SIMOD ASNLId  SZ0INLId Se/ve/r0 80t10-G2

88.¢l G2/Zziv0 S2/TTiY0 o STVIISAHd-Ld3A 344 3 000-L.t-LLPE-V  00'85L$ € X STVIOISAHd ¥3LHDI43HId )
ONI ¥VLSNOO0 S00SNDD0 Se/2e/v0 20v10-5¢

SZECYOIANSAN SZ/veiv0 S2iveivo Y . JOUd"NOILYHLSININGY SLITFHLS 3 000-90%-0L0S-V  00°0VL$ SAYVZYH TvIIdH103713 8334934 |
TIONNOD AHLSTHOS NvadN SAN  SO0HNSAN  SZ/¥2/v0 90v10-6¢

18410821001 S2/SeIv0 ST/Scivo d -ONILHOIMT AMH-ONILHOIT 13341S 3 000-8E¥-28L5-V  LL'00LS G202 Z/P-G/e LS vdounNvs 1
panupuog Junoady 93ISAN  G1L00000N S2/52/¥0 Sov10-G¢

a910AU} e ojey o AYONBIS uondusssg adAy junoooy ebueyD  Juhouly vogduoseq wey
PIOAMYO PASY U3 IS4 0y

8dAL Od 1oEHUOD Jopusp  ejer] Oct #0d

Wd 8¥:10

Sc0¢/8e/v0

laquinN ‘O'd Ag Buisi Jep1Q aseyoind
FOVTTIA HILSVINVT g :abed



071999 S2IZTIVO S2ITTIHO ¥ INILIWININLINYOTU-LdIA INIA 3 000-0VF-LIVE-Y  €0TLLS SINALI WYHOONd QYYMIY SNOIIVA £
81599 SeTIPD SZITTIY0 ¥ INILIWINANLINYOY-LAIA I 3 000-0bt-LLvE-V  0E0E$ SIN3LI WVHEDO0Nd QHYMIY SNOIIVA 9
88599 STITIYO SZITZ/H0 ¥ INILIWINGWLINYOTY-LJIA M1 3 000-0VY-LivEY  28°04L$ SIWALI WVHO0Yd QHYMIN SNOIIVA &
YEEEQ9 S2/Z2UY0 S2/TT/v0 ¥ INALIWINIWLINGORY-LAIA JuH 3 000-0VF-LLPE"V  00'0SL$ SWILI WVHO0YHd QUYMIY SNOIVA ¥
£6£€99 STITLIVO STITTIY0 ¥ INILIWINIWLINYOTY-Ld3a I 3 000-0V-LLPE"Y  00'00L$ SWILI WYHOONd QHYMIY SNOIMVA €
509299 S2ITTIVO STITT/Y0 ¥ INIIIWINIWLINYOIN-LdIQA T4 3 000-0VY-LivE-Y  69'689 SWILI WYHOOMd QHYMIY SNOIVA €
158099 S2/ZeTY0 STITTIv0 ¥ INILIWINIALINYOIN-LdIA I 3 000-0VV-Live-Y  90°€6$ SINILI WVHOOYd QHVMIY SNORIVA |
dNOYO ALFAVS OITENd ¥IWLIM  SO0IWLIM SZ/Z2/0 vZYL0-ST

L6ty SUVEIVO STIVTIYO ¥ IVNLOVYINOO-SHIMIS AYVLINVS 3 000GEr0ZL8- ©  00'08Y'Z$ NJ¥ SOAS 40Hd SHIMIS HILSVONYT |
SYIINIONT 3 IUNLOTLIHONY SLIVM  SOOSLLVM SZ/¥Z/v0 €2v10-5Z

81926 SZILLYO SZILLIVO ¥ 1LV TYNOILYONQ3-S33ML 3AVHS 3 000-007-0958-V  00°'8% INOVId AVA HOSHY L
"ONI SOHVMY NLLYVIN ANOL  SOONANOL SZ/ZL/%0 zevlo-se

€626 S2ISTIV0 SZISTIYO ¥ VB SINOVId-YOAYW 3AILNDIXT 3 000200LZL-V  OY'28Z$ sanovidz L
"ONI SOYVMY NLLYVIN ANOL  SOOWANOL S2/32/i0 12v10-52

€Lv2s STVEIVO S2YEIv0 ¥ INIVD % STOOL-UNIVA S133d1S 3 0006L7-0LG"V  L6'956$ 3LVadN ONIQTING ¥ SIMIS AXOdT |
‘00 SWVIMTIM-NIMYIHS SHL  SOOHSIHL SZH2/v0 0zv10-52

£0LL01-6Z1 SZVEIVO STIVEIYO ¥ SININCIOI ¥IHLO-SITUL IAVHS 3 000-052-0958"V ~ 0L'2SZ$ ONLINVId 3341 ¥ STAAOHS |
NS SYIATING AVMNUHL SNOLNVHOS  SOONVNOS SZIvervo 6171052

0£00-26340539 STIVEIVO STIVEIYO ¥ ONISILYIAQY 8 ONLLNRId-ONINOZ 3 000-0£7-0L08"V  ZL'€8$ QY MOIMSNNYE BLLVEZ L
071 'VIAVIVE-ONS 008338 SZ/VT/P0 8L¥10-5Z

00°824$

100-82€08515 STISTIVO STISZIPO ¥ Q3JIHISSYIONN-SITWLIAVHS 3 000-6/4-0958-Y  00'LZ$ SAWNLS ONY IOVAVA MOTd 2

100-92€055151 SISO STIST/H0 ¥ \ONS-STVIMILYW-IVAONTH MONS 3 000-%I2EIGY 00412 SAWNLS ONY IOVAVA MOTd L
011'ATddNS 3dvOSANVT3NO 3LIS  S0003LIS S2/5e/+0 1171052

6282 SZVEIY0 SZVEIY0 ¥ 1SNOO WH-S33LSN¥L 40 a¥vos 3 009-GE7-0L0L-V  00'002'2$ S20Z TMdY - ONILINSNOD ¥H |
panujuog Junoosy OTIMHNVAIIHS  SO0IMIHS SeIve/vo 91¥10-52

CET] eeq eeg o1eQg WoARIS uonduoseq adA] juhoaoy ebiieyn  unowy uonduosaq ey
PIOAMD  pADY UZ 1S4 10y

Nd 8¥:L0

§20¢/8e/v0

8dAL Od oBRUOY

Jopuan 9w Od

#0d

JequinN O'd Ag Bugsi JepiO eseyaing

FOVTTHA Y3LSVONY . :@bed



00°0% :Junowy ploA |eJ0L  26'61LE'GL$ Junowy isijejel SOl

ISWwa)| au ‘o'd jlejol 99

1SIapiQ aseyaind jejol

9911-0606-0008

Se/8¢/¥0 S2/82/v0 d  F9VLISOd - H3ANSYIYL IONVYNIL = | 000-9€¥-G2EL-V  9L'L¥S$ 1439 9313N ADVISOd L
HIMOd ISYHIHNd SOO0HOYHNd S2/82/+0 0erio-se
£0-G202-009Z¥rL S2/8¢/¥0 S2/82/¥0 o 1SNY1L ® 149N0D ‘ANNd LSNYL 9] 000-190-L 0S'L21$ JHVHS SIOVTIIA G202 HOHYIN L
ANNd FOILSNr-¥3TIOYLdNOD A1VLS  S003LVLS SZ/82/v0 62¥10-62
€E610E6¥001 Ge/82/¥0 G2/82/v0 | OlHL0313-SMHvd 3 000-8e¥-0LLL-V 80'88% G202 22/v - L/IZ IAV ANOWHDIY |
O IASAN S100000N SGZ/8¢/v0 8CrL0-G2
¢18S9ZLANId G2/8¢/v0 G2/8e/v0 d NS 301440 - HAYNSYIHL IONVYNIL 3 000-LO0v-S2EL-V  ¥0'69% HHITD - HILVA JAVLS L
AlddnS 3DI44d0 NOLYT  SOONOLY3 §2/82/t0 1Z¥10-6e
SNOIHVYA S2/82/v0 G2/82/v0 d 2 3LS 93M - 438NSYIH1L 3DNYNIL 3 000-¥.¥-G2EL-V  00°S¥S$ SNOILVOOT TV ADIONZLINHILINI L
NOILYOINNWWOOD H31HVHD  0Z01YVHD SZ/82/¥0 azyLo-6e
9£5¢2s Se/ive/v0 Seiveivo A OLTIN-LNIGWLIND3-LNIVIN S133YLS 3 000-002-0L1S-Y 66765€$ ONIdVOSANYI HOA ¥aTIL |
"ONI SH31HVNDAVYIH SHILLNDAOOM SO00DAOOM SZ/VE/F0 gevio-se
26'SSE°L$
£908%9 S2/2C/Y0 Se/eTivo H LINILIH/ININLINGOTH-1d3A 3414 3 000-0vP-Live-V  00°00L$ SNILI AVHOO0Ud AHVAMIY SNOIYYA vl
269699 §2/2¢/v0 G2/eaiv0 H LNILIH/AINIWLINEDOTL-L43Q 3HI4 3 000-OFP-LLYE-Y  ¥9'1E$ SWILI AVHD0OUd QHVMIY SNOIMVA €L
182299 SIATAAL (R TATA AL 40 H LNILIH/AINIWLINGDTY-1d43a IHI4 3 000-OFP-LLYE-Y  0G§°/% SWIALI WVYD0Yd QHVMIY SNOIMVA 2L
691299 S¢/TTI¥0 G2/2eiv0 H INILIH/INIWLINYDIY-1d4330 14 3 000-0vv-LLPE-V 0S2CPL$ SWALI WWHDOHd AHVYMIY SNOTEYA L
€11299 S2/ZCI¥0 SZ/Teiv0 d LNILIIH/INIWLINYDIAY-1d43a 34 3 000-0tv-LL¥E-VY  00°00L$ SWILINVYOO0Hd QHYMIH SNOIMVYA 0L
€61999 G2/Zeiv0 S2/2e/v0 d INIIIH/INIWLINGDIY-1d34a IS4 3 000-0v¥-LLvE-V  80°0LL$ SWALIAYYOOUd QHVYMIE SNOIIYA 6
051999 §2/¢TI¥0 S2iZeiv0 A LNILIFH/INIWLINYDIY-1d3Q IHid E| 000-0Ov¥-LLvE-V S9°1G% SW31l NVHOO0Hd QYVYMIY SNOIMVA 8
panuipuog junodsy dNOYD ALI4VS O1T78Nd H3WLIM - S00INLIM S2Z/28/P0 ¥erL0-6¢
CRIGYNT ajeq areq ajeq JoNeIS uonduasa adA} noooy ebieys  Junouwly yopduosey waj
PIOASYD PADY U IS4 199y
8dAl Od 1efuUO) Jopuep  e1eq Od #0d
Wd 8t:L0
JagquinN ‘O'd Ag Buysi JepiQ aseyoing
SZ02/8e/t0

JOVTTIA HALSVINYT

g :obed



26'61E'6L$

05°LLL$

00°0% Lrevi'sls ispung [Iv JO |ejoL
0S°LLL$ 0S°2L1$ 00°0% 00'0$ 1
Z6'PIP'SS 00'0% 00°0% Z6'vLv's$ o
$5°299°69% 00°0$ 00°0$ $5°199°69% v
leyol |30l Yo |e10] BNUdAIY |ejo) puadxgy pung uoyduosag pundy
pung Aq sjejol
16'618'6.% 05°2L1% 00°0% Ly'TrLisls spung yy Jo tejoy,
0S'LL1$ 0S°LLL$ 00°0% 00'0$ 1
TE'PLY'SS 00°0% 00'0% zZ6'viy'ss -G
65°299'69% 00°0$ 00°0% $5°199'69$ V-5
|ejoL lejol 1o |BJO] anuanay |ejo] puadxgy pung uonduosag pung

pundg-iea) Aq sjejoy

Wd 8¥'L0

§¢0¢c/8e/va

JaquinN "O'd Ag Bunsi JepiQ aseyoing
AOVTTIA ¥3LSVYINVY

6 :obed



Lrevi'sis 00°0$ 00°0% 00'0% LyThLSLS :spund ||y JO |ejoL

Z6°PLv'SS 00°0% 00°0% 000% 26'vLY'SS 99

6S°199'69% 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% $6°199'69$ v-§

lejol pung Jold pred uadQ Jolid pASY Jolid juaing pung uonduasaq pung

Wd 8%:1.0

G20¢/8¢/v0

uadQ JOld/PaAIadaYy JOUAUSLING JUNOJJY ainjipuadxd Jo umopyeaig
FDVTIIA HILSVINV

0} :9beyq



April 28, 2025 LANCASTER VILLAGE Page No: 1
12:31 pM Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Batch Id: TASC Batch Date: 04/08/25 Batch Type: Standard

Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description
A -9060-800-000 Expenditure  HRA TRANSACTIONS - MARCH 6,997.04 1
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-HOSPITAL & MEDICAL INS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cri A -200-000 CASH
WARNING: This account would have a negative balance: A -9060-800-000. Balance would be: 52,472.03-.

WARNING: Control Acct would have a negative balance but error was overridden: A -9060-800-000. Balance would be: 52,472.03-.



April 28, 2025 LANCASTER VILLAGE Page No: 2

12:31 pw Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer Qut Cancel Encumbrances

A 6,997.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Of A1l Funds: 6,997.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: 1 6,997.04

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Out: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

YTD 1099: 0 0.00

Total: il

There are warnings in this Tisting, but can proceed with update.




April 28, 2025
12:45 P

LANCASTER VILLAGE

Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Page No; 1

Batch Id: PAYROLL Batch Date: 04/25/25

Batch Type: Recurring

Account No. Type
Account Description

Entry Description

Amount

Tracking Id Seq

A -1010-100-000 Expenditure
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1110-100-000 Expenditure
VILLAGE JUSTICE - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1210-100-000 Expenditure
EXECUTIVE MAYOR - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1325-100-000 Expenditure
FINANCE TREASURER - PERSONAL SERVICES
bb: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1420-100-000
LAW - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

Expenditure

A -1620-100-000 Expenditure
SHARED SERVICES - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1621-100-000 Expenditure

NORTH END FIRE HALL - PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1640-100-000 Expenditure
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -3411-100-000 Expenditure
FIRE DEPARTMENT - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -3620-100-000 Expenditure
SAFETY INSPECTION-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -200-000 CASH

A -3989-100-000 Expenditure

BUILDING INSP-PERSONAL SVCS-CODE ENFCMT

Db: A -200-000 CASH

A -3990-100-000 Expenditure

DISASTER PREPAREDNESS-PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -4020-100-000 Expenditure

REGISTRAR VITAL STATS-PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025

1,553.82

2,461.97

610.05

5,386.08

2,015.38

2,268.96

172.43

12,599.33

230.77

0.00

Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025

0.00

Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

140.77

181.50

10

1

12

13

14



April 28, 2025

LANCASTER VILLAGE

Page No: 2

12:45 M Expenditure Entry Verification Listing
Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description
A -5010-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 6,987.89 15
STREETS ADMINISTRATION-PERSONAL SVCS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -5110-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 10,345.70 16
STREETS MAINT-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -5132-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 17
SNOW REMOVAL-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -7110-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 69.02 18
PARKS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -7550-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 1,705.93 19
CELEBRATIONS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -7550-102-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 20
DPW - Overtime
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -7550-103-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 21
DPW - Regular Time
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -8020-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 80.77 2
PLANNING-PERSONAL SERVICES
Dh: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8160-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 4,391.50 23
REFUSE & GARBAGE-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8170-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 2,312.17 24
STREET CLEANING-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8540-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 2,044.22 25
DRAINAGE-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8560-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 10,296.06 26
SHADE TREES-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8989-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 96.13 27

ECONOMIC DEV-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

Cr: A -200-000 CASH



April 28, 2025

LANCASTER VILLAGE

page No: 3

12:45 pm Expenditure Entry verification Listing
Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description
A -9060-800-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 924.23- 28
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-HOSPITAL & MEDICAL INS
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -5010-405-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 29
STREETS ADMINISTRATION-MEAL ALLOWANCE
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -5132-405-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 30
SNOW REMOVAL-MEAL ALLOWANCES
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
G -8115-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 2,842.73 31
ADMINISTRATION-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH
G -8120-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 4,885.64 32
SANITARY SEWERS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH
G -8115-405-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 33
ADMINISTRATION-MEAL ALLOWANCE
Db: 6 -200-000 CASH Cr: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -3120-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 1,831.50 35
POLICE-PERSONAL SVCS-CROSSING GUARDS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1640-403-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 36
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS - UNIFORMS
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 37
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
bb: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 38
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 39
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
bh: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 0.00 40
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
ph: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -8090-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/25/2025 3,030.00 41
ENVIRONMENTAL - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
WARNING: This account would have a negative balance: A -1210-100-000. Balance would be: 1,030.48-.



April 28, 2025
12:45 pM

LANCASTER VILLAGE
Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Page No: 5

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer Qut Cancel Encumbrances
A 69,887.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
G 7,728.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Of ATl Funds: 77,616.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount
Expenditures: 39 77,616.09
Reimbursements: 0 0.00
Transfer In: 0 0.00
Transfer Out: 0 0.00
Cancel: 0 0.00
Encumbrance: 0 0.00
YTD 1099: 0 0.00
Total: 39

There are warnings in this 1isting, but can proceed with update.

Please note that batch lines with zero amounts will not be updated.




April 28, 2025 LANCASTER VILLAGE
12:33 PM Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Page No: 1

Batch Id: FICA Batch Date: 04/25/25 Batch Type: Recurring

Tracking Id Seq

Account No. Type Entry Description Amount
Account Description
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Accrued FICA paydate 4/28/2025 5,417.11
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
G -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Accrued FICA paydate 4/28/2025 591.22

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH



April 28, 2025

LANCASTER VILLAGE

Page No: 2

12:33 PM Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer Out Cancel Encumbrances
A 5,417.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
G 591.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Of A1 Funds: 6,008.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: 2 6,008.33

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Out: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

1D 1099: 0 0.00

Total: 2

There are NO errors in this Tisting.




LISTED CORRESPONDENCE May 12, 2025

18t 211&
Motion  Motion

1. | Correspondence from the Town of Lancaster Building Department providing a report of
! building permit applications, expired permits, and open complaints that were filed for
| properties within the Village of Lancaster from April 17, 2025 — May 1, 2025.

ACTION - Rec/File
Reler to:

2. Correspondence from Joseph Brunet, Lancaster VFW, inviting Village officials to
participate in the Memorial Day Services and Parade on Monday, May 26, 2025, starting at
9:00 a.m. at Veterans Park on Lake Avenue.

ACTION - Rec/File
Refer to:

3. Correspondence from St. Mary’s High School providing a Special Events Application for its
Graduation Celebration on May 22, 2025, requesting use of the Village’s tall top tables.

ACTION - Rec/File

Refer to:
4. Correspondence from Lancaster Fire Department providing a Special Events Application for
B its Ceremonial Inspection on May 31, 2025, starting at 9:00 a.m. at Firefighters Park.
ACTION - Rec/File
Refer to:
5. Correspondence from Judge Hadsall and Judge Bumbalo advising that the records and

docket for the Lancaster Village Court for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 will be made available for
examination as part of the Village’s annual audit.

ACTION - Rec/File

Refer to:

6. Correspondence from NYS Homes and Community Renewal stating that the Village of
Lancaster has been certified as a Pro-Housing Community which provides eligibility to
apply for various discretionary funding programs which requires this certification.

ACTION - Rec/File
Refer to:
7. l Correspondence from DPW Superintendent Wayne K. Cisco requesting the Village Board to
o | buy back one week (40 hours) of his unused vacation time for fiscal year 2024-2025.
ACTION-  Rec/File
Refer to:
8.
ACTION - Rec/File
Refer to:
9.
ACTION - Rec/File
Refer to:
10. )
ACTION-  Rec/File
Refer to:

Page 1 Last Updated: 5/9/2025 9:29 AM



1

s[i13fa025

VILLAGE COVER SHEET

MAY 5, 2025 BOARD MEETING
PERMITS ISSUED 29



VILLAGE PERMIT TOTAL

INSTALL FENCE

INSTALL ROOF

INSTALL SIGN

ERECT DECK

DUMPSTER

INSTALL POOL

ERECT GARAGE

ERECT PORCH/PORCH COVER
DEMO INTERIOR BUILDING
INSTALL RESIDTIAL PLUMBING
ERECT FRONT PORCH GAZEBO
ERECT REAR PORCH GAZEBO
ERECT RESIDENTIAL ADD.ALT
ERECT COMMERCIAL ADD/ALT
ERECT COMMERCIAL BUILDING
INSTALL SOLAR PANELS

TOTAL PERMITS FOR THE VILLAGE

=N LD LD e e e N = R e NN

N
-]



Besroi Construction
Michael Stablewski
Visone Co Site Dev. LLC
Visone Co Site Dev. LLC
Cassillo Development Inc.
Big Papa’s Creamery, LLC
Daniel White

Atlantic Garages

Jens Richter

Jens Richter

James Gross

Thrifty Roofs LLC

Junk Escape And Demolition
R & L Fence

All Pro Team Corp.

Neth & Sons Inc.

2230 South Park LP
{rrevocable Trust Bruce
NYS Essential Power Inc.
Alyssa Koch

Joseph Macaluso
Michael Stablewski
Daniel Plumbo

All Pro Corp.

Jeffrey Baron

Hometeck Roofing/Remodeling

Besroi Construction

Besroi Construction

3825 Walden Ave.
5513 Broadway St.
3825 Walden Ave.
3825 Walden Ave.
50 Central Ave.

20 W. Main St.

20 Winfield Ave.
36 Verterans Dr.
28 Colonial Ave.
28 Colonial Ave.

8 Clark St.

15 Cayuga Ave.
112 Norris Ave.

32 Lancaster Ave.
101 Kurtz Ave.

30 Waltham Ave.
1825 Como Park Bivd.
5639 Broadway St.
59 Sixth Ave.

88 Sawyer Ave.

16 Ashley Dr.
5513 Broadway St.
64 Pardee Ave.
1012 Kurtz Ave.
46 Woodlawn Ave.
126 Pleasant Ave.
70 Lancaster Ave.

122 irwinwood South

Commercial add/alt
Garage

New Commercial Bldg.
New Commercial Bidg.
Commercial Add/Alt
Commercial Add/Alt
Porch/Porch Cover
Garage

Residential Add/Alt.
Rear & Rear Porch
Residential Plumbing
Roof

Demo Interior Bldg.
Fence

Residential Add/Alt.
Roof

Sign

Deck

Solar Panels

Roof

Dumpster

Fence

Dumpster
Residential Add/Alt.
Pool

Roof

Roof

Roof



Permit #

P-2024-36720

P-2024-36724

P-2024-36735

P-2024-36759

P-2024-36761

P-2024-36762

P-2024-36767

P-2024-36770

P-2024-36779

P-2024-36784

P-2024-37504

Generated By: BethCook On: 05/02/2025 At 3:34 PM

Town of Lancaster

Expired Permits Report

04/17/2025 - 05/02/2025

Location Description of Work ___ Permit Date Exp. Date
Cynthia Mcintosh 87 Lake Ave = Complete tear off and install new 04/19/2024 04/19/2025
shingles with 6' ice shield
135 Erie St Replacement of exising deck as shown 04/19/2024 04/19/2025
on construction drawings and re
supporting of upper overhang.
52 Garfield St Complete tear off and install new 04/23/2024 04/23/2025
shingles with 6' ice shield
11 Saint Joseph St Roof- Complete tear off and 04/29/2024 04/29/2025
replacement
5558 Broadway St Complete tear off to front upper roof ~ 04/29/2024 04/29/2025
and replace with new shingles with 6'
ice shield
27 Caswell St 324 SF Bedroom addition as shown on 04/29/2024 04/29/2025
construction drawings and plot plan.
27 Brandel Ave Fence-225 LF of 4' and 6' fence as 04/29/2024 04/29/2025
plotted on survey
68 Church St 24' diameter above ground pool located 04/30/2024 04/30/2025
at least 5ft from side and rear property
lines and 10ft from dwelling. as per
survey.
225 Erie St 22"x60" sign panel addition as shown 05/01/2024 05/01/2025
on sketches and work scope,
45 Kurtz Ave Complete tear off and replacement as ~ 05/02/2024 05/02/2025
shown on contract
53 Lombardy St Dumpster in driveway for 3 weeks. 10/24/2024 04/24/2025
Total Expired Permits: 11
Page 1 of 1



Complaint By Date

Complaint# Location Identifier Complaint Type Status Owner Complainant
Open Date: 04/17/25
2025-0303 24 School St 104.83-1-6 Exterior Property Closed Jonathan Cocca
Maint
2025-0305 16 Ashley Dr 115.11-10-26 Work w/out Permit  Open Terrance Vatter
2025-0306 1919 Como Park 115.11-1-12 Exterior Property Open Antoinette
Blvd Maint Tavernier
Open Date: 04/17/25 Total #: 3
Open Date: 04/21/25
2025-0308 3515 Walden Ave  104.11-2-9 Trash/Rubbish Open Robert Buza
2025-0310 5654 Broadway St  115.28-2-9 Exterior Property Open Anthony Yavicoli
Maint
Open Date: 04/21/25 Total #: 2
Open Date: 04/22/25
2025-0312 280 Lake Ave 115.12-4-26 Misc Closed City Place
Properties LLC
Open Date: 04/22/25 Total#: 1
Open Date: 04/24/25
2025-0315 198 Central Ave 104.15-8-9 Work w/out Permit  Closed Edward Bentley
Open Date: 04/24/25 Total #: 1
Open Date: 04/28/25
2025-0319 Suite 100, 3615 104.11-6-6.1 Exterior Property Open
Walden Ave. Ste 100 Maint
2025-0325 22 Brunswick Rd 104.19-6-4 Misc Closed Tracey Contrino
Open Date: 04/28/25 Total #: 2
Open Date: 04/29/25
2025-0326 64 Church St 115.27-4-34 Work w/out Permit  Open Ronald Balducci
2025-0327 5532 Broadway St 104.83-3-15.1 Interior Property Open Lancaster
Maint Medical Bldg Inc
2025-0330 70 Briarwood Dr 115.11-20-1 Exterior Property Open Cleo Moeller
Maint
Open Date: 04/29/25 Total #: 3
Open Date: 04/30/25
2025-0332 33 Church St 115.27-2-8 Work w/out Permit  Open Todd Dewald
2025-0334 128 Court St 104.76-1-6 Work w/out Permit  Open Robert Gozdziak
2025-0335 20 ThornappleLn  115.12-4-22.1 Work w/out Permit  Open Albert Franjoine

Generated By: BethCook On: 05/02/2025 At: 9:53 AM

Open Date: 04/30/25 Total #: 3
Grand Total: 15

Page 1 0of 1



VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS o,
. . of o 8
- THE UNITED STATES - O S oas
‘ POST No. 7275 SR , ;
--3741 Walden Avenue -

Lancaster, NY 14086
Chartered May 2, 1946

MEMORIAL DAY CELEBRATION

April 25, 2025

The Lancaster Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 7275 cordially invites you to
participate in the Memorial Day Services and Parade, Monday May 26, 2025. The

‘Memorial Service will start at 9:00 A.M., at the Lake Avenue Veterans Park.
Following the services, the parade will assemble and proceed down Lake Avenue
on to School Street, the down Pleasant Avenue to Central Avenue and end on
Clark Street by the Lancaster Town Hall.

Following the parade, refreshments will be served to all participants at the VFW
Post, 3741 Walden Avenue, courtesy of the VFW Post 7275.

We want to thank you in advance for your help and participation in this event.

Please RSVP to VFW Post #7275 at 681-8387.

Yours Truly,

' Joseph Brunet
Past Commander

Lancaster VFW



ustepg 3,
CORRESPONDENCE

Village Code Chapter 285 Special Events Appli¢4tion=**

Municipal Building + 5423 Broadway * Lancaster, NY 14086 « (716) 683-2105

Pursuant to §285-2 of the Village Code, a special event is an event 1)} proposed to be held on public property
or on private property, but affecting public property, 2) requiring Village support services, or 3) for which a
waiver of one or more mobile food vending regulations set forth at §209-8 of Chapter 209, Mobile Food
Vending, will be requested.

if additional space is required, please note 1 the appropriate box and attach extra sheet(s)
Event Name:

N .
i & __L{ - | \\
e MCL(L\b , \5"\ ool Groduahs
Type of Event (Race/Walk, Festival, Concert, Neighborhood Celebration, Parade/Motorcade, Other, etc.):

(,lrad.uédté“m ¢ elclo

Event Date(s): M M | ,’l}, 9 035 Event Time(s): G — Q ' 50 P
App!ucant Na Event Location: A
Lindse ?fa:W% Jrews Keor | ys (avemek Ave.  LANAsTEr
Individual/Group/Corporation Name Holding Event: Village Property Affected (If Applicable)

G Maeus diol Sehool

Applicant Address, City, State, Zip: Support Services Requested of the Village (i Applicable)

iyl Laverade Ave @J\ 10 Jr e
asxir, NY desl T P akies

Applicant Email: ,( Mﬂj g s oo erse g(s Applicant Phone (053_ Y q Q,‘\L"T %a/]

Pursuant to Village Code §285-3(B)(2)(c), there must be an identified "in charge person™ on premise during all
hours of the event.

“In charge Contact cell and email: Date & Tlme(s) On-Premise at Event:

L\'\O‘»SME y «ei/)f ¢ Sg1-1363 WLlﬁg‘\g_l’d v - D p—

Voo Kl ther |7 2 ¢ rf\agM o~ 1O P

Anticipated Peak Attendance Number: Anticip/ated Age Range of those in Attendance:
Will Alcohot be consumed? Will there be Amplified Sound or Music? if so, provide

o \¢S T-G pn



.

Will Food Trucks be part of the event? If so and an exception to any regulation set forth in §209-8 of Village Code
Chapter 209 “Mobile Food Vending™ (see: https://lancasiervillasenv.oov, will be requested of the Village Code
Enforcement Officer, identify by section number each regulation for which an exceplion will be requested.

NO

If the event is what is commonly referred to as a block party: 1) identify by names and addresses block neighbors who
have been advised of the proposed block party, 2) state either that no block neighbors have expressed opposition to th
proposed block party or 3) separately identify by names and addresses block neighbers who have expressed oppositic
to the proposed block party.

If applicable respond to (a) through (h) below and attach a map or sketch depiction:
(a) Location of Parking Facilities indicating number of parking spaces being provided for:

(b) Piease explain Additional Traffic Control measures that will be undertaken to deal with traffic overiabove the
Parking Facilities explained in {a) above:

(c) Location of Trash Facilities:

(d) Location of Water Facilities:

(e} Location of Electrical Facilities:

{f) Location of Toilet Facilities including location of Porta-Toilets:

{g) Location of Entrances where public is to enter and exit site:

{h} Location of Vendor Facilities including booths and food service:

{if Applicable) Organization providing Security: (1f Applicable) Number of Security Personnel:

Sigture of Applicant:
de hfty

Post review disggsition: [ 1Village Board approved.
[ ] Village Board not approved.
[ ] Applicant advised of Village Board determination: . , 202

F 1AW e PV e o ek ddm s le A —hed o - — 8 o f e AT e T m — =

Date

4/30/2:5




Village of Lancaster, New York

Village Code Chapter 285 Special Events Appli&étlon =

Municipal Building * 5423 Broadway * Lancaster, NY 14086 * (716) 683-2105

Pursuant to §285-2 of the Village Code,

or on private property, but affecting public property, 2) req
waiver of one or more mobile food vending regulations set forth at §209

Vending, will be requested.

a special event is an event 1) proposed to be held on public property

uiring Village support services, or 3) for which a
-8 of Chapter 209, Mobile Food

If additional space is required, please note in the appropriate box and attach extra sheet(s)

Event Name:
Lancaster Fire Department Ceremonial Inspection

Inspection ceremony and parade

Type of Event (Race/Walk, Festival, Concert, Neighborhood Celebration, Parade/Motorcade, Other, etc.):

Event Date(s): 5-31-25

Event Time(s): 9:00AM - 10:00AM

Applicant Name:
Thomas Kukoleca

Event Location:
Firefighters Park/N. Aurora St./W. Main St.

Individual/Group/Corporation Name Holding Event:

Lancaster Fire Department

Village Property Affected (If Applicable)

Firefighters Park/N. Aurora St./W. Main St.

Ceremony will be held at Firefighters Park. After the
ceremony the Department will march up W Main St to the
Fire Museum for their awards breakfast.

Applicant Address, City, State, Zip:
5423 Broadway, Lancaster, NY, 14086

Support Services Requested of the Village (If Applicable)
Village DPW to provide general care and maintenance
at Firefighters Park in preparation for the event.

The Lancaster Fire Department will provide traffic control.

Also requesting one LPD patrol car if available at 9:00AM.

Applicant Email: tkukoleca@lancasterfd.org

Applicant Phone 746.997-5468

hours of the event.

Pursuant to Village Code §285-3(B)(2)(c), there must be an identified "in charge person” on premise during all

Contact cell and email:

716-997-5468
tkukoleca@lancasterfd.org

“In charge person”:

Thomas Kukoleca

Date & Time(s) On-Premise at Event:
8:00AM - 10:00AM

Anticipated Peak Attendance Number:
50

Anticipated Age Range of those in Attendance:
18-80

Will Alcohol be consumed?

N/A

Will there be Amplified Sound or Music? If so, provide
particulars including hours:

LFD Cadence Corps will play during the parade.




Will Animals be part of the event? If so provide particulars.

N/A

Will Food Trucks be part of the event? If so and an exception to any regulation set forth in §209-8 of Village Code
Chapter 209 "Mobile Food Vending" (see: https://lancastervillageny.gov) will be requested of the Village Code
Enforcement Officer, identify by section number each regulation for which an exception will be requested.

N/A

If the event is what is commonly referred to as a block party: 1) identify by names and addresses block neighbors who
have been advised of the proposed block party, 2) state either that no block neighbors have expressed opposition to the
proposed block party or 3) separately identify by names and addresses block neighbors who have expressed opposition

to the proposed block party.

N/A

If applicable respond to (a) through (h) below and attach a map or sketch depiction:
(a) Location of Parking Facilities indicating number of parking spaces being provided for:

(b) Please explain Additional Traffic Control measures that will be undertaken to deal with traffic over/above the
Parking Facilities explained in (a) above:

Lancaster Fire Department will provide traffic control on N. Aurora St. and W. Main St.

(c) Location of Trash Facilities:

(d) Location of Water Facilities:

{e) Location of Electrical Facilities:

{f) Location of Toilet Facilities including location of Porta-Toilets:

(g) Location of Entrances where public is to enter and exit site:

(h) Location of Vendor Facilities including booths and food service:

(If Applicable) Organization providing Security: (If Applicable) Number of Security Personnel:

of licant: Date:
4-30-25

Post review disposition: [ ] Village Board approved.
[ ] Village Board not approved.
[ ] Applicant advised of Village Board determination: , , 202
[ ] Village Board approved with attached statement of conditions imposed.




SsTEDE_ 5
ORRESPONLENGE
DATE 2025/

VILLAGE OF LANCASTER™"
JUSTICE COURT

MUNICIPAL BUILDING — 5423 BROADWAY
LANCASTER, NEW YORK 14086
PHONE & FAX: (716) 683-6780

April 24, 2025

Dear Mayor William Schroeder and Borad of Trustees:

Pursuant to Uniform Justice Court Act § 2019-a, it is the duty of every justice to present
his records and docket, at least once a year and upon the last audit day of the village or town, to
the auditing board of the village or town, which shall examine said records or docket, or cause
same to be examined, and enter in the minutes of its proceedings the fact that they have been duly

examined.

Consistent with Section 2019-a of the Uniform Justice Court Act, we hereby advise that
the records and docket for the Lancaster Village Court for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 are available to
be presented for such examination. We look forward to working with you to schedule such

examination in an expeditious manner.

It is our understanding that OCA’s Internal Audit Services (IAS) unit will be corresponding
with you as well in the very near future in this regard. Subsequent to the audit or examination,
please forward to the IAS unit the audit report, as well as the Board’s resolution noting that the
records have been duly examined, and that the fines therein collected have been turned over to the
proper officials of the Village as required by law. Such materials may be mailed to the following:

Division of Internal Audit Services
Attn: Joan Casazza

185 Jordan Road, Suite 1

Troy, NY 12180

In the alternative, such materials may be sent via email to: jcasazza@nycourts.gov

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

S L7

Hofr. Ryan E. Hadsall

Lo % irn

Hon. Paul T. Bumbalo

cc: Hon. M. William Boller
Hon. Dean S. Puleo



SR TE B /1:4’/903«‘5’
NEW YORK | Homes and
grrorTNT: | Community Renewal
KATHY HOCHUL RUTHANNE VISNAUSKAS

Governor Commissioner/CEQ

April 28, 2025

Village of Lancaster
Attention: Lynne Ruda
5423 Broadway

Lancaster, New York 14086

Dear Lynne Ryda,

Thank you for submitting the Village of Lancaster’s application to New York’s Pro-Housing Communities
Program. We are delighted to inform you that we have completed the review of your application and the
Village of Lancaster has been certified as a Pro-Housing Community.

The housing shortage that faces New Yorkers affects residents of all ages and income levels, and the urgent
need to take action to address the issue is only growing. In New York State, rents have risen 40 to 60 percent
since 2015 and home prices have risen 50 to 80 percent. More than half of New York renters are rent-
burdened, meaning that they pay more than 30 percent of their income on rent — the second-highest rate in
the nation. Here at HCR, we understand the nexus between supply and affordability. In order to achieve
true equity of opportunity and to erase the gaps in access to health, education, and wealth-building, we must
guarantee that people have a choice as to where they live and raise their families. So much of the housing
progress we have made and want to make is dependent on the support of municipalities like yours who are
on the front lines helping families fight for housing that meets their needs.

As a certified Pro-Housing Community, the Village of Lancaster will now be eligible to apply for various
discretionary funding programs with up to $650 million in funding available.

We are excited that the Village of Lancaster has chosen to join the Pro-Housing Communities Program and
we look forward to continuing to work with the Village of Lancaster to ensure that all New Yorkers have

access to a safe, affordable, equitable place to live.

ommissionet/CEQ

641 Lexington Ave, New York, NY 10022 |www.hcr.ny.gov



T

' 5'[ u_[zo 25
Phone 716-683-1028
Fax 716-683-1029
www.lancastervillageny.gov
Village of Lancaster Department of Public

Works

Village of Lancaster Board of Trustees
Attn: Tammie Malone Schaefer

5423 Broadway

Lancaster, NY 14086

May 2, 2025
RE: Request to Buy Back Vacation Time

Honorable Members of the Village Board,

I am writing this letter to formally request to buy back one week (40 hours) of unused vacation time from FY
2024-2025. I will be using the other 36 hours in my bank prior to May- 31, 2025.

If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.
Sincerely,

ka/ 67'

Wayne K. Cisco
5200 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086
(716) 683.1028



RESOLUTIONS May 12, 2025
1 st 2nd
Motion Motion
1. Motion to approve the following resolution:

ACTION -

Approved
Denied
Refer to:

ACTION -

A pprov€d—
Denied
Reler to:

“ACTION -

Approved
Denied
Reler to:

ACTION -

Approved
Denied

Refer to:

ACTION -

Approved
Denied
Referto:

ACTION -

Approved
Denied
Refer to:

=~

ACTION -

Approved
Denied
Refer to:

ACTION -

Page 1

Approved
Denied
Refer 10:

Be it resolved by the Village Board of the Village of Lancaster;

That whereas the Village of Lancaster wishes to install bumpers along the edge of that portion
of a parking lot adjacent to and to the east of 5427-5429 Broadway, the Village Board of the
Village of Lancaster hereby acknowledges for and on behalf of the Village of Lancaster the

“assumption of the bumpers” ownership and maintenance.

Resolution authorizing DPW to install new sidewalks on the east side of Lake Avenue, at the
west side of Veterans Park, including new ADA ramps on both north and south ends, with
work to be done by DPW staff and the cost of supplies estimated at $7,500.00.

Resolution authorizing Mayor Schroeder to sign, approve, and submit a New York State Grant
Contract #C1003029 with the NYS Department of State along with other required documents
for a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building with funding in the amount of $206,000
awarded through the NY Forward Program.

Resolution authorizing Mayor Schroeder to sign and approve a Professional Services
Agreement with LaBella Associates, D.P.C. for services related to the NY Forward Initiative
Project for a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building at a total cost not to exceed $32,500.

Last Updated: 5/9/2025 10:30 AM



Slia[sops

Mike Stegmeier

Poodry, Kathryn D. (DOT) <Kathryn.Poodry@dot.ny.gov>

From:

Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 2:27 PM

To: Arthur Herdzik

Cc: Deirdre Miller: Gavin O'Brien; John Mikoley; Mike Stegmeier; Tammie Schaefer; William

Schroeder; Wayne Cisco
Subject: RE: V Lancaster sidewalk (ROW)
Attachments: PERM 33 SEPT 2023 REVISION.pdf; PERM224-f (1-24) (Fillable).pdf

Hello.

Please see attachment for blank PERM 33 non-utility permit application. Also attached is a blank 224-f form that is
referenced. The 224-f form will need to be completed by the Village. For this specific description of work, it’'san
acknowledgement that should prevailing wages apply, the Village would abide by those requirements and pay
accordingly. its not relevant, but Albany requires a form be completed by the primary applicant for all permits.

lication, supply a copy of the passed Resolution describing and
ddress/location details specified (the sample provided below is
Village Undertaking or ACORD 25 and 855 for
proposed bumper installation, manufacturer

The Village would need to complete the app
assuming maintenance responsibility with a
sufficient but we need a copy of official Resolution passed),
insurances, a sketch or ptan sheet with location and dimensions of
sheets for the proposed bumpers at the minimum for review.

Application fees are waived for the Village as we do not collect fees from Municipalities.

Please disregard the request for 5427 Broadway’s applicant information.

ACORD 25 shall list NYSDOT as additional insured and as centificate holder at 100 Seneca St in Buffalo, NY 14203.

| believe | have answered all your questions. If notor additional information is needed, just let me know.

Have a good weekend.
Kathy



PERM 224-f(2) Labor Law § 224-f, Worker on excavations. (1/24)

Permit Applicant Certification Regarding Labor Law Section 224-f(2)

Instructions: This certification must be completed by all applicants for a NYSDOT highway work permit. For additional
background, go to enforcement-guidance-update-2-roadway-excavation-quality-assurance-act.pdf, and see Labor Law §

224-f (attached).

Part 1: Is the entity applying for and performing all work under this permit a utility subject to the jurisdiction of the Public

Service Commission? [ YES [J NO.
If YES — section 224-f does not apply, proceed to Part 6 of this form.

If NO — proceed to Part 2.

Part 2: Is the entity applying for or performing any work under this permit doing so under contract or subcontract with a utility
subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Service Commission? [ YES [ NO.

If YES — proceed to Part 3.
If NO — section 224-f does not apply, proceed to Part 6 of this form.

Part 3: Is the entity applying for or performing any work under this permit doing so under contract or subcontract with the

Long Island Power Authority, a television or broadband provider? [J YES [J NO.
If YES — section 224-f does not apply. Proceed to Part 6 of this form and you are done.

If NO — proceed to Part 4.

Part 4: Is the permit for a location and a project already underway under an existing utility contract signed or solicited before
9/15/23? [ YES [] NO.

If YES — section 224-f does not apply. Proceed to Part 6 of this form and you are done.
If NO ~ proceed to Part 5.

Part 5: Is the work to be performed under this permit under a general contract awarded before 9/15/23 with a subcontract
awarded thereafter? [J YES [ NO.

If YES — section 224-f does not apply. Proceed to Part 6 of this form and you are done.

IfNO -
e Labor Law § 224-f applies;
e read the Labor Law § 224-f, attached, regarding your legal obligations to ensure the payment of at least

the applicable prevailing wage; and
e complete Part 6.

Part 6: Certification. | certify that the information | have given on this form is true and complete, and that if Labor Law § 224-f
applies, that an agreement for the payment of prevailing wages has been contractually mandated for the permit work.

WARNING: Intentionally making a false statement or providing false or misleading information in connection with this form is a
criminal offense that may subject you to prosecution under law.

NOTICE: Submitting this form to NYSDOT satisfies the filing requirement of Labor Law § 224-f(2).

Print name here: Print title here:
{if applying for a corporation or other business entity, print your full name and business title)

Business Name:

Sign Here X: Date:




PERM 224-f(2) Labor Law § 224-f. Worker on excavations. (1/24)

Labor Law § 224-f. Workers on excavations.

1. For the purposes of this section:

a. "Covered excavation project” shall mean construction work for which a permit may be issued to a contractor or
subcontractor of a utility company by the state, a county or a municipality to use, excavate, or open a street. A "covered
excavation project” shall exclude construction work for which a permit may be issued to a service provided as defined by
subdivision twenty-three of section one thousand twenty-b of the public authorities law.

b. "Department of jurisdiction" shall mean the department of the state, board or officer in the state, or municipal corporation
or commission or board appointed pursuant to law, whose duty it is to issue a permit to a utility company, or its contractors or

subcontractors, for a covered excavation project.

¢. "Fiscal officer" shall mean the commissioner; except for covered excavation projects performed pursuant to a permit issued
by a city with a population in excess of one million in which case the "fiscal officer" shall be the comptroller or other analogous

officer of such city.

d. "Utility company" shall have the same meaning as subdivision twenty-three of section two of the public service law.

2. Each contractor or subcontractor to a utility company shall be required to pay not less than the prevailing rate of wage in
the same trade or occupation in the locality within the state where such covered excavation project is situated to each laborer,
worker, or mechanic in the employ of the contractor or subcontractor to a utility company, performing work on the project in
accordance with sections two hundred twenty and two hundred twenty-b of this article. No permit shall be issued for a
covered excavation project until an agreement confirming the payment of wages as required by this section has been
contractually mandated and filed with the department of jurisdiction, and all permits issued after the effective date of this

section shall include therein a copy of this section.

3. The enforcement of any covered excavation project pursuant to this section shall be subject to the requirements of sections

two hundred twenty, two hundred twenty-a, two hundred twenty-b, two hundred twenty-three and two hundred twenty-four-
b of this article and section two hundred twenty-seven of this chapter and within the jurisdiction of the fiscal officer; provided,

however, nothing contained in this section shall be deemed to construe any covered excavation project as otherwise being

considered public work pursuant to this article.

4. The fiscal officer may issue rules and regulations governing the provisions of this section. Any violation of this section shall
be grounds for determinations and orders pursuant to section two hundred twenty-b of this article.



NEW YORK Department'of
srorinm | Transportation

Form PERM 33 (September 2023)
Highway Work Permit Application for Non-Utility Work

Instructions and Form
(For Commercial Driveways, use Form PERM 33-COM)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE APPLICATION

FRONT OF APPLICATION

Three (3) copies of the entire application, work ptans and all other supporting documents must be submitted. At the time of
application, certain information relative to fees and deposits may be contingent upon determinations to be made by the
Department. In such cases, the information may be left blank and remittance withheld until a determination is made.

Please complete the following:

e Permittee name, address, phone and email address. Provide joint applicant contact information, if appropriate. If there are
additional applicants, attach contact information on a separate sheet.

o Name and phone number(s) of emergency contact person.

e If permit is to be retumed to someone other than the applicant, complete this section.

e If the guarantee deposit or bond is to be retumed to someone other than applicant, complete this section.

Estimate the cost of work being performed in the state highway right-of-way and provide this figure.

o Indicate anticipated duration of work to be performed with starting date and ending date.

e Indicate the form of insurance coverage to be provided.

« Give a brief description of the work that is proposed to be done under this permit.

e Indicate whether any overhead and/or underground work (5 foot or greater depth) is included in the proposed work.

o Plans and specifications should accompany this application for any work that involves construction within the state
highway right-of-way. Place a check mark on the lines for plans and specifications if they are attached to this application.

Location of the project should be identified by State Route, highway reference marker(s), and the municipality and county

in which work area Is located.

« In regard to State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR), indicate the type of action, the name of the Lead Agency, and
what date the final determination was made, if available.

« Signature of applicant and date.

« Signature of second applicant, if any, and date.

BACK OF APPLICATION

¢ Check type of work that will be performed.
« In the appropriate column, indicate total amount of permit
o Indicate type of performance security provided (bond, deposit, letter of credit), if required.

e Indicate check number of deposit or bond number.

fees (Include insurance fee for residential work)




RESPONSIBILITIES OF PERMITTEE
PURSUANT TO NON-UTILITY HIGHWAY WORK PERMITS

NOTE: FAILURE TO OBTAIN A PERMIT OR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE TERMS OF A PERMIT MAY RESULT IN THE
DEPARTMENT HALTING THE ACTIVITY FOR WHICH A PERMIT IS REQUIRED UNTIL ADEQUATE CORRECTIONS HAVE BEEN MADE.

1. LIMITATIONS ON USE: The specific site identified in this Highway Work Permit, and only that site identified, will be available for use by
Permittee only for the purpose stated in this Permit and only on the date(s) and for the duration designated in this permit. This Permit does not
authorize any infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulations, is limited to the extent of the authority of NYSDOT and is transferable
and assignable only with the written consent of the Commissioner of Transportation. The Commissioner reserves the right to modify fees and
to revoke or annul the Permit at any time, at his/her discretion without a hearing or the necessity of showing cause.

2. CONDITIONS OF USE: NYSDOT makes no affirmation that the state-owned site used for the work has been designed, constructed, or
maintained for the purpose of the conduct of the work. The Permittee assumes full responsibility for planning and conducting a safe and
orderly project that does not expose workers or the public to any unreasonable hazards and that involves a minimal disruption of the normal
uses of the state and local highway systems. It shall be the sole obligation of the Permittee to determine whether the site is suitable for the
purpose of safely conducting the work. The Permittee assumes all responsibility for assuring that the use of the highway/property conforms to

applicable requirements of law, including, but not limited to those set forth herein.

Permittee agrees to assure compliance with New York Labor Law, industrial regulations, and OSHA regulations, and to assure the
safety of all workers who will be engaged to do the permitted work.

3. INSURANCE COVERAGE: Permittee must have the insurance that is required for the type and extent of the work being performed.
throughout the term of the highway work permit. Expiration

Permittee agrees to maintain liability insurance in full force and effect
of, or lack of, liability insurance automatically terminates the permit.

To comply with this requirement, an applicant must furnish the Department with one of the following:

o A completed Certificate of Insurance evidencing the required types and limits of insurance coverage, with New York State
ial general liability policy. An industry standard

Department of Transportation named as an additional insured on the commerci
ACORD 25 form with an ACORD 855 Addendum is acceptable evidence of the required coverage. Certificate Holder should be

indicated as New York State Department of Transportation, with the address of the issuing office.

ertaking Agreement may be provided by Municipalities, Public Utilities, Transportation Corporations, Public

e Afully executed Und
or Railroads, as an alternative to providing proof of commercial general liability the insurance.

Service Corporations

« Homeowners applying for a residential work permit (driveways, improvements or tree work) and performing their own work have the
option to pay a $25 Insurance Fee, and waive the requirement to provide insurance coverage. Any contractor doing work on the
homeowner's behalf must be listed on the permit and provide satisfactory proof of insurance as set forth below.

See “PERM 33 Submission Package Requirements” on page 4 for more detailed guidance on insurance coverage.

4. COMPENSATION AND DISABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE: Permittee is required to have compensation insurance and disability
coverage as noted in the provisions of the Worker's Compensation Law and Acts amendatory thereof for the entire period of the permit, or the
permit will be invalid. Applicant must provide proof of coverage (Form C-105.2, U-26.3 or SI-12 for Worker's Compensation, and DB-120.1 or

DB-155 for Disability Benefits), or provide proof of exemption from this requirement (Form CE-200).

ion afforded to NYSDOT under any available insurance, NYSDOT
mployees, or to any other person, or to any property, occurring on the
ther undertaken by Pemmittee’s own forces or by contractor or other

5. INDEMNIFICATION: Permittee agrees that, in addition to any protect
shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the Permittee, its agents, e

site or in any way associated with Permittee’s activities or operations; whe
agents working on Permittee’s behalf. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Permittee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the

State of New York, NYSDOT and their agents from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to
attorneys’ fees, arising out of any claim, including but not limited to claims for personal injuries, property damage or wrongful death and/or
environmental claims, in any way associated with the Pemmittee’s activities or operations, no matter how caused.

6. NOTIFICATION: The following should be notified at the appropriate time as shown below:

Commissioner of Transportation, through the NYSDOT regional office, one week prior to commencing work.
Area gas distributors, 72 hours prior to any blasting.
Utility companies with facilities in work areas, before starting work (in accordance with Industrial Code 53).
Permission from utility company must be obtained before commencing work affecting the utilities’ facilities.
NYSDOT regional signal maintenance shop, 3 days prior to starting work (traffic signal work).

NYSDOT regional office, at conclusion of work, and retumn original copy of permit to Resident Engineer.

Regional or Resident Engineer’s Office, one week in advance, each time

NOTIFICATION FOR ANNUAL PERMITS: Notify by phone, the
tification by phone, fax or email should be made as soon as is practical, no

regular maintenance work is to be performed. In emergencies, no
later than the next business day.



7. SITE CARE AND RESTORATION: A bond, deposit (bank cashier’s check), or a Letter of Credit, in an amount designated by the
Department of Transportation, may be required before a permit is issued, in order to guarantee restoration of the site to its original condition. A
fully executed Undertaking Agreement may be accepted as an alternative security, where applicable. If the Department is obliged to restore
the site to its original condition, the costs to the Department will be deducted from the amount of the permittee's deposit at the conclusion of
the work. Costs in excess of the bond/deposit on file will be billed directly to the permittee. If permittee posts a Letter of Credit, the
Department may elect to have a contractor restore the site, and issue a draft drawn against the Letter of Credit as payment.

Anyone working within state highway right-of-way must wear high visibility apparel and hard hat meeting ANSI Class 2
requirements.

No unnecessary obstruction is to be left on the pavement or the state highway right-of-way, or in such a position as to block waming
signs during non-working hours.

No work shall be done to obstruct drainage or divert creeks, water courses or sluices onto the state highway right-of-way.

Ali false work must be removed and all excavations must be filled in and restored to the satisfaction of the Regional Maintenance
Engineer.

8. COSTS INCURRED BY ISSUANCE OF THIS PERMIT: All costs beyond the limits of any liability insurance, surety deposits, etc. are the
responsibility of the permittee. The State shall be held free of any costs incurred by the issuance of this permit, direct or indirect.

9. SUBMITTING WORK PLANS: The applicant will submit three (3) copies of work plans and/or maps as required by the Department. This
shall include (but not limited to) such details as: measurements of driveways with relation to nearest property corner; location of existing and
proposed poles, guide rail, signal equipment, trees or drainage structures; positions of guys supporting poles; a schedule of the number of
poles and feet of excavation necessary for completion of work on the State right-of-way. A description of the proposed method of construction

will be included.

¢ Plan work with future adjustments in mind, as any relocation, replacement or removal of the installation authorized by this permit and

made necessary by future highway maintenance, reconstruction or new construction, will be the responsibility of the permittee.

Driveway plans should be prepared in accordance with NYSDOT POLICY AND STANDARDS FOR ENTRANCES TO STATE
HIGHWAYS.

¢ The permittee must coordinate the work with any State construction being conducted.

10. TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE: A plan detailing how the permittee intends to maintain and protect traffic shall be submitted with work plans.
Traffic shall be maintained on the highway in a safe manner during working and non-working hours until construction is completed. The
permittee is responsible for traffic protection and maintenance, including adequate use of signs, barriers, and flag persons during working and
non-working hours until construction is completed. All sketches will be stamped with "MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC SHALL BE IN
CONFORMANCE WITH THE NATIONAL MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.”

11. COST OF INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION: Prior to issuance of the Highway Work Permit, the permittee may be required to sign an
INSPECTION PAYMENT AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY WORK PERMITS (FORM PERM 50) agreeing to the payment of construction
inspection charges, based on the number of work days involved. In certain cases, the permittee may also be required to sign a PAYMENT
AGREEMENT FOR HIGHWAY WORK PERMITS DESIGN REVIEW (FORM PERM 51) agreeing to design review charges, based on the
number of work hours in which Department employees were engaged in design review activity.

12. SCOPE:

Areas Covered: Permits issued are for highways, bridges and culverts over which the New York State Department of Transportation
has jurisdiction. (Local governments issue permits for highways under their jurisdiction.) Work locations must be approved by the

Department.

Maintenance: Unless noted otherwise, applicant shall be fully responsible for the maintenance of all items installed and/or altered as
shown on the approved permit plans and documents. Property owners having access to a state highway shall be fully responsible for
the maintenance of their driveway in accordance with POLICY AND STANDARDS FOR ENTRANCES TO STATE HIGHWAYS.

Work Commencement: The Permittee shall have a copy of the permit available at the site during the construction period. Work
should start within 30 days from validation date of permit or said permit may be revoked.

13. REPORTING ACCIDENTS: Permittee is required to report any accidents that occur during the course of the permit work to their insurance
company, and to provide the Department with a copy of any such report.

14. COMPLETION OF PROJECT: Upon completion of the work within the State highway right-of-way authorized by the work permit, the
person and his or its successors in interest shall be responsible for the maintenance and repair of such work or portion of such work as set

forth within the Terms and Conditions of the Highway Work Permit.



PERM 33 Submission Package Requirements

Submit three (3) copies of the final submission package: Submission package must include the entire PERM 33 with all
work plans and supporting documents, including the following (check all that apply):

Stamped Final Plans — Submit in PDF file format on CD, with three (3) paper copies (1" = 50°), or as requested

ACORD 25 - Certificate of Insurance, with NYSDOT named as Additional Insured (See line 3 below).

ACORD 855 - New York Construction Certificate of Liability Insurance Addendum (See line 3 below).

PERM 1, 2, 6 or 16 - Undertaking Agreement, if applicable (See line 4 below).

PERM 36 - Attachment to Highway Work Permit — Consultant Inspection, if applicable

PERM 44 - Surety Bond — Performance bond in Applicant’s name, or deposit (Bank cashier's check required)

PERM 50 - Inspection/Supervision Payment Agreement, if applicable
Proof of Worker's Compensation Insurance (Form C-105.2, U-26.3 or SI-12), or proof of exemption (Form CE-200)

Proof of Disability Benefits Coverage (Form DB-120.1 or DB-155), or proof of exemption (Form CE-200)

Permit Fee (Include $25 Insurance Fee for residential operations)

Other (specify):

Insurance Requirements

1) In most cases, Permittee must provide proof of Commercial General Liability insurance coverage with limits of liability
not less than $1,000,000 per claim/occurrence, unless any of the following circumstances exist, in which case the limits
of liability shall not be less than $5,000,000 per claim/occurrence:

(a) The estimated value of permitted work in state right-of-way is $250,000 or more (see line 6 below);
(b) The permitted work requires or includes the construction, alteration or maintenance of underground features at

any depth five feet or more below grade;
(c) The permitted work requires or includes the construction, alteration or maintenance of overhead features that

include, but are not limited to, traffic signals, overhead sign structures, retaining walls or other grade separation
structures.

2) Exceptions to the above liability limits include: (a) Annual maintenance permits require limits of liability not less than
$5,000,000 per claim/occurrence; (b) Permits for vegetation control activities require limits of liability not less than
$1,000,000 per claim/occurrence; (c) Residential driveway permits require limits of liability not less than $500,000 per

claim/occurrence; and (d) Adopt-a-Highway permits are exempt.

3) ACORD 25 with ACORD 855 (New York Construction Addendum) shall be submitted as an acceptable proof of liability
coverage. New York State Department of Transportation should be named as Additional Insured and as the Certificate

Holder at the address of the issuing office.

4) Municipalities, public utilities, public authorities and railroads may elect to provide a fully executed Undertaking
Agreement as a substitute for providing proof of insurance coverage, or any other financial security otherwise required.

5) Homeowners may pay a $25 Insurance Fee in lieu of providing proof of insurance, however any contractor performing
on behalf of a homeowner and who is named on the permit must provide proof of insurance as outlined above.

6) When the estimated cost of work being performed in the right-of-way equals or exceeds $250,000, Permittee must
additionally provide proof of a Protective Liability (OCP) insurance policy with a minimum liability limit of $1,000,000

per occurrence, with New York State Department of Transportation as Named Insured.

Permittee agrees to maintain liability insurance in full force and effect throughout the term of the highway work permit.
Expiration of, or lack of, liability insurance coverage automatically terminates the permit.

For more information on insurance requirements, go to: www.dot.ny.qov/permits-insurance




PERM 33 NON-UTILITY (9/23) SUBMIT THREE (3) COPIES

STATE OF NEW YORK DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
HIGHWAY WORK PERMIT APPLICATION FOR NON-UTILITY WORK

Application is hereby made for a highway work permit: For Joint application, name and address of Applicant 2 below:

Name Name

Address Address

City State Zip City State Zip
Applicant Phone ( ) Applicant 2 Phone ( )

Applicant 2 Email Address

Applicant Email Address

Emergency Contact

Emergency Phone ( )

RETURN PERMIT TO: (if different from Permittee) RETURN DEPOSIT/BOND TO: (if different from Permittee)

Name Name
Address Address
City State Zip City State Zip

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED WORK:

Estimated cost of work being performed in highway right-of-way: $
(applies to the operations indicated on the reverse side)

Anticipated duration of work: From to

WILL OVERHEAD OR UNDERGROUND (5'+) OPERATIONS BE INVOLVED IN THE PROPOSED WORK? YES__ NO___
ATTACHED: Plans Specifications

LOCATION: State Route: Located Between Reference Markers and

City/Town/Village of County of

SEQR REVIEW (select one)

[ 1Typeil [ 1Typel [ }Unlisted LEAD AGENCY: DATE OF DETERMINATION:

Insurance (check one}): General Liability Insurance Undertaking Insurance Fee (residential operations only)

NOTE: PERMIT IS ISSUED CONTINGENT UPON ALL LOCAL REQUIREMENTS BEING SATISFIED

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT, | HEREBY REQUEST A HIGHWAY WORK PERMIT, AND DO ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE
TO THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF PERMITTEE AND THE OTHER OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH IN THIS PERMIT AND WARRANT COMPLIANCE

THEREWITH.

Applicant Signature Date

Applicant 2 Signature Date
Approval recommended by Resident Engineer Res No Date
Approved by Regional Traffic Engineer Reg No Date




Description of Miscellaneous Operation:

Operational Type and Description ‘ P;::it '"s:;‘?ce Total Fees
DRIVEWAYS
5a1 Residential Driveway (includes field entrances) 15 25
5a6 Temporary access road or street g
For Commercial Driveways and subdivisions streets, use form PERM 33-COM
IMPROVEMENTS
5b1 Residential 15
5b2a Commercial- Sidewalk, curb paving, drainage, etc. 200 |
5b2b Commercial - Grade, seed, improve land contour, clear brush 100 §
5b2c Commercial ~ Resurface existing road or driveway 50 [
§b2d1 | Annual resurfacing of roadways and driveways ~ PER COUNTY 150
Number of counties:
S5b2d2 | Annual resurfacing of roadways and driveways - PER REGION 400
TREE WORK
5c1 Residential 15
Sc2a Commercial removal or planting 25
5c2b Commercial pruning, applying chemicals to stumps 25
5c3 Vegetation control for advertising signs - PER SIGN 150
Number of Signs:
MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION AND WORK OPERATIONS
5d1 Beautify ROW (civic groups only) N/C E
5d2a Temporary signs, banners, décor (not-for-profit organizations) N/C
5d2b Temporary signs, banners, décor (Other organizations) 25
5d3 Traffic control signals 500
5d4 Warning and entrance signs 25 &
5d5 Miscellaneous - Requiring substantial review (describe below) 400 8
5d6 Miscellaneous (describe below) 25
OTHER TYPES OF HIGHWAY WORK PERMITS
6 Encroachment caused by DOT acquisition of property 25 =
7a1 Compulsory permit required for demolition requested by DOT N/C |
7a2 Compulsory permit required for moving requested by DOT N/C &
7b Improvement to meet Department standards N/C =
8 Miscellaneous (describe below) 25 f=
9 Adopt-a-Highway NC [

PERFORMANCE SECURITY (Select one):

Guarantee Deposit Amount:

Guarantee Deposit Check Number or Bond Number

Guarantee Deposit - Cash[ ]

Performance Bond [ ]

Letter of Credit[ ]

(To be completed by NYSDOT issuing office)

Project Identification Number

State Highway (SH) Number

Highway Work Permit No.

Record ID Number

PERM 33 (9/23) REVERSE



If the following section of NYS Labor Law applies to the work to be performed under this permit, the application for and
acceptance of this permit constitute the applicant’s/permittee’s agreement confirming the payment of wages as required by

such section has been contractually mandated.

New York Labor Law § 224-f.

Workers on excavations.

[Effective September 15, 2023]

1. For the purposes of this section:

a. “Covered excavation project” shall mean construction work for which a permit may be issued to a contractor or
subcontractor of a utility company by the state, a county or a municipality to use, excavate, or open a street. A “covered
excavation project” shall exclude construction work for which a permit may be issued to a service provided as defined
by subdivision twenty-three of section one thousand twenty-b of the public authorities’ law.

b. “Department of jurisdiction” shall mean the department of the state, board or officer in the state, or municipal
corporation or commission or board appointed pursuant to law, whose duty it is to issue a permit to a utility company,

or its contractors or subcontractors, for a covered excavation project.

¢. “Fiscal officer” shall mean the commissioner; except for covered excavation projects performed pursuant to a permit
issued by a city with a population in excess of one million in which case the “fiscal officer” shall be the comptroller or

other analogous officer of such city.

d. “Utility company” shall have the same meaning as subdivision twenty-three of section two of the public service law.

2. Each contractor or subcontractor to a utility company shall be required to pay not less than the prevailing rate of wage
in the same trade or occupation in the locality within the state where such covered excavation project is situated to each
laborer, worker, or mechanic in the employ of the contractor or subcontractor to a utility company, performing work on
the project in accordance with sections two hundred twenty and two hundred twenty-b of this article. No permit shall
be issued for a covered excavation project until an agreement confirming the payment of wages as required by this
section has been contractually mandated and filed with the department of jurisdiction, and all permits issued after the
effective date of this section shall include therein a copy of this section.

3. The enforcement of any covered excavation project pursuant to this section shall be subject to the requirements of
sections two hundred twenty, two hundred twenty-a, two hundred twenty-b, two hundred twenty-three and two hundred
twenty-four-b of this article and section two hundred twenty-seven of this chapter and within the jurisdiction of the
fiscal officer; provided, however, nothing contained in this section shall be deemed to construe any covered excavation
project as otherwise being considered public work pursuant to this article.

4. The fiscal officer may issue rules and regulations governing the provisions of this section. Any violation of this

section shall be grounds for determinations and orders pursuant to section two hundred twenty-b of this article.



Mike Stegmeier

—
From: John Mikoley
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 8:18 PM
To: Mike Stegmeier
Cc: Deirdre Miller; William Schroeder; Tammie Schaefer; Gavin O'Brien; Arthur Herdzik
Subject: New Veteran's Park sidewalk
Mike

Please prepare a resolution for our next meeting authorizing the DPW to install a new sidewalk the east
side of Lake Avenue, at the west end of Veteran's Park.

Approximate dimensions of the new sidewalk will be 5' wide by 298' long. This will also include
installation of new ramps on both north and south ends. The work will be done by DPW staff, and cost of

supplies is estimated at $7,500.

This will enable pedestrians on the east side of Lake Avenue to have continuous sidewalk access.

Please see attached.

John Mikoley

Trustee, Village of Lancaster, NY

Public Works / Sewer / Building, Lights Codes
T 716-983-1233

5423 Broadway Avenue, Lancaster, NY 14086
lancastervillageny.gov




Village of Lancaster - Contract C1003029
Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building - 3
DATE :E J12]2025

INSTRUCTIONS FOR NEW NYF CONTRACTS

Grant Contract and Signature Pages

Review all sections and attachments of the contract and let us know if you have any questions or concerns
before signing and submitting the contract. If you need to make any changes to any part of the contract,

please indicate so in writing to DOS (please do not handwrite changes into the contract). Some specific

areas to review:

Page 1 of the Face Page - confirm that all information entered is correct (Contractor (Grantee)
Name & Address, Federal Tax ID number, Vendor ID number, Primary Email Address,
Contractor Status/Exemption Codes and, if applicable, Charities Registration number).

o Page 2 of the Face Page - verify that the Current Contract Funding Amount is correct. Also,
verify that the Current Contract Term listed reflect the time period during which the project
activities are to be undertaken and project costs incurred. Be advised that activities and related
costs occurring outside of this time period will not be eligible for reimbursement.

o Page 6 of Attachment A-1, verify that the Mayor’s contact information is complete and correct.

Review the budget in Attachment B to confirm that the costs anticipated for this project and the

MWBE goals are accurately reflected. Verify that costs listed in: A. Salaries are for time spent by

official employees of Grantee only; B. Travel, C. Supplies, and D. Equipment are for costs

incurred directly by the Grantee; E. Contractual is for contractors procured directly by the

Grantee only; and F. Other contains any other relevant costs which do not fit into the previous

e}

categories.
o Alsoin Attachment B, Category E, confirm that the name and address of any known

subcontractors are indicated. If you know the subcontractor(s) that will be performing any of the
work in Category E (even if it’s another municipality), this information must be listed in the
contract. If a subcontractor has not yet been selected for a particular item, “To be determined”

should be indicated.
Review the project description and tasks in Attachment C to confirm that the project description

and tasks are accurately reflected.

Signature Page

The person authorized to execute this contract should sign the signature page and have their signature
notarized. All signature fields and notary fields must be filled out and the notary stamp must be legible.

Contact Update Form
Complete the form to indicate the name and address of the Village of Lancaster and the contact

information for the Mayor. You should also enter the name and contact information for the MWBE
Liaison and you may also enter up to (2) additional contacts to receive contract-related correspondence

from DOS.

A webinar to assist you with completing this form is located here:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0z0gRyNcXBM

o Make sure that the official mailing address of the Grantee is correct and complete.

o Verify/correct the contact information for the Mayor. Make sure all fields are complete.
Contact person #1 and #2 — confirm that the correct people are listed. Ideally, we’d like to see the

o
Grant Administrator and Project Manager listed. Verify/correct/provide the names and contact
information for each of the contacts. Make sure all fields are complete.

o MWBE Liaison — enter the person who will be responsible MWBE goals and updates for this

contract and provide their and contact information. Note that this person must be an employee of
the Village of Lancaster and should match the person entered as the Designated Liaison.on

MWBE Form A.
o Note that each email address must be unique to the individual.



Village of Lancaster - Contract C1003029
Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building

Contract Review Form
Answer all questions on the form based on your review of the contract. If any questions are answered

“NO”, a written explanation must be provided on the form or attached. The form should be signed and
dated by the Mayor. Provide the contact information for the person that we should contact if we have

questions during the contract execution process.

MWBE Forms A. B. D and D-1
See MWBE Forms PDF for forms and instructions.

Status Report Template

The Status Report Template is attached as a separate Word file with some information prepopulated
including the top section, the task list table (based on the Work Plan of the contract) and the MWBE
goals. This form is required to be completed prior to contract execution to establish a preliminary timeline

for completion of contract tasks.

A webinar to assist you with completing this form is located here:
hitps://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Wdc30PXSpO8

This form is to be completed by doing the following:
o Enter the Date Prepared at the top of the form.
o Columns 3-5 of the task list table should be completed to reflect the expected timeline for

completion of tasks.
If any tasks have already started and/or been completed, Columns 3-7 should be completed to

show the status of those tasks.
If any costs have been incurred to date by MWBE firms, fill in this information under the table.

Fill in any applicable narratives and enter your contact information at the bottom of the form.
Please use the “Status_Guidelines” PDF email attachment to assist you in completing this form.
Reach out to your DOS Project Manager if you have questions or would like assistance with your
timeline (see the bottom of this guidance document for contact information).

Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire

The Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (VR(Q) must be completed under the following circumstances
only:

o

O O 0 0O

If the Grantee listed on the face page is a Not-for-Profit (NFP), and the contract amount is
$50,000 or more, the NFP must complete the VRQ (municipalities are exempt from VRQ).
If the Grantee (NFP or municipality) has any known subcontractors which will receive state funds

equaling $100,000 or more, the vendor(s) must complete the VRQ.

o

O

To complete the VRQ, please go to https://www.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/index.htm. Please note that the
information provided must be updated every 6 months. If you have questions about VendRep, please
contact them at (8§66) 370-4672 or ITservicedesk@osc.nv.gov.

In addition, the following documents must be submitted by NFP Grantees to support the VRQ:
o Proof of Workers” Comp Coverage (Form C-105.2, U-26.3, SI-12, SIG-105.2 or CE-200).
o Proof of Disability Coverage (Form DB-120.1, DB-155, or CE-200).
o Acord forms are not acceptable proof of coverage.

NFP’s are strongly encouraged to confirm the following:
o NFP Grantees and/or subcontractors — The entity’s NYS Charities annual filings are up-to-date:

https://www.charitiesnys.com/
o NFP Grantees only - The entity’s prequalification status is “Prequalified” in the Grants Gateway:

https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants NYSGG/login2.aspx




Village of Lancaster - Contract C1003029
Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building

Executive Order 16
On March 17, 2022, Governor Kathy Hochul issued Executive Order 16 prohibiting state agencies and

authorities from contracting with businesses conducting business in Russia. Please see the guidelines
under this Executive Order and the Certification here: https://ogs.ny.gov/EO-16. The certification must be

submitted only if the grantee is a non-municipal entity.

NYS Contract System
Please visit https://ny.newnycontracts.com to confirm that the Grantee is registered in the NYS Contract

System (NYSCS) and that the MWBE Liaison entered on the CUF and MWBE Form A is able to access
the NYSCS. If you have any questions, or are unable to access the NYSCS, please contact
opdcontracts@dos.ny.gov and we will assist you.

Submitting Contract Package for Execution
Once everything is reviewed and signed, submit the following:
o Contract Review Form
Contact Update Form
Signature page
MWBE Forms A and B, and D or D-1 (depending on which are applicable)
Completed status report template
VRQ information, if required (see above):
» PDF of the completed Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire(s)
» Proof of Disability Coverage (Form DB-120.1, DB-155, or CE-200).

Submit the above documents within 30 days to opdcontracts(@dos.ny.gov for review and processing.

When your contract submission is received, we will review for completeness then forward to our Fiscal
office, who will have the contract executed by the State. The execution process usually takes about 2
months. When fully executed, a copy of the contract will be forwarded to the Grantee via email.

O 0 0 0 0

In the meantime, if you would like to check on the execution status of this contract please visit:
http://wwe2.o0sc.state.nv.us/transparency/contracts/contractsearch.cfm. Search contracts by Vendor Name
(Village of Lancaster) and/or Contract Number (C1003029). If the contract is listed in the search results,
it means the contract has been executed. The exact execution date can be found in the last column. You
can expect to receive official notification from us within a couple of weeks after execution. Note, if your
contract begins with the letter “T”, it may not be listed on this website right away — please contact us

directly for updates.

If you have questions, please contact Amanda Jochum at 518-486-3529 or opdcontracts@dos.ny.gov or
your project manager Angela Keppel at 716-847-3069 or angela.keppel@dos.ny.gov.




| IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed or approved this Contract for Grants on the dates
below their signatures.

CONTRACTOR: STATE AGENCY:
Village of Lancaster NYS Department of State
5423 Broadway One Commerce Plaza
Lancaster, NY 14086 99 Washington Avenue — Suite 1010
Albany, NY 12231
By: By
Printed Name Printed Name
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
1
STATE OF NEW YORK
County of
On the day of , , before me personally appeared

to me known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that they reside at

, that they are the

of the , the contractor described herein which executed the

foregoing instrument; and that they signed their name thereto as authorized by the contractor

named on the face page of this Contract for Grants.

(Notary)

ATTORNEY GENERAL’S SIGNATURE STATE COMPTROLLER’S SIGNATURE
Printed Name Printed Name

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 1 of 1, Contract for Grants - Signature Page



Village of Lancaster - Contract C1003029
Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building

Contact Update Form

Please update/specify information for up to (4) people to receive contract related correspondence from DOS.
Ideally, we would want to see the CEO, Grant Administrator, Project Manager and MWBE Liaison listed on this

form. All changes should be made in the Changes/Additions/Corrections column.

Changes/Additions/Corrections

Official mailing Village of Lancaster
address of the

Village of 5423 Broadway
Lancaster Lancaster, NY 14086
Mayor of the Name: Lynne Ruda

Village of o

Lancaster: Title: Mavor

Affiliation:  Village of Lancaster

Email: Iruda@lancastervillage.org

Phone: 716-683-2105

Contact Person #1: | Name:

Title:
Affiliation:

Email:

Phone:

Contact Person #2: | Name:

Title:
Affiliation:

Email:

Phone:

MWRBE Liaison: Name:
Title:

Affiliation:  Village of Lancaster

Email:

Phone:




Village of Lancaster - Contract C1003029
Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building

Contract Review Form
On Face Page (page 1), are the Contractor Name, Federal Tax ID Number and NYS Vendor ID Number correct?

On Face Page (page 2), does the Current Contract Term (7/1/2025 - 6/30/2030) reflect the time period during
which all project costs will be incurred?

In Attachment B, does the budget accurately reflect the anticipated costs and MWBE goals for the project?
[ Check here if any portion of this project includes federal DBE (Disadvantaged Business Enterprise) goals

In Attachment B, Category E, are all known subcontractors accurately reflected?

In Attachment C, does the project description and work program tasks accurately reflect the work to be
undertaken for the project?

Confirm that the Village of Lancaster is registered in the NYS Contract System and that the MWBE Liaison is
able to access the NYSCS.

Confirm that MWBE Form A (or copy of EEO policy) is included in this submission (for planning contracts
over $25,000 and construction projects over $100,000).

Confirm that MWBE Form B (for the grantee, as well as any known subcontractors) are included in this
submission (for contracts over $250,000).

Confirm that MWBE Form D or MWBE Form D-1 is included in this submission, and that MWBE Form D
will be resubmitted each time any new MWBE subcontractors are selected during the life of the contract.

Confirm that the Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire has been completed for any NFP Grantees receiving
$50,000 or more, as well as any known subcontractors receiving $100,000 or more in State Funds, and that
Disability and Workers’ Comp certificates are included in this submission for any NFP Grantees.

Confirm that all appropriate financial documentation related to this contract will be retained during the life of the
contract and for six years following the final contract payment, and that the documentation will be submitted as
necessary to support payment requests and/or as requested by DOS.

Confirm that all documentation related to procurements under this contract, including documentation related to
Good Faith Effort to secure MWBE utilization, will be retained during the life of the contract and submitted as
requested by DOS (see attached document “MWBE Good Faith Effort Documentation”).

**If any questions above are answered “NO”, a written explanation nust be attached to this form**

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

Signature of the Mayor:

Date:

Enter the name, phone number and email address of the individual(s) that we should contact if we have questions
while executing this contract:

Phone:

Name:

Email Address:




STATE OF NEW YORK CONTRACT FOR GRANTS FACE PAGE

STATE AGENCY (Name & Address): BUSINESS UNIT/DEPT ID: DOS01/3800000

NYS Department of State CONTRACT NUMBER: C1003029
One Commerce Plaza
99 Washington Avenue — Suite 1010

Albany, NY 12231 CONTRACT TYPE (select one)

O Multi-Year Agreement
O Simplified Renewal Agreement
& Fixed Term Agreement

CONTRACTOR NAME: TRANSACTION TYPE:
K New
LANCASTER VILLAGE OF O Renewal

O Amendment
CONTRACTOR IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS: PROJECT NAME:

. Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New
NYS VENDOR ID Number: 1000004260 Pocket Park at the Municipal Building

Federal Tax ID Number: 16-6002481
ASSISTANCE LISTINGS (formerly CFDA)
NUMBER (ALN) (Federally Funded Grants Only):

CONTRACTOR PRIMARY MAILING ADDRESS: CONTRACTOR STATUS:

Village of Lancaster O For Profit
5423 Broadway X Municipality, Code:
Lancaster, NY 14086 O Tribal Nation

, O Individual
O Not-for-Profit

CONTRACTOR PAYMENT ADDRESS:

Check if same as primary mailing address Charities Registration Number: n/a

CONTRACTOR MAILING ADDRESS Exemption Status/Code: 3A/02

Check if same as primary mailing address
O Sectarian Entity

CONTRACTOR PRIMARY E-MAIL ADDRESS:

Iruda@lancastervillage.org

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 1 of 2, Contract for Grants - Face Page




STATE OF NEW YORK CONTRACT FOR GRANTS FACE PAGE

| CURRENT CONTRACT TERM:

FROM:  7/1/2025 TO: 6/30/2030

| CONTRACT FUNDING AMOUNT:

(Fixed Term - enter current period amount,
Simplified Renewal - enter cumulative amount
to date; Multi-year - enter total projected

AMENDED TERM:

FROM:

TO:

amount of the contract)
CURRENT:
AMENDED:

FUNDING SOURCES:

X State
O Federal
| O Other

$206,000.00

X Appendix A
Attachment A:

OX X

ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED AS PART OF THIS AGREEMENT (select all that apply):

A-]1 Agency Specific Terms and Conditions
A-2 Program Specific Terms and Conditions

A-3 Federally Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by

Federal Laws
B-1 Expenditure Based Budget
B-2 Performance Based Budget
B-3 Capital Budget
B-4 Capital Budget
B-1(A) Expenditure Based Budget (Amendment)
B-2(A) Performance Based Budget (Amendment)
B-3(A) Capital Budget (Amendment)
B-4 (A) Net Deficit Budget (Amendment)

Attachment B:
O
O
O
O
O
0
O
Attachment C: Work Plan
Attachment D: Payment and Reporting Schedule
O Other

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 2 of 2, Contract for Grants - Face Page




STATE OF NEW YORK CONTRACT FOR GRANTS

This State of New York Contract for Grants, including all attachments and appendices (hereinafter
referred to as “Contract” or “Agreement”), is hereby made by and between the State of New York
acting by and through the applicable State Agency (State or Agency) and the public or private entity
(Contractor) identified on the face page hereof (Face Page).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the State has the authority to regulate and provide funding for the operation of a
program or performance of a service; and desires to contract with a responsive and responsible
Contractor possessing the necessary resources to provide such services or work; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide such services or work and
possesses or can make available all necessary qualified personnel, licenses, facilities and expertise to
perform or have performed the services or work, as applicable, required pursuant to and in compliance
with the terms of the Contract, specifications outlined in the grant solicitation, resulting award, and

other associated documents comprising the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, responsibilities, and covenants herein,
the State and the Contractor agree to as follows:

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Order of Precedence: In the event of a conflict among (i) the terms of the Contract or (ii)
between the terms of the Contract and the original request for proposal, solicitation document,
the program application or other documentation that was completed and executed by the
Contractor in connection with a grant award, the order of precedence is as follows:

1. Appendix A — Standard Clauses for New York State Contracts
2. Contract for Grants Standard Terms and Conditions

3. Modifications to the Face Page

4. Modifications to Attachment A-2: Program Specific Terms and Conditions;
Attachment A-3: Federally Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by Federal
Laws (modifications not required by the Federal government)', Attachment B: Budget,
Attachment C: Work Plan, and Attachment D: Payment and Reporting

5. The Face Page

! For modifications required by the Federal government see Section I(M).

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 1 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



6. Attachment A-2: Program Specific Terms and Conditions, Attachment A-3: Federally
Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by Federal Laws, Attachment B: Budget,
Attachment C: Work Plan; and Attachment D: Payment and Reporting

7. Modifications to Attachment A-1: Agency Specific Terms and Conditions
8. Attachment A-1: Agency Specific Terms and Conditions

9. Other attachments, including, but not limited to, the request for proposal or program
application, if incorporated by reference on the Face Page

The documents above, collectively, comprise the entire Agreement and govern the program for
the entirety of the term of the Contract and any resulting renewals.

B. Funding: Funding for the term of the Contract shall not exceed the amount specified as
“Contract Funding Amount” on the Face Page or as subsequently revised to reflect an approved
renewal or cost amendment. Funding for the initial and subsequent periods of the Contract shall
not exceed the applicable amounts specified in the applicable Attachment B form (Budget).

C. Contract Performance: The Contractor shall perform all services or work, as applicable, and
comply with all provisions of the Contract to the satisfaction of the State. The Contractor shall
provide services or work, as applicable, and meet the program objectives summarized in
Attachment C (Work Plan) in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, relevant laws, rules
and regulations, administrative, program and fiscal guidelines, and where applicable, operating
certificate for facilities or licenses for an activity or program.

D. Modifications: Any modifications to this Agreement, including any budgetary changes,
must be mutually agreed to in writing by both parties and be reflected on the Face Page where such
terms are modified. Modifications may be subject to the approval of the AG and OSC in
accordance with Appendix A, Section 3, Comptroller's Approval. A modification that would result
in a transfer of funds among program activities or budget cost categories that does not affect the
amount, consideration, scope or other terms of such Contract may be subject to the approval of the
AG and OSC where the amount of such modification is, as a proportion of the total value of the
Contract, equal to or greater than ten percent for contracts of five million dollars or less, or five
percent for contracts of more than five million dollars. Modifications that are not subject to the AG
and OSC approval shall be processed in accordance with the guidelines stated in the Contract.

E. Severability: Any provision of the Contract that is held to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall be ineffective only to the
extent of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability, without affecting in any way the
remaining provisions hereof; provided, however, that the parties to the Contract shall attempt in
good faith to reform the Contract in a manner consistent with the intent of any such ineffective
provision for the purpose of carrying out such intent. If any provision is held void, invalid or
unenforceable with respect to particular circumstances, it shall nevertheless remain in full force

and effect in all other circumstances.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 2 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



F. Interpretation: The headings in the Contract are inserted for convenience and reference only
and do not modify or restrict any of the provisions herein. All personal pronouns used herein shall
be considered gender neutral. The Contract has been made under the laws of the State of New
York, and the venue for resolving any disputes hereunder shall be in a court of competent

jurisdiction of the State of New York.

G. Notice: All Notices under this Contract, including termination notices, shall be made in
writing and directed to the representatives identified herein, or their designees and shall be
transmitted by: a) certified or registered United States mail, return receipt requested; b) facsimile
transmission; ¢) personal delivery; d) expedited delivery service; and/or ) e-mail. Notice shall
be deemed to have been given either at the time of personal delivery or, in the case of expedited
delivery service or certified or registered United States mail, as of the date of first attempted
delivery at the address and in the manner provided herein, or in the case of facsimile transmission

or e-mail, upon receipt.

The parties may, on written notice, designate other individuals as their representatives. Such
representatives shall request, oversee, supervise, and accept performance of services provided by
the Contractor and shall receive any required submissions. Whenever an action is to be taken, or
approval for services given by the Agency, such action or approval may be given only by the
representatives designated pursuant to this Section.

H. Indemnification: The Contractor shall be solely responsible and answerable in damages for
all accidents, incidents, and/or injuries to persons (including death) or property arising out of or
related to the services to be rendered by the Contractor or its subcontractors pursuant to this
Contract. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State and its officers and
employees from claims, suits, actions, damages, and cost of every nature arising out of the
provision of services pursuant to the Contract.

I.  Legal Action: No litigation or regulatory action shall be brought against the State of New
York, the State Agency, or against any county or other local government entity with funds
provided under the Contract. The term “litigation” shall include commencing or threatening to
commence a lawsuit, joining, or threatening to join as a party to ongoing litigation, or requesting
any relief from the State of New York, the State Agency, or any county, or other local
government entity. The term “regulatory action” shall include commencing or threatening to
commence a regulatory proceeding or requesting any regulatory relief from the State of New
York, the State Agency, or any county, or other local government entity.

J.  Partisan Political Activity and Lobbying: Funds provided pursuant to the Contract shall
not be used for any partisan political activity, or for activities that attempt to influence legislation

or election or defeat of any candidate for public office.

K. Reporting Fraud and Abuse: Contractor acknowledges that it has reviewed information on
how to prevent, detect, and report fraud, waste, and abuse of public funds, including information
about the Federal False Claims Act, the New York State False Claims Act, and whistleblower

protections and will comply with requirements therein.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 3 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



L. Reporting Risks to Performance: If any specific event, conjunction of circumstances, or
any occurrence involving the staff, volunteers, directors, officers, subcontractors, or program
participants of the Contractor threatens the successful completion of this project, in whole or in part,
the Contractor agrees to notify the State Agency within three (3) calendar days of becoming aware
of the occurrence describing the occurrence and the risk it poses to performance under the Contract.
The Contractor’s notice shall include a written description of the event and a recommended
solution. Such events may include, but not be limited to, death or serious injury, an arrest or

possible criminal activity.

M. Federally Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by Federal Laws: All the Specific
Federal requirements that are applicable to the Contract are identified in Attachment A-3 (Federally
Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by Federal Laws), attached hereto. To the extent that
the Contract is funded, in whole or part, with Federal funds or mandated by Federal laws: (i) the
provisions of the Contract that conflict with Federal rules, Federal regulations, or Federal program
specific requirements shall not apply and (ii) to the extent that the modifications to Attachment A-
3 are required by Federal requirements and conflict with other provisions of the Contract, the
modifications to Attachment A-3 shall supersede all other provisions of this Contract; and (iii) the
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable Federal rules, regulations and program specific
requirements including, but not limited to, those provisions that are set forth in Attachment A-3
(Federally Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by Federal Laws), attached hereto.

N. Renewal:

1. General Renewal: The Contract may consist of successive periods on the same terms
and conditions, as specified within the Contract (a “Simplified Renewal Contract™). Each
additional or superseding period shall be on the forms specified by the State and shall be

incorporated in the Contract.

2. Renewal Notice to Not-for-Profit Contractors: The Contract, as specified herein,
may consist of successive periods on the same terms and condition referred to as a
“Simplified Renewal Contract.” Each additional or superseding period shall be on the forms
specified by the State and shall be incorporated into the Contract. Pursuant to State Finance
Law §179-t, if the Contract is with a not- for-profit Contractor and provides for a renewal
option, the State shall notify the Contractor of the State’s intent to renew or not to renew the
Contract no later than ninety (90) calendar days prior to the end of the term of the Contract,
unless funding for the renewal is contingent upon enactment of an appropriation, than thirty
(30) calendar days after the appropriation becomes law, whichever is later. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, in the event the State is unable to comply with the time frames set forth in this
paragraph due to unusual circumstances beyond the control of the State (“Unusual
Circumstances”), no payment of interest shall be due to the Contractor. For purposes of
State Finance Law §179-t, “Unusual Circumstances™ shall not mean the failure by the State
to (i) plan for implementation of a program, (ii) assign sufficient staff resources to
implement a program, (iii) establish a schedule for the implementation of a program or (iv)
anticipate any other reasonably foreseeable circumstance. Notification to the Contractor of
the State’s intent to not renew the Contract must be in writing in the form of a letter, with
the reason(s) for the non-renewal included. If the State does not provide notice to the

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 4 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



Contractor of its intent not to renew the Contract as required in this Section and State
Finance Law §179-t, the Contract shall be deemed continued until the date the State
provides the necessary notice to the Contractor, in accordance with State Finance Law §179-
t. Expenses incurred by the not-for-profit Contractor during such extension shall be
reimbursable under the terms of the Contract.

II. TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION
A. Termination:

1. Grounds:

a)  Mutual Consent: The Contract may be terminated at any time upon mutual
written consent of the State and the Contractor.

b)  Cause: The State may terminate the Contract immediately, upon written notice of
termination to the Contractor, if the Contractor fails to comply with any of the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any applicable laws, rules, regulations, policies,
or procedures. If the termination for cause results from unsatisfactory performance by
the Contractor, the value of the work performed by the Contractor prior to termination

shall be established by the State.

¢) Non-Responsibility: Upon written notice to the Contractor, and a reasonable
opportunity to be heard by the appropriate State officials or staff, this Contract may be
terminated by the State at the Contractor’s expense where the Contractor is determined
by the State to be non-responsible. In such event, the State may complete contractual
requirements in any manner it deems advisable and pursue available legal or equitable

remedies for breach.

d) Convenience: The State may terminate the Contract in its sole discretion upon
thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice.

e) Lack of Funds: If for any reason the State or the Federal government terminates
or reduces its appropriation to the applicable State Agency or entity entering into the
Contract or fails to pay the full amount of the allocation for the operation of one or
more programs funded under this Contract, the Contract may be terminated or reduced
at the State Agency’s discretion. No reduction or termination shall apply to allowable
costs already incurred by the Contractor whereby funds are available to the State
Agency for payment of such costs. Upon termination or reduction of the Contract, all
remaining funds paid to the Contractor that are not subject to allowable costs already
incurred by the Contractor shall be returned to the State Agency. In any event, no
liability shall be incurred by the State (including the State Agency) beyond monies
available for the purposes of the Contract. The Contractor acknowledges that any
funds due to the State Agency or the State of New York because of disallowed
expenditures after audit shall be the Contractor’s responsibility.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 5 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



f)  Force Majeure: Performance under the Contract may be terminated or suspended
by the State immediately upon the occurrence of a “force majeure” event. For
purposes of the Contract, “Force majeure” shall include, but not be limited to, natural
disasters, war, rebellion, declared pandemics, insurrection, riot, strikes, lockout, and
any unforeseen circumstances and acts beyond the control of the parties which render
the performance of contractual obligations impossible.

2. Effect of Notice and Termination on State’s Payment Obligations:

Upon receipt of notice of termination provided pursuant to the notice requirements
prescribed in this Agreement, the Contractor shall stop work immediately and
complete only those specific assignments and/or obligations, if any, subsequently
approved by the State. In the event of termination other than for cause, the Contractor
shall be entitled to compensation for services performed through the date of
termination that are accepted by the State, and for any subsequent services that are
accepted by the State, rendered in connection with any successor consultants and
contractors, including transfer of records, briefing and any other services deemed
necessary or desirable by the State. The Contractor agrees to cooperate to the fullest
respect with any successor consultants and contractors.

3. Effect of Termination Based on Misuse or Conversion of State or Federal Property

Where the Contract is terminated for cause based on Contractor’s failure to use some
or all of the real property or equipment purchased pursuant to the Contract for the
purposes set forth herein, the State may, at its option, require: a) repayment to the
State of any monies previously paid to the Contractor; b) return of any real property or
equipment purchased under the terms of the Contract; or ¢) an appropriate
combination of clauses (a) and (b) herein.

Nothing herein shall be intended to limit the State’s ability to pursue such other legal
or equitable remedies as may be available.

4.  Suspension:

The State mayj, in its discretion, order the Contractor to suspend performance for a
reasonable period of time. In the event of such suspension, the Contractor shall be
given formal written notice outlining the specific details of such suspension. Upon
issuance of such notice, the Contractor shall comply with the particulars of the notice.
The State shall have no obligation to reimburse Contractor’s expenses during such
suspension period. Activities may resume at such time as the State issues a formal
written notice authorizing a resumption of performance under the Contract.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 6 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



III. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Contractor as an Independent Contractor/Employees:

1.  The State and the Contractor agree that the Contractor is an independent contractor,
and not an employee of the State and may neither hold itself out nor claim to be an officer,
employee, or subdivision of the State nor make any claim, demand, or application to or for
any right based upon any different status. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the State and the
Contractor agree that if the Contractor is a New York State municipality, the Contractor
shall be permitted to hold itself out, and claim, to be a subdivision of the State.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the recruitment, hiring, provision of
employment benefits, payment of salaries and management of its project personnel. These
functions shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, and all

applicable Federal and State laws and regulations.

2. The Contractor warrants that it, its staff, and any and all subcontractors have all the
necessary licenses, approvals, and certifications currently required by the laws of any
applicable local, state, or Federal government to perform the services or work, as
applicable, pursuant to the Contract and/or any subcontract entered into under the Contract.
The Contractor further agrees that such required licenses, approvals, and certificates shall
be kept in full force and effect during the term of the Contract, or any extension thereof,
and to secure any new licenses, approvals, or certificates within the required time frames
and/or to require its staff and subcontractors to obtain the requisite licenses, approvals, or
certificates. In the event the Contractor, its staff, and/or subcontractors are notified of a
denial or revocation of any license, approval, or certification to perform the services or
work, as applicable, under the Contract, Contractor shall immediately notify the State.

B. Subcontractors:

1.  Ifthe Contractor enters into subcontracts for the performance of work pursuant to the
Contract, the Contractor shall take full responsibility for the acts and omissions of its
subcontractors. Nothing in the subcontract shall impair the rights of the State under the
Contract. No contractual relationship shall be deemed to exist between the subcontractor

and the State.

2. Ifrequested by the State, the Contractor agrees not to enter into any subcontracts, or
revisions to subcontracts, that are in excess of $100,000 for the performance of the
obligations contained herein until it has received the prior written permission of the State,
which shall have the right to review and approve each and every subcontract in excess of
$100,000 prior to giving written permission to the Contractor to enter into the subcontract.
All agreements between the Contractor and subcontractors shall be by written contract,
signed by individuals authorized to bind the parties. All such subcontracts shall contain
provisions for specifying (1) that the work performed by the subcontractor must be in
accordance with the terms of the Contract, (2) that nothing contained in the subcontract
shall impair the rights of the State under the Contract, and (3) that nothing contained in the

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 7 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



subcontract, nor under the Contract, shall be deemed to create any contractual relationship
between the subcontractor and the State. In addition, subcontracts shall contain any other
provisions which are required to be included in subcontracts pursuant to the terms herein.

3. Ifrequested by the State, the Contractor agrees to require the subcontractor to provide
to the State the information the State needs to determine whether a proposed subcontractor

is a responsible vendor.

4. When a subcontract equals or exceeds $100,000, the subcontractor shall submit a
Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (Questionnaire).

5. Ifrequested by the State, upon the execution of a subcontract, the Contractor shall
provide detailed subcontract information (a copy of subcontract will suffice) to the State
within fifteen (15) calendar days after execution. The State may request from the
Contractor copies of subcontracts between a subcontractor and its subcontractor.

6.  The Contractor shall require any and all subcontractors to submit to the Contractor all
financial claims for Services or work to the State agency, as applicable, rendered and

required supporting documentation and reports as necessary to permit Contractor to meet
claim deadlines and documentation requirements as established in Attachment D (Payment
and Reporting). Subcontractors shall be paid by the Contractor on a timely basis after
submitting the required reports and vouchers for reimbursement of services or work, as
applicable. Subcontractors shall be informed by the Contractor of the possibility of non-
payment or rejection by the Contractor of claims that do not contain the required
information, and/or are not received by the Contractor by said due date.

C. Use of Material, Equipment, Or Personnel:

1. The Contractor shall not use materials, equipment, or personnel paid for under the
Contract for any activity other than those provided for under the Contract, except with the

State’s prior written permission.

2. Any interest accrued on funds paid to the Contractor by the State shall be deemed to
be the property of the State and shall either be credited to the State at the close-out of the
Contract or, upon the written permission of the State, shall be expended on additional
services or work, as applicable, provided for under the Contract.

D. Property:

1. For the purposes of the Contract, “Property” is defined as real property, equipment, or
tangible personal property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost
of $1,000 or more per unit. For Federally funded contracts, if there is any conflict in the
definition of "Property" the federal awarding Agency definitions will apply.

a) If an item of Property required by the Contractor is available as surplus to the
State, the State at its sole discretion, may arrange to provide such Property to the

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 8 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



Contractor in lieu of the purchase of such Property. Such Property shall be returned to
the State at the Contractor’s cost and expense upon the expiration of the Contract
unless the State consents in writing to the Contractor retaining possession of the

Property to use for similar purposes.

b) In addition, the Contractor agrees to permit the State to inspect the Property and to
monitor its use at reasonable intervals during the Contractor's regular business hours.

¢) The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing Property
purchased or procured under the Contract at its own cost and expense. The Contractor
shall procure and maintain insurance at its own cost and expense in an amount
satisfactory to the State Agency, naming the State Agency as an additional insured,
covering the loss, theft, or destruction of such equipment. The Contractor may not
charge rental or use fees under this Contract for use or acquisition of Property to carry

out its obligations under the Contract.

d) The State has the right to review and approve in writing any new contract for the
purchase of or lease for rental of Property (Purchase/Lease Contract) operated in
connection with the provision of the services or work as specified in the Contract, if
applicable, and any modifications, amendments, or extensions of an existing lease or
purchase prior to its execution. If, in its discretion, the State disapproves of any
Purchase/Lease Contract, then the State shall not be obligated to make any payments

for such Property.

e) No member, officer, director, or employee of the Contractor shall retain or
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in any Property, paid for with funds under the
Contract, nor retain any interest, direct or indirect, in such, without full and complete
prior disclosure of such interest and the date of acquisition thereof, in writing to the

Contractor and the State.

2. For non-Federally funded contracts, unless otherwise provided herein, the State shall
have the following rights to Property purchased with funds provided under the Contract:

a) For cost-reimbursable contracts, all right, title and interest in Property with a
remaining useful life shall belong to the State unless otherwise agreed to, in writing,
by the State and the Contractor. However, upon agreement by the State, title shall
pass to Contractor upon the end of the Property's useful life (as the phrase “useful
life” is defined in Internal Revenue Code § 1.169- 2).

b) For performance-based contracts, all right, title and interest in such Property shall
belong to the Contractor.

3. For Federally funded contracts, title to Property whose requisition cost is borne in
whole or in part by monies provided under the Contract shall be governed by the terms and
conditions of Attachment A-3 (Federally Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by

Federal Laws).

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 9 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



4.  The Contractor shall maintain an inventory of all Property that is owned by the State
and obtained by the Contractor under this Agreement.

5. The Contractor shall execute any documents which the State may reasonably require
to effectuate the provisions of this section.

E. Records and Audits:

1.  General:
a) The Contractor shall establish and maintain, in paper or electronic format, complete
and accurate books, records, documents, receipts, accounts, and other evidence directly
pertinent to its performance under the Contract (collectively, Records).

b) The Contractor agrees to produce and retain for the balance of the term of the
Contract, and for a period of six years from the later of the date of (i) the Contract and (ii)
the most recent renewal of the Contract, any and all Records necessary to substantiate
upon audit, the proper deposit and expenditure of funds received under the Contract. Such
Records may include, but not be limited to, original books of entry (e.g., cash
disbursements and cash receipts journal), and the following specific records (as applicable)

to substantiate the types of expenditures noted:

(i) personal service expenditures: cancelled checks and the related bank statements,
time and attendance records, payroll journals, cash and check disbursement records
including copies of money orders and the like, vouchers and invoices, records of
contract labor, any and all records listing payroll and the money value of non-cash
advantages provided to employees, time cards, work schedules and logs, employee
personal history folders, detailed and general ledgers, sales records, miscellaneous
reports and returns (tax and otherwise), and cost allocation plans, if applicable.

(it) payroll taxes and fringe benefits: cancelled checks, copies of related bank
statements, cash and check disbursement records including copies of money orders
and the like, invoices for fringe benefit expenses, miscellaneous reports and returns
(tax and otherwise), and cost allocation plans, if applicable.

(iii) non-personal services expenditures: original invoices/receipts, cancelled checks
and related bank statements, consultant agreements, leases, and cost allocation plans,

if applicable.

(iv) receipt and deposit of advance and reimbursements: itemized bank stamped
deposit slips, and a copy of the related bank statements.

¢) The OSC, AG and any other person or entity authorized to conduct an examination,
as well as the State Agency or State Agencies involved in the Contract that provided
funding, shall have access to the Records during the hours of 9:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.,
Monday through Friday (excluding State recognized holidays), at an office of the

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 10 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



Contractor within the State of New York or, if no such office is available, at a mutually
agreeable and reasonable venue within the State, for the term specified above for the

purposes of inspection, auditing and copying.

d) The State shall protect from public disclosure any of the Records which are exempt
from disclosure under Section 87 of the Public Officers Law provided that: (i) the
Contractor shall timely inform an appropriate State official, in writing, that said records
should not be disclosed; and (ii) said records shall be sufficiently identified; and (iii)
designation of said records, as exempt under Section 87 of the Public Officers Law, is

reasonable.

e¢) Nothing contained herein shall diminish, or in any way adversely affect, the State's
rights in connection with its audit and investigatory authority or the State’s rights in
connection with discovery in any pending or future litigation.

F. Confidentiality:

1.  Contractor agrees that it will not use confidential, personally identifiable information
relating to individuals who may receive services, or proprietary information disclosed to
Contractor in connection with the services or work (“Confidential Information”) for any
purpose other than in connection with the services or work and in compliance with all
applicable provisions of State and federal law. The Contractor is fully responsible for its
staff, its subcontractor(s), and any subcontractor’s staff with regard to Confidential
Information and shall ensure that they meet all obligations with respect to maintaining the
confidentiality and security of any information deemed confidential.

2. Information which falls into any of the following categories shall not be considered
Confidential Information: a) information that is previously rightfully known to the
Contractor without restriction on disclosure; b) information that becomes, from no breach
of the Contract on the part of the Contractor, generally known in the relevant industry, or is
otherwise publicly available; and c) information that is independently developed by
Contractor without use of the Confidential Information.

3. Except as specifically permitted in this Agreement, Contractor shall not, at any time, in
any fashion, form or manner, divulge, disclose, communicate, or use, any Confidential
Information other than in connection with the services or as otherwise provided herein.

4. Contractor may disclose Confidential Information if such information is required to be
disclosed by Contractor by any law, rule, regulation, judicial or administrative process or
applicable professional standards, provided that, to the extent permitted by applicable law
or regulation, the Contractor notifies the State prior to any such required disclosure.

5.  Contractor agrees that, as between the Parties, all Confidential Information in its
possession obtained in connection with the services or work hereunder is at all times the sole

property of the State.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 11 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



6. Where allowable by law and agreed to by the State, Contractor may retain one copy
of the Confidential Information and any summaries, analyses, notes, or extracts prepared by
Contractor which are based on or contain portions of the Confidential Information
evidencing its services or work for the State as required by law, regulation, professional

standards, or reasonable business practice.

7. Inprotecting the Confidential Information, Contractor shall exetcise the same standard
of care used by Contractor to protect its own confidential and proprietary information, to
prevent the disclosure of Confidential Information to any third party. Contractor shall not
use Confidential Information for any purpose other than in furtherance of its services or

work for the State.

G. Publicity:

1. Publicity regarding the work, services, performance, and/or project governed by this
Agreement may not be released without prior written approval from the State. For the
purposes of this Agreement, “Publicity” includes, but is not limited to: news conferences;
news releases; public announcements; advertising; brochures; reports; discussions or
presentations at conferences or meetings; and/or the inclusion of State materials, the State’s
name, or other such references to the State in any document or forum.

2. Any Publicity, publications, presentations or announcements of conferences, meetings
or trainings which are funded in whole or in part through any activity supported under the
Contract may not be published, presented or announced without prior written approval of
the State. Any such publication, presentation or announcement shall:

a) Acknowledge the support of the State of New York and, if funded with Federal funds,
the applicable Federal funding agency; and

b) State that the opinions, results, findings and/or interpretations of data contained
therein are the responsibility of the Contractor and do not necessarily represent the
opinions, interpretations, or policy of the State or if funded with Federal funds, the State

and the applicable Federal funding agency.

3. Notwithstanding the above, (i) if the Contractor is an educational research institution,
the Contractor may, for scholarly or academic purposes, use, present, discuss, report or
publish any material, data or analyses, other than Confidential Information, that derives
from activity under the Contract and the Contractor agrees to use best efforts to provide
copies of any manuscripts arising from Contractor’s performance under this Contract, or if
requested by the State, the Contractor shall provide the State with a thirty (30) calendar day
period in which to review each manuscript for compliance with Confidential Information
requirements prior to publication; or (ii) if the Contractor is not an educational research
institution, the Contractor may submit for publication, scholarly or academic publications
that derive from activity under the Contract (but are not deliverable under the Contract),
provided that the Contractor first submits such manuscripts to the State forty-five (45)
calendar days prior to submission for consideration by a publisher in order for the State to

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 12 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



review the manuscript for compliance with confidentiality requirements and restrictions
and to make such other comments as the State deems appropriate. All derivative
publications shall follow the same acknowledgments and disclaimer as described in Section

III(F)(2) (Publicity) hereof.
H. Web-Based Applications-Accessibility:

Any network-based information and applications development, or programming delivered
to or by the State pursuant to this Contract or procurement, will comply with Section 508 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and be consistent with New York State
Enterprise IT Policy NYS-P08-005, Accessibility of Information Communication
Technology, as such policy may be amended, modified, or superseded (the “Accessibility
Policy™). The Accessibility Policy requires that State Entity Information Communication
Technology shall be accessible to persons with disabilities as determined by accessibility
compliance testing. Such accessibility compliance testing will be conducted by (State
Entity name, contractor or other) and any report on the results of such testing must be

satisfactory to (State Entity name).
1.  Unemployment Insurance Compliance:

The Contractor shall remain current in both its quarterly reporting and payment of
contributions or payments in lieu of contributions, as applicable, to the State
Unemployment Insurance system as a condition of maintaining this grant.

1.  The Contractor hereby authorizes the State Department of Labor to disclose to the
State Agency staff only such information as is necessary to determine the Contractor’s
compliance with the State Unemployment Insurance Law. This includes, but is not limited
to, the following: a) any records of unemployment insurance (UI) contributions, interest,
and/or penalty payment arrears or reporting delinquency; b) any debts owed for Ul
contributions, interest, and/or penalties; c) the history and results of any audit or
investigation; and d) copies of wage reporting information.

2. Such disclosures are protected under Section 537 of the State Labor Law, which
makes it a misdemeanor for the recipient of such information to use or disclose the
information for any purpose other than the performing due diligence as a part of the
approval process for the Contract.

J.  Charities Registration:

If applicable, the Contractor agrees to (i) obtain not-for-profit status, a Federal
identification number, and a charitable registration number (or a declaration of exemption)
and to furnish the State Agency with this information as soon as it is available, (ii) be in
compliance with the OAG charities registration requirements at the time of the awarding of
this Contract by the State and (iii) remain in compliance with the OAG charities
registration requirements throughout the term of the Contract.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 13 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



K. Vendor Responsibility:

The Contractor hereby acknowledges that the State Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire
(Questionnaire) and certification are made part of this Contract and that any
misrepresentation of fact in the Questionnaire and attachments, or in any Contractor
responsibility information that may be requested by the State, may result in termination of

this Contract.

The Contractor shall at all times during the contract term remain responsible. During the
term of this Contract, any changes in the provided Questionnaire shall be disclosed to the
State Agency, in writing, in a timely manner. Failure to make such disclosure may result in
a determination of non- responsibility and termination of this Contract. Furthermore, the
Contractor agrees, if requested by the State, it must present evidence of its continuing legal
authority to do business in New York State, its integrity, experience, ability, prior
performance, and organizational and financial capacity.

The State, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to make a final determination of non-
responsibility at any time during the term of the Contract, based on any information
provided in the Questionnaire and/or any updates, clarifications, or amendments thereof;
and/or when it discovers information that calls into question the responsibility of the
Contractor. Prior to making a final determination of non- responsibility, the State shall
provide written notice to the Contractor that it has made a preliminary determination of
non-responsibility. The State shall detail the reason(s) for the preliminary determination,
and shall provide the Contractor with an opportunity to be heard.

The State reserves the right to suspend any or all activities under this Contract, upon
discovery of such information warranting review of responsibility. In the event of such
suspension, the Contractor will be given written notice outlining the particulars of such
suspension. Upon issuance of such notice, the Contractor must comply with the terms of
the suspension order. Contract activity may resume at such time as the State issues a
written notice authorizing a resumption of performance under this Contract.

L. Workers' Compensation Benefits:

1.  In accordance with Section 142 of the State Finance Law, the Contract shall be void
and of no force and effect unless the Contractor shall provide and maintain coverage during
the life of the Contract for the benefit of such employees as are required to be covered by
the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Law.

2. Ifa Contractor believes they are exempt from the Workers Compensation insurance
requirement they must apply for an exemption.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 14 of 14, Contract for Grants - Standard Terms and Conditions January 2025



APPENDIX A

STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NEW YORK STATE
CONTRACTS

PLEASE RETAIN THIS DOCUMENT

FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

Contract Number: C1003029 June 2023
Page 1 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts



I T N R A

N N W N N
RrEBEREBSRSSsREERESB

26.
27.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Exccutory (lause

Non-Assignment Clause

Comptroller’s Approval

Workers' Compensation Benefits
Non-Discrimination Regquirements

Wage and Hours Provisions

Non-Collusive Bidding Certification
Intcrnational Boycott Prohibition

Set-Off Rights

Records

Identifying Information and Privacy Notification
Equal Employment Opportunitics For Minoritics and Women
Conflicting Terms

Governing Law

Late Payment

No Arbitration

Service of Process

Prohibition on Purchase of Tropical Hardwoods
MacBride Fair Employment Principles
Omnibus Procurcment Act of 1992

Reciprocity and Sanctions Provisions
Compliance with Breach Notification and Data Security Laws
Complisnce with Consultant Disclosure Law

Procurement Lobbying

Certification of Registration to Collect Sales and Compensating Use Tax by Certain

State Contractors, Affiliates and Subcontracters
lran Divestment Act
Admissibility of Contract

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 2 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts

June 2023

Y
B

[



STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NYS CONTRACTS

The partics to the attached contraet, license. lease, amendment
o¢ other agrecment of any kind (hercinafier, "l contract” or
“this contract™ agtes 10 be bound by the followiag clauscs
which arc hereby made a part of the contract (the woed
~Contractor” herein refors to any party other than the State.
whether a contractor, ficenser, livensee, kosor, lessee or any
other panty):

1. EXECUTORY CLAUSE. In accordance with Scction 41
of the State Finance Law. the State shall have no lishility under
this contract to the Contractor or to anyone clsc beyond funds
appropriated and available for this contract.

2. NON-ASSIGNMENT CLAUSE. In accosdance with
Section 138 of the Statc Finance Law:, this contract muay not be
assigned by the Contractor or its right, tithe or intcrest therein
assigned. transferred. conveyed, sublet o othcrwisc disposed of
without the State’s peevious written consent, and attempts o do
so sre null and void. Notwithstanding the forcgoing. such prior
written consent of an assignment of a contract let pursuant to
Atticle X1 of the Statc Finsnoe Law may be waived at the
discretion of the contracting agency and with the concurmence
of the State Comptroller where the original contract was subject
10 the State Comptroller’s spproval, where the assignment B
duc 10 a rcorganization, merger or consolidation of the
Contractor’s business entity or cnterprise. The State retains its
right to approve an assigament and to soquire that any
Contracior demonstrale its responsibility 10 do business with
the State. The Conlactor may, however, assign its night to
reocive payments without the State’s priot wyitten consent
unless this contract concems Centificais of Participation
pursuant to Articlk S-A of the State Finance Law.

3. COMPTROLLER'S APFROVAL. In acvordance with
Section 112 of the Statc Finance Law, if this contract exceeds
$50.000 (or $75.000 for State University of New York or City
University of New York contracts for goods. seTVices,
construction and printing. and $150.000 for State University
Health Care Facilitics) of if this is an amendment for any
amount 10 3 contract which, 2s so amended, exceeds said
statutory amount. of if. by this contract, the State aghoes to give
something other than moncy when the valuc of reasonably
estimated value of such consideration exccods $23,000, it shall
aot be valid, effective or binding upon the State until ithas been
approved by the Sate Compurolicr and fiked in his offke.
Comptrollet’s approval of contracts ket by the Office of Gencral
Services, cither for itself of its customer agencies by the Oftice
of General Services Business Services Center, is required when
such contrats cxoeed SK5.000. Compuuller’s approval of
contracts cstablished as centralized contracts through the Office
of Geneeal Services is requised when such conttacts enceed
$125.000, and when a purchase order or other procutement
transaction issued under such centalized contract exceeds

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 3 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts

$200.000.

4. WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS. In
sccordance with Section 142 of the State Finance Law, ths
contract shall be void and of no force and effect unkess the
Contractor shall provide and maintain coverage during the life
of this contract for the benelit of such employees as are required
1 be covered by the provisions of the Workers® Compensation
Law.

£, NON-DISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS. To the
extent required by Article 15 of the Executive Law (slso known
as the Human Rights Law) and all other State and Federal
statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions, the
Contractor will nol discriminate agaimst any employce o
applicant for cmployment. noe subject any individual to
harsssment. because of age. mace. ereed. coloe, national origin,
citizenship of immigration status. scxual oricntation, gender
identity or expression, military  stalus.  sex. disability.
predisposing genctic characteristics, familial status, marital
status, or domestic viokenoe victim status of becsuse the
individual has opposed any practices forbidden under the
Human Rights Law or has filed 8 complaint, testified. o¢
assisted in any peocceding under the Human Rights Law.
Furthcrmwore, in accordance with Section 220-¢ of the Labor
Law. if this is a contract for the construction, akcration of repair
of any public building or public work or for the manufacture.
sale or distribution of materials, cquiprsent or supplies, and to
the extent that this contract shal! be performed within the State
of New York, Contracior agrees that meither it nor its
subcontractors shall, by reason of race. creed. color, disability.
X, of national origin: (a) discriminate in hiring against any
New York State citizen who is qualificd and available 10
petform the work: or (b) discriminate against or intimidste any
employee hired for the performance of work under this contradt.
IF this i a building senvice contract as defined in Section 230 of
the Lahor Law. then, in sccordance with Scetion 239 thereoll
Contractor agrevs that neither it por its subcontractors shall by
season of race, croed. color. nationsl origin, ape. soX of
disability: {a) discriminate in hiring against any New York
State citizen who is qualified and available to perform the work:
of (b) discriminate agsinst o¢ intirnidate any employee hirod for
the performance of work under this contract. Contractor is
subject 10 fines of $50.00 per person per day for any violation
of Section 220-¢ or Scction 239 as well 33 possible termination
of this vontzact and forfeiture of 2l moncys duc hereunder for
3 second or subsequent violation,

6. WAGE AND HOURS PROVISIONS. f this is a public
work contract covered by Article § of the Labor Law or a
building scrvice contract covered by Articke 9 thereof, acither
Contractor's cinployees not the employees of its subcontractors
may be required or permitted 1o work more than the numbet of
bours or days stated in said sistutes, except as otherwise
peovided in the Labor Law and as 53t forth in provailing wage

June 2023



and supplomen! schedules isswed by the State Lador
Depanment.  Furthermore, Contractor and its suboontractues
must pay at least the peevailing wage rate and pay or provide
the prevailing supplements, including the premium rates for
overtime pay, as determined by the State Labor Depantment in
accordance with the Labor Law. Additionafly. effcctive April
28, 2008, if this is a public work contract covered by Article §
of the Labor Law, the Contractor understands and agrees that
the filing of payrolls in a manner consistent with Subdivision 3-
aof Section 220 of the Labos Law shall be a condition precedent
10 payment by the State of any Siate approved sums due and
owing for work done upoa the project.

7. NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION. In
acoordance with Section 139-d of the Suawe Finance Law, if this
contract was awanded based upon the submission of bids,
Contractor affirms. under penshy of perjury, that sts bid was
arrived at independiatly and without collusion aimed at
resincling competition. Contractor further affirms that, at the
time Contractor submitted its bid, an suthorized and responsible
penson executed and delivered to the State a non-collusive
bidding certification on Contractor®s behalf.

8. INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT PROHMIBITION. In
accordance with Section 220-f of the Labor Law and Section
139-h of the State Finance Law, if this contract exceeds $5,000,
the Contractor agrees. as a material condition of the contract,
that ncither the Conteacior nor any substannally owned or
affilisted person. firm. partnership of  corporation  has
participated, i participaling, or shall participate in an
international  boyceit in violstion of the foderal Expont
Administration Act of 1979 (50 USC App. Sections 2401 et
50q.) or regulations thercunder.  If such Contractor, or any of
the aforcsaid affilistes of Contractor, is convicted or is
otherwise found to have violated said laws or regulstions upon
the final determination of the United States Commerce
Department or any other appeopriate agency of the United
States subsoquent to the conttact’s excecution, such contract,
amendment or modification thereto shall be rendered forfeit and
void. The Contrsctor shall 50 notify the State Comptroller
within five (3) business days of such conviction, determinstion
or disposition of appcal (2 NYCRR § 105 4).

9. SET-OFF RIGRHTS. The State shall have all of its common
law. equitable and statulory rights of sct-off. These rights shall
include. but not be limited 10, the State’s option 1o withhold for
the purposes of set-off any moncys due to the Contractor under
this contract up 10 any smounts due and owing to the State with
regard to this contract, any other contract with any State
depanment er agenwy, including any contract for a fcrm
commenc ing prior to the term of this contract, plus any amounts
due and owing to the State for any other reason including,
without limitation. tax delinguencics. fee delinquencics of
monctary penalties relative thereto. The State shafl exercise its
so1-oft eights in accordance with pormal Swie practics
including, in cases of scet-off pursuant to an audit, the

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 4 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts

finslization of such audit by the Swtc agency. it
representatives, or the State Comptrolier.

10. RECORDS. The Contractor shall establish and maintsin
completc and accurate books, records, documents, accounts and
other evidence directly pertinent 1o performance under this
contract (hereinafier, collectively, the “Reconds™). The Revords
must be kept for the balance of the calendar year in which they
were made and for six (6) additiona] years thereafter. The State
Compuolicr, the Anomey General and any other person or
entity authorized 10 conduct an examinstion, &5 well as the
agency of ageacics involved in this contract. shall have sccess
to the Records during normal business hours at an office of the
Contractor within the Statc of New York or, if no such office s
available, at a mutually sgrecable and reasonable venue within
the Staie, for the toom specified above for the purpeses of
mspoction, suditing and copying. The State chall take
reasonable sieps 10 protect from public disclosuse any of the
Records which are exempt from disclosure under Section 87 of
the Public Officers Law (the “Statutke™) provided that: {i) the
Coatractor shall tmcely inform an appropriate State officisl, in
writing. that said reoords should not be dischosed: and (i) ssid
recoeds shall be sufficiently identified: and (iii) designation of
said teconds a5 exempt under the Statute is reasonable. Nothing
containcd berein shall diminish, or in any way advenscly affoct,
the State’s right to discovery in any pending or future litigation.

11. IDENTIFYVING INFORMATION AND PRIVACY
NOTIFICATION, (a) ldentification Number(s). Every
nvoice of New York State Claim for Payment submitted to 1
New York State agency by a payec, for payment for the sale of
goods or services or for transactions (c.g.. leases, casements.
licenses, cte.) related to seal or personal property must include
the payee’s identification numbes. The number is any: or all of
the following: (i) the payce’s Federal employer identification
number, (i) the payee’s Fodersl social security number, and ‘or
{113} the payee’s Vendor ldentification Number sssipned by the
Ststewide Financial System. Failure 1o include such number or
asumbers may delay payment. Where the payec docs not have
such number or numbers, the payee, on its invoice or Claim for
Payment, must give the reason or reasons why the payee does
ot have such numbcer or numbers.

(b) Privacy Notification. (1) The authority to request the above
personal information from a seller of goods or services of a
lessor of 1eal of personal property. and the authotity to maiatain
such information, is found in Section 3 of the Sute Tax Law.,
Disclosure of this information by the scller or lessor to the State
is mandatory. The principal purpose for which the information
i collecind is 1o enable the State to idenmtify individuals,
businesses and others who have boen delinguent in filing tax
reums or may have underststed their tax lishilitics and to
generally sdentify persons affected by the taxes administered by
the Commissioncr of Taxation and Finance. The information
will be used for tax administration pumposes and for any other
prrpose authorized by law. {2) The personal information is

June 2023



requeswed by the purchasing unit of the agency contracting to
purchasc the goods of servicss o lease the real or porsonal
property covered by this contract of lease. The information is
maintsined in the Ststewide Financisl System by the Vendoe
Management Unit within the Burcau of Staie Expenditures.
Office of the State Comptrofler. 110 State Swreet. Albany, New
York 12236,

12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR
MINORITIES AND WOMEN. In accordance with Section
312 of the Exccutive Law and 5 NYCRR Parr 143, if this
contract is: (i) a writien agrocment or purchase order
instrument, peoviding for a total expenditure in excess of
$25.000.00, whereby a conteacting agency is committod to
expend or docs expend funds in retum for ksbor, servioes.
supplics, cquipment, malerials or any combinstion of the
foregoing. to be performed for, or rendered or fumnished to the
contracting agency: or {if) a writicn agreement in cxcess of
$100,000.00 wherchy a contracting agency is conumnitted to
expend or docs expend funds for the acquisition, construction,
demolition, replscement. msjor repait of renovation of real
property and improvements thercon: os (iii) a written agroement
in excess of $100.000.00 wherchy the owner of a State assisted
housing projoct is commitied to expend or docs expend funds
for the acquisition, constrction, demolition, replacement,
major repair of renovation of real property and improvements
thetcon for such project, then the following shall apply and by
signing this agrecment the Contractor certifics and affirms that
it is Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy that:

{8) The Coatracior will not discriminate agsinst employces or
applicents for employment because of race, croed. cokr.
nationaf origin, scX. age, disability or marita] status, shall make
and document its conscientious and active ¢fforts to employ and
utilize minority group members and women in its work force
on State contracts and will undertake or continue cxisting
programs of affirmative action 10 cnsure that minosty group
members and women are afforded  equal cmployment
opportunitics without discrimination. Affirmative action shall
mean recruitment. employment, job assignment, promotion.
uppradings. demotion, transfer. layofY. or termination and rates

of pay or other forms of compensation,

{b) a1 the requestof the contracting agency, Bw Contractor shall
request cach employment agency. labey union, or authorized
reproventative of workers with which &t has a collective
bargaining or other agreement or understanding. to furnish a
written statement that such employment agency. labor union or
representative will not disceiminate on the basis of race. croed.
colo, nstional onigin, sex, age. disability or marital status and
that such union of representative will aflirmatively cooperate in
the implkementation of the Contracior's obligations herein; and

{¢) the Contraciwor shall state. in sl solicitations o
advertisements for employces, that, in the performance of the
State contract, all qualificd applicants will be afforded equal

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 5 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts

employment oppostunitics withow discrimination because of
race, creed, colos, national origin, sex. ape, dissbility or marital
status.

Contractor will inclede the provisions of (a). {b) and (¢)"
above, in every subcontract over $25.000.00 for the
comstruction,  demolition,  replacemaent.  masjor  rupair.

renovation,  planning or  design of real  property  and
improvements thereon (the “Work™) except where the Work is
for the beneficial use of the Contractor. Section 312 does nof
apply to: (i) work. goods or servioes unrclated o this contract;
or (ii) employment outside New York State.  The Siatc shall
consider compliance by a contractor or subcoatractor with the
requirements of any federal law conceming ogual enmyployment
opportunity which cffectuates the purpose of this clause. The
contracting agency shall determine whether the imposition of
the requirements of the provisions hercof duplicate or conflict
with any such federal Iaw and if such duplication or conflict
cxists, the contracting agency shall waive the applicability of
Section 312 to the extemt of such duplication or conflict.
Contractor will comply with all duly promulgated and lawful
rules and regulations of the Department of Ecomomic
Development™s Division of Minority and Women's Business
Development pertaining hereto.

13. CON MS. In the event of a conflict
between the tcﬂm of the vontract (inchuding sny and all
sttachments therews and amendments thercof) and the serms of
this Appendix A. the terms of this Appendix A shall control,

14. GOVERNING LAW, This contract shsll be governed by
the laws of the State of New York except where the Federal
supremacy clause roquires otherwise.

18, LATE PAYMENT. Timclincss of paymicnt and any
interest to be paid to Contractor for late payment shall be
governad by Article 11-A of the State Finance Law to the extent

roquired by law.,

16. NO ARBITRATION. Disputes involving this contract,
including the dreach or alleged breach thereof, may not be
submiticd to binding arbitation (cxcept where statutorily
authorized). but must, instcad, be heard in a coust of competent
Jjurisdiction of the State of New York

17. SERVICE OF PROCESS, In addition w the methods of
serviee allowed by the State Civil Practice Law & Rukes
(“CPLR™). Contrsctor hereby consents 10 service of process
upon it by registered o certificd mail, return receipt roguested.
Service hercunder shall be complete upon Contractos’s actual
receipt of process o upon the State’s seceipt of the retun
thereof by the Uniied Swtes Postal Service as refused or
undeliverable.  Contractor must promptly notify the State, in
writing. of exch and every change of address to which service
of process can be made. Service by the S1ate to the Jast known
addicss shall be sufficient. Contractor will have thity (30)

June 2023



calendar days aficr service hereunder is complete in which to
sespond.

18. PROHIBITION ON PURCHASE OF TROPICAL
HARDWOODS, The Contracior certifics and warrants that afl
wood products to be used undor this coatract award will be in
sccordance with, but not limited to. the specifications and
provisions of Section 165 of the State Finance Law. (Use of
Tropical Hardwoods) which prohibits purchase and use of
tropical hardwoods. unless specifically exempted. by the State
or any goveramental agency or political subdivision or public
benefit corporation. Qualification for an exemprion under this
law will be the responsibility of the contractor to cstablish to
moet with the approval of the State.

In addition, when any portion of this contract mvolving the wse
of woods, whether supply or installation, is to be performed by
any subcontractor, the prime Coatractor will indicate and
centify in the submitted bid proposal that the subcontractor has
been informed and is in compliance with specifications and
provisfons reganding usc of tropical handwoods as detailed in
§ 165 State Finance Law. Any such usc must meet with the
approval of the State; otherwise, the bid may not be vonsidered
responsive. Under bidder certifications, proof of qualification
for exemption will be the responsibility of the Contractor to
moect with the approval of the State.

19. MACBRIDE FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES. In
accondance with the MacBride Fair Employment Principles
{Chapter 807 of the Laws of 1992). the Contractor hercby
stipulstes that the Conuactor either (&) has no business
operations in Northem Ireland. or (b) shall take lawful steps in
good faith 1o conduct sny busincss operations in Northern
Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment
Principles (8s describod in Section 165 of the New York State
Finsnce Law), and shall permit indcpendent monitoring of
compliance with such principles.

20. OMNIBUS PROCUREMENT ACT OF 1992, It is the
policy of New York State to maximize opportunitics for the
participstion of New York State business enterprises, including
minority- and women-owned business enterpriscs as bidders,
subcontractors and supplicrs on its procurement contracts.

Information on the availsbility of New York State
subcontraciors and supplicrs s available from:

NYS Department of Economic Development

Division for Small Business and Technology Development
628 Brosdway

Albany, New York 12245

Telcphone: S18-292-53100

A directory of centified minority- and women-owned business
eaterpeiscs i3 available from:

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 6 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts

NY'S Department of Economic Development

Division of Minority and Women'®s Business Development
633 Third Avenuc 33rd Floo

New York. NY 10017

6456-846-7364

email: mwhchusinomdevigcid iy gov,

https Uy ncwnveontracts.com FrontEnd seancheertifiedds

A {UAY .a.:_n

The Omnibus Procurement Act of 1992 (Chapter 844 of the
Laws of 1992, codified in State Finance Law § 139-i and Public
Authoritics Law § 28793 )n)-{p}} requires that by signing this
bid proposal or contract. as spplicable. Contractoss centify that
whenever the 1oial bid amount is greatee than S million:

(z) The Contractor has made reasonable efforts 10 encourage
the participation of New York State Business Enterprises as
supplices and subcontractons. including certified minority- and
women-owned business enterprises, on this projeet, and ha
retained the documentation of these efforts 1o be provided upon
request o the State:

(b) The Contractor has complied with the Federal Equal
Opportunity Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-261), as amended:

(c) The Contractor agrees 1o make reasonable efforts to provide
notification to New York State residents of cmployment
oppostunitics on this project through listing any such positions
with the Job Scrvice Division of the New York Sutce
Department of Lsbor. or providing such sotificstion in such
manncr a5 i consistent with existing collective bargsining
contracts or agreements.  The Contsactor agrees 10 document
these efforts and to provide said documentation to the State
upon request; and

(d) The Contractor acknowledpos notice that the State may seck
to obtain offsct cradits from foreign countrics as a result of this
contract and agrees to cooperate with the State in these effort.

21, RECIPROCITY _AND SANCTIONS PROVISIONS.
Bidders are hereby notificd that if their principal place of
business is locaied in a country. nation. province. stale or
political subdivision that penalizes New York State vendors,
and if the poods or scrvices they offer will be substantially
produced or performed outside New York State, the Omnibus
Procurement Act 1994 and 2000 amendments (Chapier 684 and
Chaptcr 383, rospoctively, codified in Suaic Finance Law
£ 165(6) and Public Authoritics Law § 287%3)) require that
du:) be denied contracts which they would otherwise obtain,
NOTE: As of May 2023. the list of discriminatory jurisdictions
subject 1o this provision includes the states of South Casolins,
Alasks, West Vieginia, Wyoming, Louisiana and Hawaii,

22, COMPLIANCE WITH BREACH NOTIFICATION
AND DATA SECURITY LAWS, Contractor shall comply
with the provisions of the New York State Information Secuority

June 2023



Breach and Notification Act (General Business Law §§ 899-sa
and 899-bb and State Technology Law § 208).

23 COMPLIANCE wWiTH CONSULTANT
DISCLOSURE _LAW. If this is a coatract for consuhing
serviees, defined for purposes of this requirement o include
analysis, cvaluation. rescarch, training. data provessing.
computer programming, engincering. enviconmental. health,
and mental health scrvices, sceounting. suditing. paralegal.
legal or similar services, then. in accordance with Section 163
(4Xg) of the State Finance Law (as amended by Chapter 10 of
the Laws of 2006). the Contractor shall imely, accurately and
properly comply with the requirement to submit an annual
employment report for the contract 1o the agency that awarded
the contract, the Department of Civil Service and the State
Comptroller.

24, PROCUREMENT 1.OBBYING. To the exient this
agreoment is a “procurement contract” 25 defined by State
Finanoo Law §§ 139-j and 139-k. by signing this agreement the
contractor certifies and affirms that all disclosures madke in
accordance with State Finance Law §§ 139 and 139-k are
complete, truc and sccurste. In the event such certification is
found 1o be intentionally falsc or intentionally incomplete. the
Sute may terminate the agreement by providing writien
notification 1o the Contractor in accordance with the terms of
the agreement.

28, CERTIFICATION _OF REGISTRATION TO
COLLECT SALES AND COMPENSATING USE TAX BY

CERTAIN STATE CONTRACTORS, AFFILIATES AND

SUBCONTRACTORS.
To the extent this agreement is a contract as defined by Tax Law

§ 5-a. if the contractor fails 1o make the centification required
by Tax Law § 5-3 or if during the term of the contract, the
Department of Taxation and Finanoe or the covered agency. a3
defined by Tax Law § S-a. disoos ers that the cortification. made
undcr penalty of perjury, is false, then such failure to filc of
falsc contification shall be a material breach of this contract and
this vontract may be terminsted, by providing written
notification 1o the Contractor in aocordance with the terms of
the agreement, if the vovered agency determines that such
action is in the best interest of the State.

26. IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT. By entering into this
Agseement, Contractor cortifics in accordance with State

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 7 of 7, Appendix A — Standard Clauses for NYS Contracts

Finanoe Law § 165-a that it s not on the “Entitscs Determuned
1o be Non-Responsive Bidders'Offerers pursuant to the New
York State Iran Divestment Act of 20127 (“Prohibited Entitics
List™") posted at: hitps:Vours ov.goviran-divestment-act-2012

Contrsctor further centifies that it will not utilize on this
Contract any subcontraclos that is aknlificd on the Prohibited
Entitics List, Contractor agrees that should it seck 10 renew or
extend this Contracl, it must provide the same certification at
the time the Contract is rencwed or exiended. Contractor also
agrees that any proposcd Assignoe of this Comtract will be
required 1o certify that it is not on the Prohibited Entities List
before the contract assignment will be approved by the State.

During the term of the Contract. should the state agency seceive
information that a penan (as defined in State Finance Law
§ 165-2) is in violation of the above-referenced certifications.
the state agency will review such information and effer the
person sn opportunity to respond.  1f the porson fails w
demonstrate that it has ceased ils engagement in the inveitment
activity which is in violation of the Act within 90 days afler the
detcrmination of such violation, then the state apency shall take
such action as may be appropriate and provided for by law. rule.
o1 contract. including., but not limited to. imposing sanctions,
sccking compliance. recovering damages. or declaring the
Contractor in default.

The statc agency reserves the right to sejoct any bid, request for
assignment, renewal or extension for an entity that appears on
the Prohibited Eatities List prior to the award. assignment,
rencwal or extension of a contracl, and W pursue 8
responsibility review with respoct (o any entity that is awarded
3 contract and appoans on the Prohibited Entties list afic
conlract award.

27. ADMISSIBILITY OF REPRODUCTION OF
CONTRACT. Notwithstanding the best evidence rulke or any
other legal peinciple or rule of evidence to the conuary, the
Contractor acknow Jedges snd agrees that it waives any and all
objections w0 the admissibilily into evidence at sny court
peoceeding or 10 the use a1 any ¢Xamination before trial of an
cleetronic reproduction of this contract, in e form spproved
by the State Comptroller, if such approval was sequired,
regardless of whether the original of ssid contract is in
exisionce.

June 2023



ATTACHMENT A-1

New York State Department of State (1/16/24)

Agency Specific Clauses

For the purposes of this Agreement, the terms "State" and "Department” are
interchangeable, unless the context requires otherwise. In addition, the terms "Agreement"
and "Contract" are interchangeable, unless the context requires otherwise.

A. Project Timetable

The Contractor agrees to proceed expeditiously with the Project and to complete the Project
in accordance with any timetable associated therewith as set forth in the Work Plan
(Attachment C) as well as with the conditions of any applicable permits, administrative
orders, or judicial orders and this Agreement.

B. Budget Modifications

Prior DOS written approval is required for all requests for budget modifications, regardless
of the amount of the modification, or where the proposed modification will result in a
transfer of funds among program activities or budget cost categories, but does not affect
the amount, consideration, scope or other terms of such contract. All requests for
modifications must be done in writing and requires a detailed breakdown of requested
changes and justification for the request. Additional approvals will be required when
modifications exceed thresholds described below.

Any proposed modification to a contract that will result in a transfer of funds among
program activities or budget cost categories, but does not affect the amount, consideration,
scope or other terms of such contracts must be submitted to DOS for submission to the

Office of State Comptroller for approval when:

1. The amount of the modification is equal to or greater than ten percent of the total
value of the contract for contracts of less than five million dollars; or

2. The amount of the modification is equal to or greater than five percent of the total
value of the contract for contracts of more than five million dollars.

C. Documentation of Performance

In addition to the criteria set forth in Section III(E)(1)(b) of the NYS Contract for Grants,
documentation of personal service expenditures shall:

1. Be based upon actual work performed;

2. Be supported by internal controls that provide a reasonable assurance that the
charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated; and

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 1 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



3. Comply with the Contractor’s established accounting policies and conform to
generally accepted accounting principles.

D. License to Use and Reproduce Documents, Intellectual Property and Other Works:

By acceptance of this Agreement, Contractor transfers to the Department a perpetual,
transferable, nonexclusive license to use, reproduce in any medium, and distribute, for any
purpose, any intellectual property or other work purchased, developed or prepared for or
in connection with the Project using funding provided pursuant to this Contract, including
but not limited to reports, maps, designs, plans, analysis, and documents regardless of the
medium in which they are originally produced. Contractor warrants to the Department that
it has sufficient title or interest in such works to license pursuant to this Agreement, and
further agrees and warrants that it shall not enter into any subcontract or other agreement
purporting to limit such title or interest in such works in any manner that may compromise
Contractor’s ability to provide the aforesaid license to the Department. Such warranties
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to provide the original
of each such work, or a copy thereof which is acceptable to the Department, to the
Department before payments shall be made under this Agreement.

E. Property

The ownership of all property or intellectual property described herein and purchased,
developed or prepared under the terms of this Contract shall reside with the Contractor
with a reversionary interest in such property or intellectual property held by the
Department, unless otherwise authorized or directed in writing by the Department. Except
as otherwise provided in Section II(A)(3) of the NYS Contract for Grants, Contractor shall
retain ownership of such property or intellectual property after the term of this Contract so
long as such property or intellectual property is used for purposes similar to those
contemplated by this Contract. Otherwise, the Contractor shall return such property or
intellectual property to the Department at the Contractor’s cost and expense, and
Contractor’s ownership interests, rights and title in such property or intellectual property
shall revert to the Department. The ownership of all property purchased with federal funds
provided pursuant to this Agreement, however, shall be governed by the terms of applicable
federal law including, but not limited to, 2 CFR Part 200, “Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” as amended.

In addition to the requirements of Section III(D)(4) of the NYS Contract for Grants, the
Contractor shall maintain an inventory of all property purchased under this Agreement and
owned by the Contractor. Such inventory shall be retained by the Contractor for the time
period specified in Section III(E)(1) and available for inspection and copying by the State.

F. Termination

The Department may terminate the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in Section II(A) of the NYS Contract for Grants. In addition to other reserved
rights it has to terminate this Agreement, the Department may terminate or suspend the

Agreement under the following circumstances:

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 2 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



1. The Contractor shall complete the project as set forth in this Agreement, and failure
to render satisfactory progress or to complete the project to the satisfaction of the
State may be deemed an abandonment of the project and may cause the suspension
or termination of any obligation of the State. In the event the Contractor should be
deemed to have abandoned the project for any reason or cause other than a national
emergency or an Act of God, all monies paid to the Contractor by the State and not
expended in accordance with this Agreement shall be repaid to the State upon
demand. If such monies are not repaid within forty-five (45) days after such
demand, the State Comptroller of the State of New York may cause to be withheld
from the Contractor any State assistance to which the Contractor would otherwise
be entitled in an amount equal to the monies demanded or the Department may
pursue any other remedies available to the State.

2. The Department shall also have the right to postpone or suspend the Agreement or
deem it abandoned without this action being a breach of the Agreement. The
Department shall provide written notice to the Contractor indicating the Agreement
has been postponed, suspended or abandoned. During any postponement,
suspension or abandonment the Contractor agrees not to do any work under the
Agreement without prior written approval of the Department.

3. Any funds paid to the Contractor by the Department which are not expended under
the terms of the Agreement shall be repaid to the Department.

G. Subcontracting Requirements

1. Contractor agrees that it shall not enter into any subcontract for the performance of
work in furtherance of this Contract with any subcontractor that at the time of
contracting: (1) is listed on the New York State Department of Labor’s list of
companies with which New York State cannot do business (available at
https://apps.labor.ny.gov/EDList/searchPage.do) or is listed on the New York State
Office of General Service’s list of companies with which New York State cannot
do business  (available at https://ogs.ny.gov/debarred-and-non-responsible-
entities); (2) is listed as an entity debarred from federal contracts (available at:
sam.gov); or (3) fails to possess requisite workers compensation and disability

insurance coverage (see http:/www.wcb.ny.gov).

In addition, Contractor agrees that it shall immediately suspend or terminate any
subcontract entered into for the performance of work in furtherance of this Contract
if at any time during the term of such subcontract the subcontractor: (1) is listed on
the New York State Department of Labor’s list of companies with which New York
State cannot do business (available at
https://apps.labor.ny.gov/EDList/searchPage.do) or is listed on the New York State
Office of General Service’s list of companies with which New York State cannot
do business  (available at https://ogs.ny.gov/debarred-and-non-responsible-
entities); (2) is listed as an entity debarred from federal contracts (available at:
sam.gov ); or (3) fails to maintain requisite workers compensation or disability
insurance coverage (see http://www.wcb.ny.gov). Contractor agrees that any such

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 3 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



suspension shall remain in place until the condition giving rise to the suspension is
corrected by the subcontractor. The terms of this clause shall be incorporated in any
and all subcontracts entered into in furtherance of this Contract.

2. The Contractor’s use of subcontractors shall not diminish the Contractor’s
obligations to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor
shall control and coordinate the Work of its subcontractors.

3. The Contractor shall be responsible for informing its subcontractors of all the terms,
conditions and requirements of the Contract including, but not limited to the terms
of the Agreement, any and all Appendices, and any changes made by amendments
thereto, and ensuring that any and all subcontracts entered into in furtherance of
this Contract conform to and do not conflict with such terms.

4. Contractor shall file each and every subcontract entered into in furtherance of this
Contract with the Department of State no later than fifteen (15) calendar days
following the signing of the subcontract, unless otherwise authorized or directed by

the Department of State.

5. In addition to the requirements of Section I1I(B)(2) of the NYS Contract for Grants,
the Department reserves the right to require, upon notice to the Contractor, that,
commencing from the date of such notice or a date otherwise specified in such
notice, Contractor must obtain written approval from the Department prior to
entering into any and all subcontracts valued at or below $100,000 for the
performance of any activities covered by this Contract. Contractor agrees to require
any proposed subcontractors to timely provide to the Department such information
as may be requested by the Department as necessary to assess whether the proposed
subcontractor is a responsible entity capable of lawfully and satisfactorily
performing the work. In the event the Department invokes this right of prior
approval and a request for approval is submitted by Contractor and denied by the
Department, Contractor agrees that it shall not enter into the proposed subcontract
and that no costs associated with such subcontract shall be allowable under this

Contract.
H. Compliance with Procurement Requirements

1. All contracts by municipalities for service, labor, and construction involving not
more than $35,000 and purchase contracts involving not more than $20,000 are
subject to the requirements of General Municipal Law §104-b, which requires such
contracts to comply with the procurement policies and procedures of the
municipality involved. All such contracts shall be awarded after and in accordance
with such municipal procedures, subject to the MWBE requirements as set forth in
Section M, SDVOB requirements set forth in Section N, and any additional
requirements imposed by the State as set forth in this Agreement.

The municipal attorney, chief legal officer or financial administrator of the
Contractor shall certify to the Department of State that applicable public bidding

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 4 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



procedures of General Municipal Law §103 were followed for all service, labor,
and construction contracts involving more than $35,000 and all purchase contracts
involving more than $20,000. In the case of contracts by municipalities, service,
labor, and construction contracts involving not more than $35,000 and purchase
contracts involving not more than $20,000, the municipal attorney, chief legal
officer or financial administrator shall certify that the procedures of the
municipality established pursuant to General Municipal Law §104-b were fully
complied with, in addition to the MWBE requirements as set forth in Section M,
SDVOB requirements set forth in Section N, and any additional requirements
imposed by the State as set forth in this Agreement.

2. For non-municipal entities, the chief legal officer or financial administrator of the
Contractor shall certify to the State that alternative proposals and quotations for
professional services were secured by use of written requests for proposals through
a publicly advertised process satisfactory to meet the MWBE requirements set forth
in Section M, SDVOB requirements set forth in Section N, any additional
requirements imposed by the State as set forth in this Agreement, any applicable

law, and its own policies.
L. Vendor Responsibility Determinations

A Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire and Certification is required for certain contracts.
This Questionnaire is designed to provide information to assist the contracting agency in
assessing a Contractor’s responsibility, prior to entering into a contract, and must be
completed and submitted electronically or returned with the contract. Contractor is invited
to file the required Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire online via the New York State
VendRep System or may choose to complete and submit a paper questionnaire. To enroll
in and use the New York State VendRep System, see the VendRep System Instructions
available at http://osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/index.htm. For direct VendRep System user
assistance, the Office of the State Comptroller’s Help Desk may be reached at 866-370-
4672 or 518-408-4672 or by email at helpdesk@osc.state.ny.us. Vendors opting to file a
paper questionnaire can obtain the appropriate questionnaire from the VendRep website
www.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep or may contact the Department of State or the Office of the

State Comptroller’s Help Desk for a copy of the paper form.
J. State Attorney General Charities Registration

In accordance with the Estates, Powers and Trust Law § 8-1.4 (s), the Contractor certifies
that it is in compliance with the requirements of Estate, Powers and Trusts Law sections 8-
1.4 (d), (f), and (g), if applicable, regarding organizations which administer property for
charitable purposes registering and filing periodic reports (together with the appropriate
filing fees) with the New York State Attorney General's Charities Bureau. This certification
is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the Department of
State in entering into this Agreement with the Contractor.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 5 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



The Contractor agrees that it will provide immediate written notice to the Department of
State if at any time it learns that this certification was erroneous when made or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

K. Records Access

The Contractor shall make such records available for review by the Department upon
request at any time. The Department shall have the right to conduct progress assessments
and review books and records as necessary. The Department shall have the right to conduct
an on-site review of the Project and/or books and records of the Contractor prior to, and
for reasonable time following, issuance of the final payment. The Department shall be
entitled to disallow any cost or expense, and/or terminate or suspend this Agreement, if the
Contractor has misrepresented any expenditures or Project activities in its application to

the Department, or in this Agreement, or in any progress reports or payment requests made
pursuant hereto. The Contractor shall maintain such books and records in a manner so that

reports can be produced therefrom in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Contractor shall maintain separate financial books and records for all funds

received through the Department pursuant to this Agreement.

L. Notices

Pursuant to Section I(G) of the NYS Contract for Grants, notice hereunder shall be
addressed as follows:

1. Notice to the State

Name: Laurissa Garcia
Title: Contract Management Specialist 2
Agency: Department of State
Division: Office of Planning, Development and Community Infrastructure
Address: 99 Washington Avenue, Suite 1010
Albany, NY 12231
Phone: 518-948-0414

Email Address:  opdcontracts(@dos.ny.gov

2. Notice to the Contractor

Name: Lynne Ruda

Title: Mayor

Affiliation: Village of Lancaster

Address: 5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

Phone: 716-683-2105

Email Address: lruda@lancastervillage.org

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 6 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



M.  Minority and Women Owned Business Participation

Article 15-A of the New York State Executive Law, as amended, authorized the creation
of a Division of Minority and Women's Business Development to promote employment
and business opportunities on state contracts for minorities and women. This law
supersedes any other provision in state law authorizing or requiring an equal employment
opportunity program or a program for securing participation by minority and women-
owned business enterprises. Under this statute, State agencies are charged with
establishing business participation goals for minorities and women. The Department of
State administers a Minority and Women-owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) Program

as mandated by Article 15-A.

1. General Provisions

a. The Department of State is required to implement the provisions of New York
State Executive Law Article 15-A and Parts 140-145 of Title 5 of the New
York Codes, Rules and Regulations (“NYCRR?) for all State contracts, as
defined therein, with a value (1) in excess of $25,000 for labor, services,
equipment, materials, or any combination of the foregoing or (2) in excess of
$100,000 for real property renovations and construction.

b. The Contractor to the subject Contract (the “Contractor” and the “Contract,”
respectively) agrees, in addition to any other nondiscrimination provision of
the Contract and at no additional cost to the New York State Department of
State (the “Agency”™), to fully comply and cooperate with the Agency in the
implementation of New York State Executive Law Article 15-A and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. These requirements include equal
employment opportunities for minority group members and women (“EEO”)
and contracting opportunities for New York State-certified minority and
women-owned business enterprises (“MWBEs”). The Contractor’s
demonstration of “good faith efforts” pursuant to 5 NYCRR §142.8 shall be a
part of these requirements. These provisions shall be deemed supplementary
to, and not in lieu of, the nondiscrimination provisions required by New York
State Executive Law Article 15 (the “Human Rights Law”) and other
applicable federal, state, and local laws. Contractor agrees that the terms
“MWBE,” “MBE” and “WBE” as used herein, shall mean those MBE or WBE
firms certified as such by the State pursuant to NY Executive Law Atticle 15-
A and listed in the directory of New York State Certified MWBES found at the
following internet address: https://ny.newnycontracts.com/.

c. Failure to comply with all of the requirements herein may result in a finding
of non-responsiveness, non-responsibility and/or a breach of contract, leading
to the assessment of liquidated damages pursuant to Section M(7) of this
Attachment and such other remedies as are available to the Agency pursuant

to the Contract and applicable law.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 7 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



2. Contract Goals

a. The Department’s New York State-certified Minority and Women-owned

Business Enterprises (“MWBEs”) utilization goal is 30%. For purposes of this
Contract, the specific overall MWBE goal and the breakdown between the
Minority-owned Business Enterprise (“MBE”) and the Women-owned
Business Enterprise (“WBE”) utilization goals, are set forth in the Attachment
B “Budget”, based on the current availability of MBEs and WBE:s.

b. For purposes of providing meaningful participation by MWBEs on the

Contract and achieving the MWBE Contract Goals established in this
Agreement, the Contractor should reference the directory of New York State
Certified MWBEs found at the following internet address:
https://ny.newnycontracts.com/.

Additionally, the Contractor is encouraged to contact the Division of Minority
and Women’s Business Development at (212) 803-2414 to discuss additional
methods of maximizing participation by MWBEs on the Contract.

c. The Contractor understands that only sums paid to MWBEs for the

performance of a commercially useful function, as that term is defined in 5
NYCRR § 140.1, may be applied towards the achievement of the applicable
MWBE participation goal. The portion of a contract with an MWBE serving
as a broker that shall be deemed to represent the commercially useful function
performed by the MWBE shall be 25 percent of the total value of the broker’s

contract.

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS — The portion of a contract with an
MWBE serving as a supplier that shall be deemed to represent the
commercially useful function performed by the MWBE shall be 60 percent of
the total value of the supplier’s contract. The portion of a contract with an
MWBE serving as a broker that shall be deemed to represent the commercially
useful function performed by the MWBE shall be the monetary value for fees,
or the markup percentage, charged by the MWBE.

d. The Contractor must document "good faith efforts,” pursuant to 5 NYCRR

Contract Number: C1003029

§142.8, to provide meaningful participation by MWBEs as subcontractors and
suppliers in the performance of the Contract. Such documentation shall
include, but not necessarily be limited to:

(1) Evidence of outreach to MWBEs;

(2) Any responses by MWBE:s to the Contractor’s outreach;

(3) Copies of advertisements for participation by MWBESs in appropriate
general circulation, trade, and minority or women-oriented
publications;

(4) The dates of attendance at any pre-bid, pre-award, or other meetings,
if any, scheduled by the Agency with MWBEs; and,

Page 8 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



(5) Information describing specific steps undertaken by the Contractor to
reasonably structure the Contract scope of work to maximize
opportunities for MWBE participation.

3. Equal Employment Opportunity (“EEO”)

a. The provisions of Article 15-A §312 of the Executive Law and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder pertaining to equal employment
opportunities for minority group members and women shall apply to the

Contract.
b. In performing the Contract, the Contractor shall:

(1) Ensure that each contractor and subcontractor performing work on the
Contract shall undertake or continue existing EEO programs to ensure
that minority group members and women are afforded equal
employment opportunities without discrimination because of race,
creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status. For
these purposes, EEO shall apply in the areas of recruitment,
employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion,
transfer, layoff, or termination and rates of pay or other forms of
compensation.

(2) The Contractor shall submit an EEO policy statement to the Agency
within seventy two (72) hours after the date of the notice by Agency
to award the Contract to the Contractor.

(3) If the Contractor, or any of the subcontractors does not have an
existing EEO policy statement, the Agency may require the
Contractor or subcontractor to adopt a model statement (see Form A -
Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises Equal
Employment Opportunity Policy Statement).

(4) The Contractor's EEO policy statement shall include the following

language:

(a) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national
origin, sex, age, disability or marital status, will undertake or
continue existing EEO programs to ensure that minority group
members and women are afforded equal employment
opportunities without discrimination, and shall make and
document its conscientious and active efforts to employ and
utilize minority group members and women in its work force.

(b) The Contractor shall state in all solicitations or advertisements
for employees that, in the performance of the Contract, all
qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment
opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed,
color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status.

Contract Number; C1003029
Page 9 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



(c) The Contractor shall request each employment agency, labor
union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has
a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, to
furnish a written statement that such employment agency, labor
union, or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race,
creed, color, national origin, sex age, disability or marital status
and that such union or representative will affirmatively cooperate
in the implementation of the Contractor's obligations herein.

(d) The Contractor will include the provisions of Subdivisions (a)
through (c) of this Subsection 4 and Paragraph “e” of this section
3, which provides for relevant provisions of the Human Rights
Law, in every subcontract in such a manner that the requirements
of the subdivisions will be binding upon each subcontractor as to
work in connection with the Contract.

c. Form B - Staffing Plan

If the total expenditure of this Contract is in excess of $250,000, the following
provision shall apply:

The Contractor shall submit a staffing plan to document the composition of the
proposed workforce to be utilized in the performance of the Contract by the
specified categories listed, including ethnic background, gender, and Federal
occupational categories. The Contractor shall complete the Staffing plan form
and submit it as part of their proposal or within a reasonable time, as directed

by the Department of State.
d. Form C - Workforce Utilization Report

(1) The Contractor shall submit a Workforce Utilization Report, and shall
require each of its subcontractors to submit a Workforce Utilization
Report, in such form as shall be required by the Agency on a monthly
basis for construction contracts, and on a quarterly basis for all other
contracts, during the term of the Contract.

(2) Separate forms shall be completed by the Contractor and any
subcontractors performing work on the Contract.

e. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Human Rights Law, as
well as all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-
discrimination provisions. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
race, creed (religion), color, sex, national origin, citizenship or immigration
status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, military status, age,
disability, predisposing genetic characteristic, familial status, marital status or
domestic violence victim status, or has filed a complaint, testified, or assisted

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 10 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



in any proceeding under the Human Rights Law, and shall also follow the
requirements of the Human Rights Law with regard to non-discrimination on
the basis of prior criminal conviction and prior arrest.

4. MWBE Utilization Plan

a. The Contractor represents and warrants that the Contractor has submitted an
MWBE Utilization Plan or shall submit an MWBE Utilization Plan at such
time as shall be required by the Department of State through the New York
State  Contract System (“NYSCS”), which can be viewed at
https://ny.newnycontracts.com, provided, however, that the Contractor may
arrange to provide such evidence via a non-electronic method to the
Department of State, either prior to, or at the time of, the execution of the

Contract.

b. The Contractor agrees to adhere to such MWBE Utilization Plan for the
performance of the Contract.

c. The Contractor further agrees that a failure to submit and/or adhere to such
MWBE Utilization Plan shall constitute a material breach of the terms of the
Contract. Upon the occurrence of such a material breach, the Agency shall be
entitled to any remedy provided herein, including but not limited to, a finding
that the Contractor is non-responsive.

5. Waivers

a. If the Contractor, after making good faith efforts, is unable to achieve the
MWBE Contract Goals stated herein, the Contractor may submit a request for
a waiver through the NYSCS, or a non-electronic method provided by the
Agency (use Form E - Waiver Request). Such waiver request must be
supported by evidence of the Contractor’s good faith efforts to achieve the
maximum feasible MWBE participation towards the applicable MWBE
Contract Goals. If the documentation included with the waiver request is
complete, the Agency shall evaluate the request and issue a written notice of
approval or denial within twenty (20) business days of receipt.

b. If the Agency, upon review of the MWBE Utilization Plan, quarterly MWBE
Contractor Compliance Reports described in Section 6, or any other relevant
information, determines that the Contractor is failing or refusing to comply
with the MWBE Contract Goals and no waiver has been issued in regards to
such non-compliance, the Agency may issue a notice of deficiency to the
Contractor. The Contractor must respond to the notice of deficiency within
seven (7) business days of receipt. Such response may include a request for
partial or total waiver of MWBE Contract Goals.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 11 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Termss and Conditions



6. Quarterly MWBE Contractor Compliance Report

The Contractor is required to submit a Quarterly MWBE Contractor
Compliance Report (Form F) to the Agency by the 10th day following each end
of quarter over the term of the Contract documenting the progress made towards
achievement of the MWBE goals of the Contract.

The Agency may require the Contractor to use the NYSCS to submit utilization
plans, record payments to subcontractors and otherwise report compliance with
the provisions of Article 15-A of the Executive Law and regulations. Technical
assistance can be obtained through the NYSCS website at
https://ny.newnycontracts.com by clicking on the “Contact Us & Support” link.

Questions regarding this program should be directed to the Department's
Minority and Women-owned Business Program by calling (518) 474-2754.
Potential contractors can access the NYS Directory of Certified Minority and
Women-owned Business Enterprises on-line through the Empire State
Development website at https:/ny.newnycontracts.com. The Department
makes no representation with respect to the availability or capability of any
business listed in the Directory.

7. Liquidated Damages - MWBE Participation

a. Where the Agency determines that the Contractor is not in compliance with

Contract Number: C1003029

the requirements of the Contract and the Contractor refuses to comply with
such requirements, or if Contractor is found to have willfully and intentionally
failed to comply with the MWBE participation goals, the Contractor shall be
obligated to pay to the Agency liquidated damages.

Such liquidated damages shall be calculated as an amount equaling the
difference between:

i) All sums identified for payment to MWBEs had the Contractor
achieved the contractual MWBE goals; and

ii) All sums actually paid to MWBEs for work performed or materials
supplied under the Contract.

In the event a determination has been made which requires the payment of
liquidated damages and such identified sums have not been withheld by the
Agency, the Contractor shall pay such liquidated damages to the Agency
within sixty (60) days after they are assessed. Provided, however, that if the
Contractor has filed a complaint with the Director of the Division of Minority
and Women’s Business Development pursuant to 5 NYCRR § 142.12,
liquidated damages shall be payable only in the event of a determination
adverse to the Contractor following the complaint process.

Page 12 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



N. Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Businesses Participation

Article 3 of Veterans’ Services Law, as amended, authorized the creation of the Division
of Service-Disabled Veterans' Business Development to promote participation of Service-
Disabled Veteran-Owned Businesses (SDVOBs) in New York State contracting. The
Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Act recognizes the veterans’ service to and
sacrifice for our nation, declares that it is New York State’s public policy to promote and
encourage the continuing economic development of service-disabled veteran-owned
businesses, and allows eligible Veteran business owners to become certified as a New York
State Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business (SDVOB), in order to increase their
participation in New York State's contracting opportunities. To this effect, the Department
of State (DOS) has implemented a Veteran-Owned Businesses (SDVOB) Program, as

mandated by Article 3.

To comply with the SDVOB Program goals of 6%, the Department of State strongly
encourages grantees to make every effort, to the maximum extent possible, to engage
certified SDVOBs in the purchasing of commodities, services and technology in the
performance of their contracts with the Department. If SDVOB utilization is obtained, a
quarterly SDVOB utilization report should be submitted to the Department with
information of the utilization percentage achieved during that quarter. Contractor
Reporting Forms are found at: hitps:/dos.ny.gov/supplier-diversity.

The Division of Service-Disabled Veterans' Business Development (DSDVBD) is housed
within the New York State Office of General Services (OGS) and maintains a directory of
the NYS Certified SDVOBs. For assistance with engaging SDVOB vendors in your
contracts, please contact the Division of Service-Disabled Veterans' Business Development
at the following email address: VeteransDevelopment@ogs.ny.gov, or the DOS Bureau of
Fiscal Management — SDVOB Program at dos.sm.sdvob@dos.ny.gov. The directory of
certified SDVOB vendors can be found at: https://sdves.ogs.ny.gov/business-search.

0. Refunds and Repayments

The Contractor shall promptly return funds due the State, including repayment of
unexpended advances or disallowances. The Contractor shall make payment within forty-
five (45) days of the end or termination of the Contract or demand from the Department.
The Contractor shall reference the contract number with its payment and include a brief
explanation of why the refund is made. Refunds shall be made payable to and addressed,

as stated below:
Payable to:  NYS Department State

Mail to: NYS Department of State, Bureau of Fiscal Management

Address: One Commerce Plaza
99 Washington Ave, Suite 1110
Albany, NY 12210

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 13 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



P. Accessibility Compliance Testing

Accessibility compliance testing pursuant to Section III(H) of the NYS Contract for Grants
shall be conducted by the Contractor. Any results or reports of such testing shall promptly
be provided by the Contractor to Department.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 14 of 14, Attachment A-1 — Agency Specific Terms and Conditions



ATTACHMENT A-2

PROGRAM SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Program Specific Clauses - Downtown Revitalization Initiative and the New York Forward
(updated 9/1/2024)

A. This Agreement has been entered into pursuant to the following understandings:

1. The Department of State (Department) administers transformative housing, economic
development, transportation and community projects through the Downtown
Revitalization Initiative (DRI) and the New York Forward (NYF) programs.

2. The State determined to fund Contractor’s project, which is described in Attachment C
(Program Work Plan).

3. State funds (Funding Amount set forth on the Face Page) for this Project (Attachment
C Program Work Plan) are provided pursuant to an appropriation of funds made in the
New York State Capital Projects Budget — Dedicated Infrastructure Investment Fund /

Infrastructure Investment Account.

4. The Contractor shall request payment and reimbursement of eligible and supportable
costs incurred under this Agreement, on an interim basis, and each such payment
request will be processed by the Department in accordance with relevant provisions set
forth herein, together with the following terms:

a. The Department, upon approving each payment request, shall make an interim
payment for eligible and supportable costs incurred by the Contractor.

b. The final payment request will not be processed by the Department prior to
satisfactory completion of the Project.

¢. The Department can withhold the final 10% of the total amount that may be
funded by the State in accordance with this Agreement, until the satisfactory

completion of the Project.

5. No liabilities are to be incurred beyond the contract period and no costs will be
reimbursed for such liabilities unless all of the following conditions have been met: 1)
funds have been reappropriated for the Project in the subsequent State fiscal year, 2)
the Department determines that it is in the best interest of the Department and the State
to provide additional time to complete the Project and 3) an extension agreement is
approved in accordance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations and is executed by

all necessary parties.

6. Subject to the availability of funds, determination by the Department that it is in the
best interest of the State, and upon mutual written consent of the parties, the State may
provide a no-cost time extension. The parties shall revise or complete the appropriate

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 1 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



appendix forms or agreements, which may be subject to approval of the Office of the
State Comptroller.

7. The Contractor has demonstrated its ability to finance its share of the Project and has
agreed to fund its portion of the cost of the Project.

B. Additional Requirements for Construction Projects

1. Project design, including preparation of final plans and specifications, and supervision
of construction shall be undertaken by a qualified architect and/or engineer licensed to
practice in the State of New York. The Contractor shall submit final plans and
specifications to the Department for its acceptance before initiating construction work
or, if the Contractor intends to subcontract for construction work, before the work is
advertised for bidding. No change to project plans may be made without the prior
written approval of the Department. The Contractor shall also be responsible for
erecting a project sign satisfactory to the Department identifying the Department’s
funding of the Project. The project sign shall remain in place for the useful life of the
improvements undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. Upon completion of the Project,
the Contractor shall submit to the Department a proper certification from a licensed

architect or engineer.

2. The State shall make periodic inspections of the project both during its implementation
and after its completion to ensure compliance with this Agreement. The Contractor
shall allow the State unrestricted access to work during the preparation and progress of
the work, and provide for such access and inspection by the State in all construction

contracts relating to the project.

3. The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the project is designed and
constructed in conformance with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS
- Appendix A to 41 CRF part 101-19.6), the Americans with Disabilities Act
Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG - Appendix A of Title 9 NYCRR). Where there are
discrepancies among the sets of standards with regard to a particular
design/construction requirement, the one providing for the greatest degree of
accommodation for the disabled shall apply.

C. Contractors Insurance Requirements

1. Prior to the commencement of the work, the Contractor shall file with the Department
of State, current Certificates of Insurance evidencing compliance with all requirements
contained in this Agreement. Such certificate shall be of form and substance acceptable

to the Department.

2. Acceptance and/or approval by the Department does not and shall not be construed to
relieve Contractor of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under the

Agreement.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 2 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



3. Allinsurance required by the Agreement shall be obtained at the sole cost and expense
of the Contractor; shall be maintained with insurance carriers licensed to do business
in New York State; shall be primary and non-contributing to any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the Department; shall be endorsed to provide written notice
be given to the Department, at least thirty (30) days prior to the cancellation, non-
renewal, or material alteration of such policies, which notice, evidenced by return
receipt of United States Certified Mail which shall be sent to New York State
Department of State, One Commerce Plaza, 99 Washington Avenue, Albany, New
York 12231-0001; and shall name the People of the State of New York and their
directors officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds thereunder.

4. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the payment of all deductibles to which
such policies are subject.

5. Each insurance carrier must be rated at least "A" Class "VII" in the most recently
published Best's Insurance Report. If, during the term of the policy, a carrier's rating
falls below "A” Class "VII", the insurance must be replaced no later than the renewal
date of the policy with an insurer acceptable to the Department and rated at least "A"
Class "VII" in the most recently published Best's Insurance Report.

6. The Contractor shall cause all insurance to be in full force and effect as of the date of
this Agreement and to remain in full force and effect throughout the term of this
Agreement and as further required by this Agreement. The Contractor shall not take
any action, or omit to take any action that would suspend or invalidate any of the
required coverages during the period of time such coverages are required to be in effect.

7. Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date or renewal date, the Contractor
shall supply the Department updated replacement Certificates of Insurance, and

amendatory endorsements.

8. Unless the Contractor is self-insured, Contractor shall, throughout the term of the
Agreement or as otherwise required by this Agreement, obtain and maintain in full
force and effect the following insurance with limits not less than those described below
and as required by the terms of this Agreement, or as required by law, whichever is
greater (limits may be provided through a combination of primary and umbrella/excess
policies). Where Contractor is self-insured, the Contractor shall provide suitable
evidence of such to the Department relating to the risks and coverage amounts as

provided hereunder.

a. Comprehensive Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each
occurrence. Such liability shall be written on the Insurance Service Office's (ISO)
occurrence form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing equivalent coverages and
shall cover liability arising from premises operations, independent contractors,
products-completed operations, broad form property damage, personal &
advertising injury, owners & contractors protective, cross liability coverage,

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 3 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



liability assumed in a contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a
contract) and explosion, collapse & underground coverage.

1) If such insurance contains an aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this
location.

2) Products and Completed Operations coverage shall include a provision that
coverage will extend for a period of at least twelve (12) months from the date
of final completion and acceptance by the owner of all of Contractors work.

b. Where the Project described in Attachment C includes the construction of any
structure or building, a Builder’s Risk Policy until the Project is completed and
accepted in the amount of the total project cost.

c. Workers Compensation, Employers Liability, and Disability Benefits as required
by New York State. Workers Compensation Policy shall include the U.S.
Longshore & Harbor Workers' Compensation Act endorsement.

d. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than
$1,000,000 for each accident. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any
automobile including owned, leased, hired and non-owned automobiles.

e. Commercial Property Insurance covering at a minimum, the perils insured under
the ISO Special Clauses of Loss Form (CP 10 30), or a substitute form providing
equivalent coverages, for loss or damage to any owned, borrowed, leased or rented
capital equipment, tools, including tools of their agents and employees, staging
towers and forms, and property of the Department held in their care, custody and/or

control.
f. An Owner's Protective Liability Policy with limits no less than $1,000,000 in the

name of the Contractor.

9. Professional consultants retained by the Contractor in connection with the Project shall
show evidence of professional liability insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000.

D. Contractor Property Interest

Contractor warrants that it has fee simple or such other estate or interest in the site of the
Project, where the Project is undertaken at a site, including easements and/or rights-of-way
sufficient to assure undisturbed use and possession for the purposes of construction and
operation for the estimated life of the Project. Contractor further acknowledges that where
such project is undertaken on or involves the use of lands for active or passive recreational
use, it is a material term of this Agreement that such lands shall be available for such
recreational use by the People of the State of New York. Additionally, Contractor shall not
limit access or discriminate on the operation of the facilities against any person on the basis
of place of residence, age, creed, race, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital
status, gender identity or expression, domestic violence victim status, disability,

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 4 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



pregnancy-related condition, military status, favorably resolved arrest record, conviction
record, predisposing genetic characteristics, familial status, or citizenship or immigration

status.

E. Date/Time Warranty

1. Contractor warrants that product(s) furnished pursuant to this Contract shall, when used
in accordance with the product documentation, be able to accurately process date/time
data (including, but not limited to, calculating, comparing, and sequencing) transitions,
including leap year calculations. Where a Contractor proposes or an acquisition
requires that specific products must perform as a package or system, this warranty shall

apply to the products as a system.

2. Where Contractor is providing ongoing services, including but not limited to: i)
consulting, integration, code or data conversion, ii) maintenance or support services,
iii) data entry or processing, or iv) contract administration services (e.g. billing,
invoicing, claim processing), Contractor warrants that services shall be provided in an
accurate and timely manner without interruption, failure or error due to the inaccuracy
of Contractor's business operations in processing date/time data (including, but not
limited to, calculating, comparing, and sequencing) various date/time transitions,
including leap year calculations. Contractor shall be responsible for damages resulting
from any delays, errors or untimely performance resulting there from, including but not
limited to the failure or untimely performance of such services.

3. This Date/Time Warranty shall survive beyond termination or expiration of this
Contract through: a) ninety (90) days or b) the Contractor's or Product
manufacturer/developer's stated date/time warranty term, whichever is longer. Nothing
in this warranty statement shall be construed to limit any rights or remedies otherwise
available under this Contract for breach of warranty.

F. Fees

The Contractor may charge a reasonable fee for the use of any facility which is part of the
project.

1. Except for the imposition of a differential fee schedule for non-residents of the
municipality in which the project is located, the establishment of any preferential user
fee for any person or entity is prohibited. Fees charged to non-residents shall not exceed

twice those charged to residents.

2. Where there is no charge for residents but a fee is charged to non-residents, non-
resident fees cannot exceed fees charged for residents at comparable State or local

public facilities.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 5 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



3. Reservation, membership or annual permit systems available to residents must also be
available to non-residents and the period of availability must be the same for both

residents and non-residents.

G. Alienation

Where the project is undertaken on or involves parklands or public waterfront land, the
following additional provisions apply:

1. Contractor warrants that it has fee simple or such other estate or interest in the site
of the Project, where the Project is undertaken at a site, including easements and
for rights-of-way sufficient to assure undisturbed use and possession for the
purposes of construction and operation for the estimated life of the Project.
Contractor further acknowledges that where such project is undertaken on or
involves the use of lands for active or passive recreational use, it is a material term
of this Agreement that such lands shall be available for such recreational use by the
People of the State of New York. Additionally, Contractor shall not limit access or
discriminate on the operation of the facilities against any person on the basis of
place of residence, age, creed, race, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin,
marital status, gender identity or expression, domestic violence victim status,
disability, pregnancy-related condition, military status, favorably resolved arrest
record, conviction record, predisposing genetic characteristics, familial status, or
citizenship or immigration status.

2. The Contractor agrees to own a property interest sufficient to maintain and operate
the project in perpetuity. The Contractor shall not authorize the operation of the
project, or any portion thereof, by any other person, entity, or organization pursuant
to any management agreement, lease or other arrangement without first obtaining

the written approval of the State.

H. Notice of Public Proceedings

The Contractor agrees to provide the Department with prompt and timely written notice at
least two weeks in advance of all public proceedings, including, but not limited to public

meetings or hearings, relating to the Project.

I. Environmental Review

1. Contractor agrees to provide the Department, in a timely manner, with all
documentation, including but not limited to, permit applications, environmental
assessments, designs, plans, studies, environmental impact statements, findings, and

determinations, relating to the Project.

2. Contractor acknowledges that compliance with the State Environmental Quality
Review Act is a material term and condition of this Agreement. In no event shall any
payments be made under this Agreement until Contractor has provided the Department

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 6 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



with appropriate documentation that Contractor has met any requirements imposed on
Contractor by the State Environmental Quality Review Act.

J.  Requirements for Contract GIS Products

1. General GIS Product Requirements -- This document is intended to provide specific
requirements and file delivery formats for all GIS materials developed in support of
NY Department of State (DOS) projects. These work products include map
packages/documents, and associated GIS and imagery files that are created for DOS,
including but not limited to products created under grants, interagency agreements and
contracts. The following general cartographic requirements must be adhered to by the

Contractor:

a. Map Products -- The Department requires delivery of digital map products,
including all associated GIS and/or CAD digital files. Finished maps should also
be provided in a format suitable for viewing and printing (e.g. PDF). All final map
products should be submitted to NYSDOS as an ESRI compatible map package
(e.g., mpkx, ppkx). For any map products which include derived data, a project
package (.ppkx) is the preferred deliverable but any map package that provides the
necessary source data and documentation to replicate the methodology and
geoprocessing history used to derive such data is acceptable.

When creating a map package or project package please make sure to use relative
paths with the following boxes checked:

1) Share outside of organization

2) Include toolboxes

3) Include history items

b. GIS Data -- All final version spatially enabled files acquired or developed to
support mapping and/or spatial analysis through a DOS funded project are
considered property of the DOS and are required to be submitted to DOS. This
includes but is not limited to all GIS, CAD, and image formatted data. Only final
versions of each layer are required for delivery, and must be in an approved format
as specified in this document. In addition, all electronic geospatial data, whether
vector or raster, must have spatial reference information and be projection defined
(have its coordinate system identified and embedded in or associated with the data
file), and in the case of CAD data must NOT be in page space or a custom site-

specific projection.

c. Deliverable Format — Contractors responsible for data generation, maintenance,
and map/figure production for this task are required to submit all final products as
well as all source files and metadata used to derive them on Recordable CD or
DVD, external hard drive, via email attachment (size limit of 20MB) or
downloadable from an fip site on the Internet. If the project is complex or contains
multiple map packages, a directory structure and readme text file in the upper level
directory that describes the structure are required.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 7 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



File naming conventions should be logical, consistent, and contain no spaces or
special characters. An underscore may be used in lieu of a space. A recommended
directory structure is as follows:
<Project Name>
_ Docs (reports, SOPs, correspondence, and other such documents)
_ Images (aerial photos, satellite imagery, logos, DEMs, and other raster type
data)
_ Maps (MXDs and PDFs. Map names should use the project name as a
prefix)
_ Shapes (geodatabases, shape files, and other approved vector data formats)
_ Source (original unmodified data that may have been acquired from
external/internal sources)
_ Tables (MS-Access databases, spreadsheets, delimited text files, or other
such tabular data not stored in a geodatabase)
i. Final Products: Static Digital maps may be submitted in any standard
image format such as JPEG (.jpg), Microsoft Windows bitmap (.bmp),
or Tagged Image Format ( tiff), or Adobe Acrobat (.pdf) document. A
resolution of 150dpi or more is recommended.

ii. Source Files: The underlying map products and associated files shall be
provided upon product delivery. Map products shall include a map
package wherever possible (e.g. .mpk, .aprx, .ppkx) with the
associated data packaged as relative links. If a map document (e.g.,
MXD) is provided in lieu of a map package than all associated map
layers must be provided and referenced as relative paths in the map
document. Acceptable vector spatial data formats are file geodatabases
(.gdb) and shapefiles (.shp, .shx, .dbf, and .prj at a minimum).
Acceptable raster data formats must be compatible with ESRI Arc Info
10.2 or higher and include:

1. TIFF image with world reference file or as a GeoTIFF (.tif, .tfw)

2. JPEG image with world reference file (jpg, .jpw)

3. ERDAS Imagine image with pyramid file (.img, .rrd)

4. MrSid image (.sid)

5. ESRI Grid

6. DEM

7. TINs - appropriate projection/coordinate system for the area
depicted

8. ESRI TIN

Alternatively, the digital products may be provided as ArcInfo/GIS coverages or
CAD files on the same media types upon approval of the Department. All other
digital formats require prior approval of the Department. Coordination with the
Department prior to submission of digital media is required to ensure compatibility
of the delivered materials.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 8 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



d. Documentation

1) A data dictionary must be included along with the map files describing file
contents, file names along with the name, description, data type and length for
each attribute in a data table. Metadata must be provided for each file and shall

include:
1. Title- In plain language;
2. Summary- One or two sentences of information describing what the
data is showing
3. Thumbnail- image of data on map;
4, Description- A paragraph giving a more in-depth description as to the
background of the data, the provider of the data, when the data was last
updated. The who, what, why of the data;
5. Tags/ Descriptive Words- key descriptive words that help focus a
user’s search;
6. Bounds of data- Bounding coordinates (N, E, S, W), usage limitation/
general constraints;
7. Publication Dates: When was the data first published. If it has never
been published, we will give a published date when it is published on the
Gateway;
8. Citation Contact- Who produced the data: Organization name and
phone number, email, website of the organization and or individual
should be provided;
9. Lineage- information describing the revision history of the data. Start
with date of creation, any following update or review dates; and,
10. Use limitations: Please provide any use limitation for the data and

creation methodology.

It is important to understand that deliverables are not considered complete
without metadata. Data provided under federal funds must be provided in a
manner which meets Digital Geospatial Federal Geographic Data Committee
Metadata Standard as executed by Executive Order 12906, April 11,1994,
"Coordinating Geographic Data Acquisition and Access: the National Spatial

Data Infrastructure".

2) Datums and Coordinate Systems — All vector data and map products should be
submitted in geographic coordinate system, decimal degree units, and either
NADS3 or WGS84. Raster data, such as aerial photographs, may be submitted
in their native projection, and maps should be in the appropriate
projection/coordinate system for the area depicted. Where applicable, the
National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1988 (NGVDS88) shall be used as the

preferred vertical datum.

e. Map Accuracy -- All deliverable map products must conform to National Map
Accuracy Standards for horizontal and vertical accuracy as established by the United
States Bureau of the Budget, June 10, 1941, revised June 17, 1947. For example, for

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 9 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



maps at 1:20,000 or smaller, not more than 10% of the well-defined map points tested
must be more than 1/50 inch (0.508 mm) out of correct position. At 1:24,000, this
tolerance translates to a required horizontal accuracy of 40 feet. If by prior agreement
with the Department the map product does not conform to National Map Accuracy
Standards, then a statement of actual map accuracy should be included in the
Documentation above. Furthermore, hydrographic surveys and maps should conform
to recommended accuracy standard proposed in the joint USGS, NOS, Coastal
Mapping Handbook, 1978, Melvin Ellis editor, U.S. Government Printing Office,

Appendix 6.

2. Additional Digital Cartographic File Requirements - The following cartographic
construction requirements must be adhered to by the Contractor:

a. Edge-matching -- All map sheets must be both visually and coordinate edge-
matched with adjacent map sheets. No edge-match tolerance will be allowed.
Attributes for splitable features must also be identical.

b. Common Boundaries -- All features that share a common boundary, regardless of
map layer, must have exactly the same coordinate position of that feature in all

common layers.
¢. Point Duplication -- No duplication of points that occur within a data string is

permitted.

d. Connectivity -- Where graphic elements visually meet, they must also digitally
meet. All confluences of line and polygon data must be exact; "overshoots",
"undershoots", "slivers", or "offshoots" are NOT permitted.

e. Line Quality -- A high quality cartographic appearance must be achieved.
Transitions from straight lines to curvilinear elements must be smooth, with angular
inflections at the point of intersection. The digital representation must not contain
extraneous data at a non-visible level. There should be no jags, hooks, or zero length
segments. Any lines that are straight, or should be straight, should be digitized using
only two points that represent the beginning and ending points of the line.

f. Polygon Closure -- For area features being digitized, the last coordinate pair must
be exactly (mathematically) equal to the first coordinate pair. No line or polygon
must cross itself except to join at an actual confluence. All digitized features across
map boundaries must be edited to effect smooth and continuous lines.

g. Graphic Precision -- Positional coordinates for all digital graphic elements should
not be reported to a level of precision greater than one thousandth (.001) of a foot.

h. Digitizer Accuracy -- The required RMS error for digitizer accuracy must be 0.003
or better for digital map registration.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 10 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



3. Digital-Ready Map Product Requirements -- The following requirements for large
scale, non-digital map products must be followed to facilitate the future conversion of
the maps to digital map products. All large format, non-digital map products must be
provided on stable base material at a scale. The map products must include an index
map to all map sheets and thorough descriptions of all the cartographic elements

portrayed on the maps.

a. Base Map Media -- All maps must be created on mylar or other stable base material.

b. Map Scale -- All maps of a similar series should be created using the same base
scale. Unless otherwise stated by the Department, all maps should be compiled at
1:24,000. If other map scales are approved by the Department, where possible they
will conform to standard map scales such as 1:9600; 1:50,000; 1:75,000; or

1:100,000.

c. Map Registration -- The maps must provide a minimum of four (4) corner and four
(4) interior ticks tied to USGS/NYSDOT quadrangle Lat/Long or NYTM
coordinates. The maps must be geometrically correct and should register when
overlaid on the appropriate USGS/NYSDOT quadrangle control ticks.

d. Map Title and Legend -- The maps must provide a title and legend block describing
the information contained on the maps, and including the Documentation and
Datums information requested in the General GIS Product Requirements above and

the map scale.

e. Cartographic Quality -- The quality of all map line work and symbolization must
conform to items 1 - 6 in the map criteria set forth in the Additional Digital

Cartographic File Requirements section outlined above.

4. Contract Database Standards

a. Delivery Media -- All database and tabular files must be provided on digital media
as specified above in Deliverable Format.

b. Software Format -- Database and tabular files can be provided in Oracle, Microsoft
Excel or Microsoft Access format. Other formats that are convertible to one of the
aforementioned formats may be used with prior approval of the Department.

¢. Geographic Attributes -- Database and tabular files that contain elements with a
geographic reference must provide a corresponding data field and a geographic
coordinate pair for each feature location.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 11 of 11, Attachment A-2 — Program Specific Terms and Conditions



ATTACHMENT B-1 - EXPENDITURE BASED BUDGET

Budget Summary: Total Budget
A. Salaries $ 0.00
B. Travel $ 0.00
C. Supplies $ 0.00
D. Equipment $ 0.00
E. Contractual Services $ 206,000.00
F. Other $ 0.00
Total Budget: $ 206,000.00
Local Match: $ 0.00
State Funds: $ 206,000.00
MWBE Goals:
Grant Award $ 206,000.00
MBE Goal 15% $ 30,900.00
WBE Goal 15% $ 30,900.00
Contract Number:

Page 1 of 2, Attachment B - Budget




A. SALARIES (including fringe benefits)

Total Budget

0.00
B. TRAVEL Total Budget
0.00
|C. SUPPLIES Total Budget
0.00
D. EQUIPMENT Total Budget
0.00
E. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES Total Budget
Design and construction of a'pocket park at the Lancaster Municipal Building 206.000.00
Subcontractor: To be determined U
206,000.00
F. OTHER Total Budget
0.00
Contract Number:

Page 2 of 2, Attachment B - Budget




ATTACHMENT C - WORK PLAN

Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building

1. Project Description

The Village of Lancaster will advance the Lancaster NY Forward through the following project:

Revitalize and Reconnect Lancaster with a New Pocket Park at the Municipal Building
Enhance the underutilized walkway between the public parking lot located behind the Lancaster Municipal
Building and Broadway/Central Avenue through construction of a new pocket park, creating a vibrant

pedestrian connector and seating area.

2. Required Products

The Contractor must submit to the Department all required products, clearly labeled with the NYS
Comptroller's contract number as indicated on the Face Page of this Contract and where applicable, the related

task number from this Work Plan.

Unless otherwise specified in the Work Plan tasks, the Contractor shall submit products in the following

formats:

e Draft products: one electronic copy of each product must be submitted in Adobe® Acrobat® Portable
Document Format (PDF), created using 300 dpi scanning resolution and Microsoft Word, if applicable.

e Final products: one electronic copy of each product must be submitted in PDF, created using 300 dpi
scanning resolution and Microsoft Word, if applicable. In addition, one paper copy of each final product
(including reports, designs, maps, drawings, and plans) must be submitted.

e Electronic data for all Geographic Information System-based mapping products must be submitted in
either ArcGIS format, or similar product acceptable to the Department, and comply with the
requirements for Contract GIS Products. Formal metadata must be provided with all digital GIS data
which includes, at minimum, a file summary/abstract, intended use, data, source data, and author
information.

e Electronic data for all designs, drawings, and plans must be submitted in the original software that they
were created (such as CAD format or other similar product acceptable to the Department), as well as in
JPG format.

e Photographs and images must be submitted in JPG format with a minimum resolution of 300 dpi and
must be dated and captioned with the location and a brief description of the activity being documented
and include any associated metadata (including the photo’s GPS location where available).

3. Compliance with Procurement Requirements

The municipal attorney, chief legal officer or financial administrator of the municipality shall certify in writing
to the Department that applicable provisions of General Municipal Law were fully complied with.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 1 of 6, Attachment C - Work Plan



4. Project Tasks
Task 1.1 Consultant Selection and Compliance with Procurement Requirements

In consultation with the Department, the Contractor shall retain professional services through the locally
approved procurement process per General Municipal Law. The municipal attorney, chief legal officer or
financial administrator of the municipality shall certify in writing to the Department that applicable
provisions of General Municipal Law were fully complied with.

For preparation/certification of final designs and construction documents, and for supervision of
construction, a licensed professional engineer, architect or landscape architect licensed to practice in New

York State is required.

The Contractor shall prepare the draft subcontract(s) to conduct project work with the selected consultant(s).
The subcontract(s) shall contain a detailed work plan with adequate opportunity for review at appropriate
stages of product completion, a payment schedule with payments tied to receipt of products, and project

costs.

The Contractor shall submit the draft subcontract(s) to the Department for review of the subcontract work
plan for alignment with the appropriate tasks of the work plan as set forth in this contract. The Contractor
shall incorporate the Department’s comments on the subcontract work plan, or scope of services, prior to
execution of the final subcontract(s). The Contractor remains responsible for the legal sufficiency of the
subcontract in accordance with the requirements in the Master Grant Contract and Attachment A-1.

Products:  Consultant(s) selected and approved by the Department. Written certification of compliance with
procurement procedures. Draft and final, executed consultant subcontracts.

Task 1.2 Draft Design

The Contractor shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, a draft design based upon the conceptual designs from
the Strategic Investment Plan. The draft design shall include all required maps, tables, data, written

discussions, and other information as identified in the contract and subcontract work plans. The draft design
shall be provided to the Department for review. Department comments must be addressed to the satisfaction

of the Department in subsequent revisions of the final design.
Products: Draft design and supporting materials.

Task 1.3 Environmental Quality Review

The Contractor shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, all documents necessary to comply with the State
Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) through determination of significance. If a positive declaration

is made, a Draft Environmental Impact Statement shall be prepared.

Products: SEQRA documents and, if necessary, a Draft Environmental Impact Statement.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 2 of 6, Attachment C - Work Plan



Task 1.4 Final Design and Construction Documents

The Contractor shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, the final design and construction drawings, plans,
specifications, and cost estimates. The final design and construction documents shall be provided to the
Department for review. Final design and construction documents are subject to approval by the Department.
These documents must be certified by a licensed professional engineer, architect, or landscape architect and

the appropriate seal must be affixed to these documents.

Products: Final design and construction documents, certified by a licensed professional engineer, architect
or landscape architect.

Task 1.5 Permits

The Contractor shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, the necessary permits or other approval applications
and obtain the required permits or approvals. Prior to construction the Contractor or its consultant(s) shall
also demonstrate that the project is in compliance with 6 NYCRR Part 502, "Floodplain Management
Criteria for State Projects" by obtaining a floodplain development permit, if local regulations establish such
requirements, or by submitting a signed certification, by an official authorized to enforce local floodplain
management regulations, that the project complies with the requirements of the statute.

Products: Copies of all required permits and approvals shall be submitted to the Department upon receipt.

Task 1.6 Bid Process and Selection of Construction Subcontractor

After the final design and construction documents have been approved by the Department, the Contractor
shall prepare and distribute, or cause to be prepared and distributed, a bid invitation to select a construction
subcontractor or subcontractors. Prior to distributing the bid invitation, the Contractor or its consultant(s)
shall submit the bid invitation to the Department for review and comment.

The Contractor shall select the construction subcontractor(s) from the bid respondents and shall prepare a
draft contract or contract(s) to conduct the work with the selected construction subcontractor(s). The
contract(s) shall contain a detailed work plan with adequate opportunity for review at appropriate stages of
project completion, a payment schedule with payments tied to receipt of products/project milestones, and
project costs. The Contractor must certify to the Department that applicable public bidding procedures of
General Municipal Law were followed for the selection of all construction or other subcontractors.

The Contractor shall submit the draft subcontract(s) to the Department for review and approval and shall
incorporate the Department's comments in the final subcontract(s). A copy of the final, executed
subcontract(s) shall be submitted to the Department.

Products: Executed construction subcontract(s). Written certification of procurement procedures.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 3 of 6, Attachment C - Work Plan



Task 1.7 Project Signage

The Contractor shall install, or cause to be installed, a sign satisfactory to the Department identifying the
State’s funding of the project. The project sign shall remain in place for at least 60 days after completion of

construction or initial occupancy, which ever duration is longer.
Products: Department-approved sign design, and photo-documentation that sign is installed in project area.
Task 1.8 Construction, Construction Management and Site Inspection

After receipt of all necessary permits, the Contractor or its construction subcontractor(s) may begin
construction work according to the final design and construction documents — including any site remediation
as necessary to remove contaminated soil. The Contractor shall provide, or cause to be provided, notification
to the Department monthly (or more frequently) in writing of work progress, including any delays which
have occurred. After 70% of the work is completed, the progress notification will include a punch list of any
incomplete items and an estimated schedule for project completion.

The Contractor and/or the Department shall verify progress and completion of the work through periodic site
inspections. The Contractor or its consultant(s) shall submit to the Department written summaries of progress
including photo documentation and identification of problems to be addressed based on periodic site

inspections.

Products: Written summary of periodic site visits including photo-documentation and identification of any
problems that need to be addressed. Punch list and construction completion estimates.

Task 1.9 Completion of Project

Following satisfaction of punch list items, the Contractor shall submit, or cause to be submitted, a statement
that the work has been completed in accordance with the contract and subcontract(s), the final design and
construction specifications, and all permit requirements. The completion statement must be prepared and/or
certified by a licensed professional engineer, architect or landscape architect. Unless otherwise specified
during project kick-off meeting, the Contractor shall submit, or cause to be submitted, two sets of as-built
plans, certified by a licensed professional engineer, architect or landscape architect. When the Contractor is
satisfied work is complete, it shall submit a final project report to the Department, including a copy of the
completion statement and a copy of the certified as-built plans and photo-documentation in the form of
digital images of the site prior to, during and upon completion of work. The Contractor shall not submit a
final payment request to the Department, until the Department concurs that the work is complete.

Products: Statement of completion, certified as-built plans, and final project report including photo-
documentation.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 4 of 6, Attachment C - Work Plan



Task 2.1 MWBE Reporting
Comply with MWBE Reporting Requirements by completing the following actions:

e Submit Form D - MWBE Utilization Plan to indicate any state-certified MWBE firms selected to
work on this contract. Form D must be updated and submitted to the Department whenever changes

to the selected MWBE firms occur (addition or removal).
¢ Record payments to MWBE subcontractors using DOS funds through the New York State Contract

System (NYSCS).

Technical assistance for use of the NYSCS system can be obtained through the NYSCS website at
https://ny.newnycontracts.com by clicking on the “Contact Us & Support™ link.

Products: Ongoing reporting through NYSCS during the life of the contract.

Task 2.2 Project Status Reports

The Contractor shall submit project status reports semi-annually (every June 30 and December 31) on the
form provided, including a description of the work accomplished, the status of all tasks in this work plan,
schedule of completion of remaining tasks, and an explanation of any problems encountered.

Products: Completed project status reports submitted to DOS during the life of the contract.

Task 2.3 Final Project Summary Report

The Contractor or its consultant(s) shall work with the Department project manager to complete the Final
Project Summary Report. Final payment shall not be authorized until this report has been completed and

filed with project deliverables.

Products: Completed Final Project Summary Report submitted to DOS.

5. Project Responsibilities

The Contractor shall administer the grant, execute a contract with the Department, and ensure the completion of
work in accordance with the approved Work Plan and budget.

The Contractor:

will be responsible for conducting all project work in conformance with the Work Plan included in the

executed contract with the Department.

e will be responsible for all project activities including drafting request for proposals and managing
subcontracts with consultants and subconsultants.

e will certify to the Department that the procurement record for project consultants and subcontractors

complies with the applicable provisions of General Municipal Law.

will receive approval from the Department for any and all consultant subcontracts before beginning

project work.
¢ will be responsible for submission of all products and payment requests.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 5 of 6, Attachment C - Work Plan



will be responsible for coordinating participation and soliciting comments from local government
personnel, project volunteers, and the public.

will keep the Department informed of all important meetings for the duration of this contract.

will receive approval from the Department before purchase of any equipment.

will secure all necessary permits and perform all required environmental reviews.

will ensure that all materials printed, constructed, and/or produced acknowledge the contributions of the
Department to the project.

will ensure that all products prepared as a part of this contract shall include the NYS Comptroller's
contract number as indicated on the Face Page of this contract.

¢ will ensure the project objectives are being achieved. s

will ensure that comments received from the Department, or other advisory group, are satisfactorily
responded to and reflected in subsequent work.

will recognize that payments made to consultants or subcontractors covering work carried out or
products produced prior to receiving approval from the Department will not be reimbursed unless and
until the Department finds the work or products to be acceptable.

will participate, if requested by the Department, in a training session or sessions focused on developing
and implementing revitalization strategies. The purpose of the training session(s) is to build knowledge
and provide support to community leaders to advance revitalization efforts and complete priority

projects.

The Department:

will review and approve or disapprove of subcontracts between the Contractor and consultant(s) and any

other subcontractor(s).
will participate in initial project kick-off meeting and subsequent meetings that are important to the

project.
will review all draft and final products and provide comments as necessary to meet the objectives.

e must approve or disapprove any and all design, site plan, and preconstruction documents before
construction may begin.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 6 of 6, Attachment C - Work Plan



ATTACHMENT D

PAYMENT AND REPORTING

A. General Terms and Conditions:

1.

In full consideration of contract performance, the State Agency agrees to pay, and the Contractor
agrees to accept a sum not to exceed the amount noted on the Face Page.

The State has no obligation to make payment until all required approvals, including the approval
of the AG and OSC, if required, have been obtained and the contract is fully executed. Contractor
obligations or expenditures that precede the start date of the Contract shall not be reimbursed.

Article 11-B of the State Finance Law sets forth certain time frames for the Full Execution of
contracts or renewal contracts with not-for-profit organizations and the implementation of any
program plan associated with such contract. For purposes of this section, “Full Execution” shall
mean that the contract has been signed by all parties thereto and has obtained the approval of the
AG and OSC. Any interest to be paid on a missed payment to the Contractor based on a delay in
the Full Execution of the Contract shall be governed by Article 11-B of the State Finance Law.

Contractor must provide complete and accurate billing invoices to the State in order to receive
payment. However, the State may, in its discretion, automatically generate a voucher in
accordance with an approved contract payment schedule. The State may require the Contractor to

submit billing invoices electronically.

The Contractor shall submit documentation to support its claims for payment pursuant to this
Contract. All supporting documentation must be completed and provided in a manner satisfactory
and acceptable to the State Agency in order for the Contractor to be eligible for payment.

Payment for invoices submitted by the Contractor shall be rendered electronically in accordance
with OSC's procedures and practices governing electronic payment unless payment by paper
check is expressly authorized by the head of the State Agency, in his or her sole discretion after
the Contractor establishes extenuating circumstances requiring payment by paper check.

If travel expenses are an approved expenditure under the Contract, travel expenses shall be
reimbursed at the lesser of the rates set forth in the written standard travel policy of the
Contractor, the OSC guidelines, or United States General Services Administration rates. No out-
of-state travel costs shall be permitted unless specifically detailed and pre-approved by the State.

The State reserves the right to withhold up to fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of the
Contract as security for the faithful completion of services or work, as applicable, under the
Contract. This amount may be withheld in whole or in part from any single payment or
combination of payments otherwise due under the Contract. In the event that such withheld funds
are insufficient to satisfy Contractor’s obligations to the State, the State may pursue all available

remedies, including the right of setoff and recoupment.

All vouchers must be submitted by the Contractor no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the
end date of the period for which reimbursement is claimed. In no event shall the amount received

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 1 of 5, Attachment D — Payment and Reporting January 2024



by the Contractor exceed the budget amount approved by the State Agency, and, if actual
expenditures by the Contractor are less than such sum, the amount payable by the State Agency

to the Contractor shall not exceed the amount of actual expenditures.

10. All obligations must be incurred prior to the end date of the contract. The final claim of the
contract term shall be submitted to the State Agency up to ninety (90) calendar days after the
contract end date to make final expenditures if this contract is State Funded. However, if this
contract is funded, in whole or in part, with Federal funds, the Contractor shall have up to sixty
(60) calendar days after the contract end date to make expenditures and submit the claim to the

State Agency.

11. The State shall not be liable for payments on the Contract if it is made pursuant to a Community
Projects Fund appropriation if insufficient monies are available pursuant to Section 99-d of the

State Finance Law.

12. The Contractor may be required to submit a Consolidated Fiscal Reporting System (“CFR”). The
CFR is a standardized electronic reporting method accepted by State agencies, consisting of
schedules which, in different combinations, capture financial information for budgets, quarterly
and/or mid-year claims, an annual cost report, and a final claim. The CFR, which must be
submitted annually, is both a year-end cost report and a year-end claiming document. For New
York City contractors, the due date shall be May 1 of each year; for Upstate and Long Island
contractors, the due date shall be November 1 of each year.

B. Advance Payments and Claiming Requirements:

1. Advance payments, which the State in its sole discretion may make to not-for-profit grant recipients,
shall be made and recouped in accordance with State Finance Law Section 179-u for both multiyear
and renewal contracts and the provisions of this contract. Federally funded contract advances will be
made as set forth by the Federal grant award requirements and applicable Federal regulations and this

contract.

2. For simplified renewals, the payment schedule will be modified as part of the renewal process. For
subsequent contract years in multi-year contracts, Contractor will be notified of the scheduled
advance payments for the upcoming contract year no later than 90 days prior to the commencement

of the contract year.

3. Recoupment of any advance payment(s) shall be recovered by crediting the percentage of subsequent
claims and such claims shall be reduced until the advance is fully recovered within the Contract
Term. Any unexpended advance balance at the end of the Contract Term shall be refunded by the

Contractor to the State.

4. All Claim Submissions including Advance Payments, Initial Payments, and Reimbursements shall be
made in accordance with the State Agency approved Schedule A: Claiming Requirements below.

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 2 of 5, Attachment D — Payment and Reporting January 2024



Schedule A: Claiming Requirements

Period: 7/1/2025 - 6/30/2030

Claim Number

Claim Type

Claim Period

Due Date

. . 3/31, 6/30,
Payment (Reimbursement) Request Quarterly throughout life of contract 9/30, 12/31*

*Due every year during the contract period, as amended.

Milestone/Performance Reimbursement is based upon the Contractor satisfactorily meeting specified
and meaningful events or milestones in performance of duties under this Contract. Requests for such
payments be severable or cumulative. A severable event/milestone is independent of accomplishment
of any other event. If the event is cumulative, the successful completion of an event or milestone is
dependent on the previous completion of another event.

e For non-performance based contracts, the Contractor’s costs must be allocated pursuant to a
plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) at 2 CFR Part
200. Methods used to determine and assign costs shall conform to generally accepted
accounting practices and shall be consistent with the method(s) used by the Contractor to
determine costs for other operations or programs. Such accounting standards and practices
shall be subject to approval of the State.

e For performance-based milestone contracts, or for the portion of the contract amount paid on
a performance basis, the Contractor shall maintain documentation demonstrating that

milestones were attained.

. Fee for Service Reimbursement is based upon a rate established by the Contractor for a service or
services rendered. Payment shall be limited to only those fees specifically agreed upon in the
Contract and shall be payable in accordance with the State Agency approved Schedule A: Claiming

Requirements.

. Rate Based Reimbursement is based upon an established rate per unit at defined intervals to be paid
to the Contractor in accordance with the State Agency approved Schedule A: Claiming
Requirements. Payment shall be limited to rate(s) established in the Contract and may be requested

no more frequently than monthly.

_ Fifth Quarter Payments occur when there are scheduled payments and an expectation that services
will be continued through renewals or subsequent contracts. Fifth quarter payment shall be paid to
the Contractor at the conclusion of the final scheduled payment period of the preceding contract
period. The State Agency shall generate a voucher in the fourth quarter of the current contract year to

pay the scheduled payment for the next contract year.

If the Expenditure Based Budget is used in Attachment B-1 and the Expenditure Report is selected
below, the Contractor shall submit, not later than the time period listed in the State Agency approved
Schedule A: Claiming Requirements above, a detailed expenditure report, by object of expense. This
report shall accompany the voucher submitted for such period.

X Expenditure Report Required

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 3 of 5, Attachment D — Payment and Reporting January 2024



C. Refunds:

1. In the event that the Contractor must refund the State for Contract-related activities, including
repayment of an advance or an audit disallowance, the refund must be made payable as set forth by
the State Agency, must reference the contract number with its payment, and include a brief
explanation of why the refund is being made.

2. If at the end or termination of the Contract there remains any unexpended balance of the monies
advanced under the Contract in the possession of the Contractor, the Contractor shall make payment
within forty-five (45) calendar days of the end or termination of the Contract. In the event that the
Contractor fails to refund such balance the State may pursue all available remedies.

D. Progress Reporting Requirements:

If the State Agency determines that Work Plan Based Reporting is required to summarize the progress
made on the performance measures established in the Contract, such reporting shall be made online as

directed by the State Agency.

If Work Plan Based Reporting is not required, the Contractor shall comply with the following applicable
provisions and the Contractor shall provide the State Agency with one or more of the following reports

as required by the State Agency:

1. Narrative/Qualitative Report: The Contractor shall submit no later than the time period identified in
Schedule B: Progress Reporting Requirements, below, a report, in narrative form, summarizing the
services rendered during the quarter. This report shall detail how the Contractor has progressed
toward attaining the qualitative goals enumerated in the Work Plan. This report should address all
goals and objectives of the project and include a discussion of problems encountered and steps taken

to solve them.

2. Statistical/Quantitative Report: The Contractor shall submit, on a quarterly basis, no later than the
time period listed in Schedule B: Progress Reporting Requirements, below, a detailed report
analyzing the quantitative aspects of the program plan, as appropriate (e.g., number of meals served,
clients transported, patient/client encounters, procedures performed, training sessions conducted,

etc.).

3. Final Report: The Contractor shall submit a final report as required by the Contract, not later than the
time period listed in Schedule B: Progress Reporting Requirements, below, which reports on all
aspects of the program and detailing how the use of funds were utilized in achieving the goals set

forth in Attachment C (Work Plan).

4. Consolidated Fiscal Report: The Contractor shall submit a consolidated fiscal report, which includes
a year-end cost report and final claim not later than the time period listed in Schedule B: Progress

Reporting Requirements below.

Contract Number: C1003029

Page 4 of 5, Attachment D — Payment and Reporting January 2024



Schedule B: Progress Reporting Requirements

Period 1: 7/1/2025 - 6/30/2030

Progress Report | Report Type

Report Period

Due Date

Project Status Form (Status Report)

Every six months throughout
life of contract

6/30 and 12/31*

MWBE Utilization Plan (Form D)

Throughout life of contract

Within 2 weeks of
MWBE hire

MWBE Utilization Report (via NYSCS)

Quarterly throughout life of
contract

3/31, 6/30, 9/30,
12/31*

*Due every year during the contract period, as amended.

E. Special Payment and Reporting Provisions
The Designated Payment Office for this contract is:

NYS Department of State

Division of Fiscal Management
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, Suite 1110
Albany, NY 12231

Completed payment request forms should be emailed to dos.sm.fiscal.cau@dos.ny.gov, copying
opdcontracts@dos.ny.gov, with the following subject line:

Payment request: C1003029, Village of Lancaster, NYF Round 1)

Contract Number: C1003029
Page 5 of 5, Attachment D —Payment and Reporting

January 2024




5/ lLilaor

Professional Services Agreement

Agreement made the day of ,20
between

LaBella Associates, D.P.C.
(“LaBella”)

and

Village of Lancaster
(“Client”)

for services related to the following Project:

Public Improvement Design Services:
New York Forward Initiative
New Pocket Park - Municipal Building
LaBella Proposal No. 2405846
(“Project”)

LaBella and Client hereby agree as follows:

Description of Services: LaBella shall perform the services set forth and described in LaBella’s
proposal, dated October 1, 2024 , a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this contract attached as Exhibit B.

Compensation for Services: A retainer in the amount of $§ 0 shall be required prior to the
initiation of services. This retainer will be held until the end of the Project and applied to Client’s
final invoice. Any excess amount shall be returned to Client. Client shall compensate LaBella for
its professional services as set forth in LaBella’s proposal. LaBella shall submit invoices for
services rendered monthly. Client shall make payment to LaBella no later than thirty (30) days

after the date of each invoice.

Term: LaBella shall commence performing its services when Client gives notice to proceed. This
Agreement shall terminate when LaBella’s services are completed and final payment has been
received from Client, or as otherwise provided in this Agreement.



Insurance: LaBella shall maintain, at its own expense, throughout the term of this Agreement
and until the expiration ofall applicable statutes of limitation, the following insurance coverages:

e Comprehensive general liability insurance with policy limits of not less than $1,000,000
each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage;

e Automobile liability insurance covering owned, non-owned, rented and hired vehicles
operated by LaBella with policy limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit
and aggregate for bodily injury and property damage;

¢ Umbrella liability insurance with policy limits of not less than $10,000,000 each
occurrence and $10,000,000 in the aggregate;

* Worker’s compensation insurance at statutory limits and employer’s liability insurance
with a policy limit of not less than $1,000,000 for all employees engaged in the rendering
of professional services under this Agreement; and

e Professional liability insurance with policy limits of not less than $5,000,000 per claim and

$7,500,000 in the aggregate.

Client shall be named as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis under the
CGL, Automobile and Umbrella insurance policies. LaBella shall provide to the Client certificates
of insurance evidencing compliance with the requirements of this Agreement. The certificates
shall contain a provision that at least thirty (30) days prior written notice shall be given to Client
in the event of cancellation, non-renewal, or reduction of the insurance.

Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, LaBella shall indemnify and hold the
Client and its officers and employees harmless from and against liabilities, damages, losses and
judgments, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses recoverable under applicable law,
but only to the extent they are caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of LaBella, its
employees and its consultants in the performance of professional services under this Agreement.

In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both Client and LaBella, the risks
have been allocated such that Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the
liability of LaBella and LaBella’s consultants for any and all claims, liabilities, damages, losses,
costs, and judgments of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or causes, so
that the total aggregate liability of LaBella and LaBella’s consultants shall not exceed $50,000 or
LaBella’s total fee for services rendered on this Project, whichever is greater.

LaBella Associates, D.P.C. Client Name
By: &fﬂ'% By:
Name Edward Flynn Name
Title V.P., Director of Planning Title

Date: 01/13/25 Date




Exhibit A
LaBella’s Proposal



Prepared for:

Michael Stegmeier, Clerk-Treasurer
Village of Lancaster

5423 Broadway

Lancaster, NY 14086
mstegmeier@lancastervillageny.gov

Submitted by:

L aBella Associates
300 Pearl Street
Suite 130

Buffalo, NY 14202
(585) 287-9097

LaBella

Powered by partnership.

Village of Lancaster: New Pocket Park - Municipal Building
Public Improvements Design Services, New York Forward Initiative

OCTOBER 1, 2024
LABELLA PROPOSAL NO. 2405846



[1. LaBella

October 1, 2024

Michael Stegmeier, Clerk-Treasurer
Village of Lancaster

5423 Broadway

Lancaster, NY 14086
mstegmeier@lancastervillageny.gov

Re: New Pocket Park - Municipal Building
Public Improvements Design Services, New York Forward Initiative

LaBella Proposal No. P2405846

Dear Mr. Stegmeier:

LaBella Associates, D.P.C. (LaBella) is pleased to provide a provide a proposal in response to the Village
of Lancaster (Village)'s request for landscape architectural and engineering services relative to a new
municipal pocket park adjacent to the Lancaster Municipal Building. Funding for this opportunity, in
the amount of $206,000, is provided by the New York Department of State (NYS DOS), and will need
to follow the rules and guidelines of that organization. Taking that into consideration, LaBella will
assume a 30% MWBE participation requirement.

We understand that the Village would like to develop the area on the west side of the building as a
pocket park and seeks a firm that will provide plans, specifications, bid documents, and to oversee the
bidding and construction process. Plans will follow the designs and details developed in the NY
Forward sketch plans that were included with the RFP: Appendix A.

The following scope of services shall be as necessary to carry out and complete the project as per the
RFP and shall also include, but may not be limited to the following;

e Assessment of site conditions prior to development of project plans.
1. Prepare atopographic and boundary survey of the park area to be developed including
underground utilities.
e Evaluation of utilities as required to complete the project.
1. Determine direction of flow, inverts and construction of existing storm system as may
be required.
e Development of project plans. Plans will likely include:
1. Existing conditions, demolition and removals;
2. Site plan with dimensioning, materials, and identification of features.
3. Grading plan to ensure the site drains properly
4. Landscape plan identifying plants, ground covers, and other non-pavement surface
treatments
e Provide information necessary to complete required environmental reviews.
1. LaBella will prepare the appropriate SEQRA Form (most likely the Short Form)
2. LaBella has environmental staff on call. should the need for additional services arise.
e Participate with Village officials and others in review and evaluation of the plans and make
modifications to plans as a result of the review process.
1. LaBella assumes 4 to 5 meetings during the design process up to the Bidding phase,
and will revise the plans following meetings accordingly.

500 East Sixth Street | Jamestown, NY 14701 | p (716) 483-3153 | f (716) 484-2281



i3

o Prepare a full set of construction documents, including final plans, specifications, and bidding
documents.
1. Provide estimate of probable construction costs.
Oversee the bidding and contract award process
1. We will include the required DOS paperwork to identify their requirements so that
contractors are fully informed including all MWBE requirements, certified payroll, and
reporting.
Provide construction inspection services as necessary to determine project is completed
according to the plans and specifications. These services will include:
1. Kick-off meeting with contractor followed by periodic meetings on site as may be
required.
2. Review of submittals.
3. Preparation of change orders and responding of RFis.
4. Project closeout and preparation of a punch list of remaining items not yet completed.
Carry out project in conformance with applicable rules, regulations, and procedures, including
procedures for projects funded by the NYS DOS.

Please note that we have added an assortment of specific tasks that are normal and useful to the
owner for a project of this size. Additional refinement of the scope prior to being given authorization

to proceed will likely be useful.

SCHEDULE

Upon authorization to proceed, LaBella will proceed with the design phase scope of work. We
anticipate the following schedule to complete the plans, bid the project and construction of the project:

Notice to Proceed: November 1, 2024

Schematic Design: November 1 - December 1, 2024
Design DD - CDs: December 1, 2024 - January 31, 2025
Bidding: February 3 - February 24, 2025
Construction: March 3 - June 16, 2025

FEE

LaBella proposes that the professional services, as outlined in the scope of work above, be completed
for the lump sum amount of $32,000.00. in addition to our normal reimbursable expenses.
Reimbursable expenses for this project should not exceed $500.00 (postage, mileage, photocopies,
etc). The fee will be tentatively broken down into the following components:

Design, Schematic through Final Design/Contract Documents: $ 21,500

Bidding: $ 2,000
Services During Construction: $ 8,500
Reimbursables $ /00
Grand Total Fee: $ 32,500

TEAM

We have included on two trusted teaming partners to join us on this project. Ravi Engineering and
Land Surveying, PC (Ravi), a New York State Minority-Owned Business Enterprise, will prepare a
topographic and boundary survey for the project as well as assistance with, and preparation of, SEQRA
documents for Village review and sign-off. We are also joined by Atlantic Testing Laboratories (ATL),
a New York State Woman-Owned Business Enterprise. ATL will assist with geotechnical reporting and
engineering, as well as any required on-site testing during construction.




¢ Printing of all bidding documents, if required, to be done by the Village. (Progress design sets
will be provided by LaBella.)

e Record Drawings will be prepared from contractor red-lines.

If you have any questions or requ|re further clarification, please contact me directly at (585) 749-6662
or via e-mail at pc.com. We look forward to our continued partnership with the

Village of Lancaster.

If the Village is in agreement with this proposal, please forward a Purchase Order as our Notice-to-
Proceed.

Respectfully submitted,

LaBella Associates, D.P.C.

D%K/Z@/

Douglas C. McCord
Project Manager | Senior Landscape Architect.



RLA
Registered Landscape Architect

NY, PA

EDUCATION

Rochester Institute of
Technology: M.B.A. in Accounting
and Finance

SUNY College of Environmental
Science and Forestry: B.LA. in
Landscape Architecture

American Society of Landscape
Architects (ASLA)
CERTIFICATIONS
Certified by the Council of

Landscape Architectural
Registration Boards (CLARB)

Rochester, NY - Headquarters

[l LaBella

=

DOUGLAS C.

MCCORD

Project Manager | Senior Landscape Architect

Doug is a Project Manager and Senior Landscape Architect with

over 40 years of experience responsible for leading the Landscape
Architecture effort at LaBella-Rochester. In addition, Doug acts as

a Project Manager for a variety of high-profile site and landscape
architecture design projects. Responsibilities include managing
projects from start to finish, including client interaction, presentations
at town meetings, coordinating design team meetings, creating design
reports, supervising designers and AutoCAD technicians, processing
plans through reviewing agencies, and managing projects throughout

construction.

City of Hornell: Union Square
Park—Hornell, NY

Prepared site schematic through
final construction plans for a new
urban park in downtown Hornell
featuring a performance stage,
fountain with remote controlled
spray height and lighting
displays, landscaped seating
areas, memorial to a fallen
policeman, decorative concrete
plaza surface, landscape
treatments, art displays, benches
and other furniture, and shade
trees. Plans were developed in
3D and computer renderings
were prepared in SketchUp and
Lumion from different directions
to illustrate the full development
A "fly-through” video was created
that illustrated the proposed
project for promotional use.

Village of Endicott: Endicott Art
Park—Endicott, NY

Prepared site schematic through
preliminary development

plans for a new urban plazain
downtown Endicott featuring

art displays, performance stage,
landscaped seating areas,
decorative concrete plaza
surface, landscape treatments,
benches, and shade trees.

Plans were developed in 3D

and computer renderings were
prepared in SketchUp and
Lumion from different directions
to illustrate the full development.

Village of Avon: Pocket Park—
Avon, NY

Designed a new downtown
plaza in this important, central
location in the village, Design for
this 12,000 SF plaza include a
decorative pavement area with

a timber shelter that will serve

as a venue for small concerts,
trade shows and the farmer's
market. Landscaped areas will be
used for sculptures and art along
with a proposed mural on the
neighboring building.

City of Rochester: Cornerstone
Park—Rochester, NY

Preparation of conceptual
through contract/bid drawings
and documents for the complete
re-construction of a 13,000 SF
urban park including design of a
new feature water feature, group
and individual seating, trash
receptacles, bus stop structure,
stage area, vendor area, and
signage. NYS Department of
Environmental Conservation



Funded Project. Construction cost
estimate: $780,000. Construction
completed in 2017.

Town of Brighton: Buckland
Park—Brighton, NY

Preparation of a Master Plan,
conceptual through final
construction design for a 104 acre
passive/active recreation park.
One large playground area and 3
tot-lots were included in designs
for the project. Total construction
cost: $2,900,000.

City of Rochester: Upper Falls
Gorge Park—Rochester, NY

Preparation of conceptual plans
and photo-realistic graphics for
an atl-new park that will include
an arrival plaza to welcome
visitors with interpretive signage,
tour-gathering area, seating.
and other amenities, A paved
850-linear-foot trail will guide
visitors to and along the Genesee
River and some of the most
scenic views in the City. The

trail terminus is an observation
deck with breathtaking views of
the upper falls of the Genesee
complete with a snack bar and
restroom facilities.

City of Hornell: Union Square
Park—Hornell, NY

Prepared site schematic through
final construction plans for a new
urban park in downtown Hornell
featuring a performance stage.
fountain with remote controlled
spray height and lighting
displays, landscaped seating
areas, memorial to a fallen
policeman, decorative concrete
plaza surface, landscape
treatments, art displays, benches
and other furniture, and shade
trees. Plans were developed in
3D and computer renderings
were prepared in SketchUp and
Lumion from different directions
to itlustrate the full development
A "fly-through” video was created
that illustrated the proposed
project for promotional use.

Ontario County: Parks and
Recreation Master Plan—Ontario
County, NY

Preparation of a county-wide
Parks and Recreation Master
Plan addressing indoor and
outdoor recreation needs and
opportunities. Work included
conducting meetings with
Project Advisory Committee

and stakeholders to obtain input
and consent; preparing and
conducting an online public
opinion survey; preparing a needs
analysis; and preparing a Vision
Statement along with goals

and objectives for the plan. An
extensive inventory and analysis
of existing parks and recreation
facilities throughout the county
was conducted and mapping

of the same. Prepared a capital
improvement plan for each of
the seven county parks and
researched available financing
sources and opportunities.
Conceptual improvement plans
were prepared for each park
that included improvements
such as camping facilities, trails,
all-purpose fields, paddle craft
launch facilities, parking lots,
playgrounds, picnic shelters, and
a DPW/ garage/storage structure.
Plan is to be completed and
adopted in early 2024.

Town of Farmington: Parks
and Recreation Master Plan—
Farmington, NY

Preparation of a town-wide
Parks and Recreation Master
Plan addressing indoor and
outdoor recreation needs and
opportunities. Work included
conducting meetings with
Project Advisory Committee

and stakeholders to obtain input
and consent; preparing and
conducting an online public
opinion survey; preparing a needs
analysis and a Vision Statement
along with goals and objectives
for the plan; and conducting

an extensive inventory and
analysis of existing parks and

recreation facilities and mapping
of the same. Prepared a capital
improvement plan for each of the
seven town parks and researched
available financing sources and
opportunities. Conceptual plans
were prepared for the all-new
Beaver Creek Park that included
improvements such as football/
soccer/lacrosse fields, tennis
courts, trails, a baseball/softball
field, arboretum, parking lots,
playgrounds, a large picnic
shelter, and a DPW garage/
storage structure. Plan completed
and adopted in 2017.

Rochester Institute of
Technology: New Quadrangle—
Henrietta, NY

Work includes concept through
final / construction design
drawings and details for a 1.9 acre
guadrangle adjacent to the new
Golisano Institute of Sustainability.
Design components include

over 25,000 SF concrete, brick
paver, and exposed aggregate
sidewalks, 2000 LF granite
curbing, bike racks, seating areas
with benches, water fountain
feature, 17 new light poles,

and curbed planters. Designs
incorporated sustainable

design features including rain
gardens, geothermal system, and
permeable pavers. Sculpture
features were also incorporated
at key locations. Performed as a
prime consultant on the project
w/ subconsulting electrical
design work.

City of Batavia: Austin Park—
Batavia, NY

LaBella partnered with
playground equipment provider,
Parkitects and Landscape
Structures inc. for this nearly
8000 SF universally accessible
playground centrally located

in the park. LaBella provided
master planning services and
detailed planning of adjacent
drinking fountain, shade shelter,
park benches and more. The



master plan included plans for
pickleball courts, picnic shelter,
new splash pad, trails and
walkways.

Town of Seneca Falls:
Community Center Skate Park—
Seneca Falls, NY

LaBella partnered with skate park
equipment provider American
Ramp Co. for a 3000 SF addition
to an existing skate park, We
selected several new and
innovative pieces including a loop
‘PumpTrack speedring. LaBella
evaluated all existing equipment
and made recommendations

for equipment to remain and

be refurbished and painted.

The entire skate park area is to
received a new durable color
coat surface specifically made for
skate parks.

City of Rochester: Brewery Line
Trail—Rochester, NY

Work includes concept

design and planning through
construction plans and
specifications for a 1,200-linear-
foot spur of the Genesee
Riverway Trail and bikeway
adjacent to the scenic Upper
Falls of the Genesee River. The
concrete and asphalt 10-foot-
wide trail begins at the Pont de
Rennes pedestrian Bridge and
connects to the falls overlook,
Design elements included
connections to and through
neighboring High Falls Terrace
Park, drainage and rain garden
improvements, new pedestrian-
scale light pole system,

seating, bike racks, steep bank
stabilization, and landscaping.
Also responsible for preparation
of graphics including trail section
renderings photo simulations, and
a "fly-through” SketchUp video.
Estimated construction cost,
$1,100,000.

Town of Irondequoit: Camp
Eastman Master Plan—
Irondequoit, NY

Worked with Town Staff to
prepare a Master Plan for a 40
acre active/passive recreation
park adjacent to the 400 acre
Durand Eastman Park and Beach,
open space and trail system.
Designs included 3 all-new rental
cabins for day rental, a chilled,
3-season ice rink, 3000 SF splash
Pad, arboretum, 4500 LF paved
and un-paved walking/jogging
trails w/connections, all-purpose
athletic field, new parking,
restroom building, and new
parking lots.

City of Rochester: Upper Falls
Gorge Park—Rochester, NY

Preparation of conceptual plans
and photo-realistic graphics for
an all-new park that will include
an arrival plaza to welcome
visitors with interpretive signage,
tour-gathering area, seating,
and other amenities. A paved
850-linear-foot trail will guide
visitors to and along the Genesee
River and some of the most
scenic views in the City. The

trail terminus is an observation
deck with breathtaking views of
the upper falls of the Genesee
complete with a snack bar and
restroom facilities. Ptanning
completed in 2021.

City of Rochester: Genesee
Riverway Trail Signage and
Street Crossings—Rochester, NY

Preparation of schematic through
construction plans and design
for delineation of a walking/
bikeway trail through center city
Rochester. Plans include design
of signage, kiosks, sign and kiosk
locations, ‘Dura-therm' sidewalk
marker logos, continuous color
stripe trail delineation, goo linear
feet of 10-foot-wide multi-use
trail, crosswalks designs including
three mid-block crossings.

Town of Farmington:; Beaver
Creek Park Master Plan—
Farmington, NY

Worked with Town Staff and a
15-person Advisory Commiittee
to prepare a Master Plan design
for a 35 acre active/passive
recreation park and a 25 acre
connected open space and trail
system. Designs included gooo
LF paved and un-paved walking/
Jjogging trails w/connections

to the Auburn Trail (multi-use),
and a boardwalk through a

large wetland area. Planning
completed in 2016. Construction
initiated in 2020 and to conclude
over the following 5 years.

City of Olean: Riverfront Trail
and Park—Olean, NY

Project Manager that developed
schematic through final
development plans for a new trail
connection (265 LF) and parking
area for 15 vehicles, sidewalks.
amenities including benches, and
interpretive signage, bike racks,
ornamental fencing, picnic shelter
and landscaping. Designed two
overlooks of the river, floodplain
area, and distant hills. Doug also
collaborated with civil engineers
for the design of associated water
& electric services, and drainage
system.

Village of Clyde: Clyde Erie
Canal Park—Clyde, NY

Preparation of a Schematic
design for a 125 acre passive
recreation park adjacent to the
Erie Canal. Outstanding features
of the park include 2500 LF

10 ft. wide, stone dust bike
trail, boat launch, band shell /
picnic shelter, fishing platform
with wetlands boardwalk,

boat docking bollards, small
playground area, parking for
15 vehicles, and a restroom
building. Phase one estimated
construction cost: $180,000.



RLA
Registered Landscape Architect
NY, NJ, PA, CO

EDUCATION

SUNY College of Environmental
Science and Forestry: B.S. in
Landscape Architecture

ORGANIZATIONS
American Society of Landscape
Architects (ASLA)

Construction Specifications
Institute (CSI)

National Association of
Landscape Professionals (NALP)

Council of Landscape
Architectural Review Board
{(CLARB)

Rochester, NY - Headquarters

[l LaBella

RYAN KELLY

Senior Landscape Architect

Ryan has over 20 years of landscape architecture experience, providing
solutions for a diverse group of clients. His experience ranges from
luxury residential projects to social impact spaces and nature-based
solutions. Ryan is dedicated to designing landscapes that enhance
quality of life while making a positive impact on the environment

and community. Currently leading a team of landscape architects

in western New York, Ryan's appointment to this role reflects his
commitment to delivering innovative, sustainable, and environmentally
responsible landscape solutions to LaBella's clients.

Village of Caledonia: Caledonia
Monument Park—Caledonia, NY
Principal-in-Charge for a project
including evaluation of the
existing park and developing
multiple iterations to reimagine
the space. Design features
include a large public outdoor
space/plaza to host public
events, pedestrian connectivity,
connecting the municipal
streetscape, as well as local
businesses for everyday usage.

Town of Lyons: Taylor Park—
Lyons, NY

Project Manager responsible for
meeting with the town to discuss
on-site and off-site opportunities
for Taylor Park. Project involved
facilitating multiple public
engagement sessions and
design charrettes to focus on the
proposed project goals, reviewing
general feasibility, connectivity,
environmental, and grading
constraints. Additionally, provided
master planning and cost
budgeting services to support
grant applications.

Town of Canandaigua: Inclusion
in Motion Playground—
Canandaigua, NY

Project Manager responsible for
the implementation of accessible
pathways and surfacing, selection

of inclusive play elements,

and community engagement.
Project focused on developing a
playground that accommodated
diverse abilities by incorporating
universal design principles,
ensuring equal access to play
opportunities. Key aspects
included integrating inclusive play
equipment, accessible pathways,
and suitable surfacing for mobility
aids to enhance safety and
accessibility. Prioritizing safety,
the project ensured appropriate
surfacing, equipment spacing,
and accessible entry points to
create a safe and engaging play
environment for all children.

Other Notable Projects:
Farash Place—Rochester, NY

Vistas at Highland—Rochester,
NY

Stevers Candies—Rochester,
NY

Foodlink Community Farm—
Rochester, NY

Trillium Health—Rochester, NY

Children's Center of Brighton—
Rochester, NY

+ Thousand Acre Swamp Nature
Conservancy—Rochester, NY

Novo Nordisk—Plainsboro, NJ



RLA
Registered Landscape Architect
NY

EDUCATION

SUNY College of Environmental
Science and Forestry: BLA. in
Landscape Architecture

ORGANIZATIONS
American Society of Landscape
Architects (ASLA)

Rochester, NY - Headquarters

[l LaBella

Lx=—ﬂ“' ;

LYNDSEY HERBERT

Landscape Architect

Lyndsey is a registered landscape architect with ten years of
experience in designing creative landscapes for many public,
commercial, and residential projects throughout New York. Her
experience as a landscape architect includes the design of parks,
playgrounds and recreational facilities, plazas, courtyards, green
infrastructure, waterfront greenways, and trail design. Assignments
have included site plan preparation, conceptual site layouts, SWPPP
inspections, graphic renderings and photo simulations, and 3D
renderings and flythroughs. She is proficient in AutoCAD, Adobe
Creative Suite (Photoshop, lltustrator, InDesign), and SketchUp.

City of Hornell: Union Square
Park—Hornell, NY

Prepared site schematic through
final construction plans for a new
urban park in downtown Hornell
featuring a performance stage,
fountain with remote controlled
spray height and lighting
displays, landscaped seating
areas, memorial to a fallen
policeman, decorative concrete
plaza surface, landscape
treatments, art displays, benches
and other furniture, and shade
trees. Plans were developed in
3D and computer renderings
were prepared in SketchUp and
Lumion from different directions
to illustrate the full development
A "fly-through’ video was created
that illustrated the proposed
project for promotional use.

Village of Endicott: Endicott Art
Park—Endicott, NY

Prepared site schematic through
preliminary development

plans for a new urban plaza in
downtown Endicott featuring

art displays, performance stage,
landscaped seating areas,
decorative concrete plaza
surface, landscape treatments,
benches, and shade trees.

Plans were developed in 3D

and computer renderings were
prepared in SketchUp and
Lurnion from different directions
to illustrate the full development.

Village of Avon: Pocket Park—
Avon, NY

Designed a new downtown
plaza in this important, central
location in the Village. Design
for this 12,000-square-foot plaza
includes a decorative pavement
area with a timber shelter that
will serve as a venue for small
concerts, trade shows and the
farmer's market. Landscaped
areas will be used for sculptures
and art along with a proposed
mural on the neighboring
building. Handicapped-accessible
walkways and ramps connect
the space to street parking and
a rear Village-owned parking lot.
Planning completed in 2021.



Professional Engineer
New York

State University of New York at
Buffalo: B.S. in Civil Engineering

American Public Works
Association

[l LaBella

= ]

KRISTOPHER WINKLER

Kris is a Project Manager with over 24 years of experience. He is
responsible for managing a variety of civil-site projects across New
York State from start to finish, collaborating with clients, design teams,
CM teams, and site contractors for site layout, grading, drainage,
sewers, and utilities. Kris has experience in preparing designs and
calculations for stormwater management, combined and sanitary
sewers, erosion control, grading, site layouts, utilities, cost estimating,
and roadways. He is also experienced in navigating site projects
through regulatory review and permitting agencies. Kris supervises civil
engineering technicians and performs Quality Control and design task
oversight. He also regularly coordinates with mechanicat/electrical/
plumbing building engineers and architects for new building and
building renovation projects and prepares cost estimates for site

development.

Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA):
Green Infrastructure Term
Assignments—Buffalo, NY

As Green Infrastructure Engineer,
prepared or supervised green
infrastructure designs for various
Buffalo DPW streetscape projects
including the Genesee Street
Gateway project, Niagara Street
Rehabilitation Phase 3, 4, 4A and
Fillmore Avenue Rehabilitation.
Design work included off-site
detention in abandoned lots,
porous pavement parking lots,
and rain garden designs for water
quantity control. Approved field
changes working directly with
BSA and Inspection staff.

Buffalo Bills: New Stadium
Location Study—Buffalo, NY

As Lead Design Civil Engineer
(role as Subconsultant

to Populous), prepared
assessments, construction
costs, and recommendations
for Evaluation Study for locating
the proposed new Bills Stadium.
Tasks included developing
narratives and exhibits for

evaluating surrounding storm,
sanitary, gas, power, and water
utility capacities and costs for
various design options, (2018)

Boys and Girls Club of the
Northtowns: New Exterior Sport
Court and Cover Project—
Tonawanda, NY

As Lead Civil Engineer and Civil
Project Manager, prepared multi-
sport court layout and new court
system site plans {95% design
completed in 2022). Design
included basketball, hockey and
games striping plan, four-coat
court coating system design,
and parking lot expansion. Site
plan design was coordinated
with pre-engineered metal
building cover (open canopy
structure). Additional tasks
included coordinating with court
system vendor, participating in
meetings with client; preparing
site demolition, grading and
erosion control plans/details/
specifications; and preparing
designs for sidewalk installation,
fencing, and gate installations,



UNION SQUARE PARK

City of Hornell

LaBella Associates completed
concept plans through
construction drawings to
transform a former site of a dry-
cleaning store and vacant lot, into
the new Union Square Park in
City of Hornell, New York, located
in the heart of its downtown.

The project features unique
public gathering spaces that are
linked together by an integrated
walkway network. The project
includes a covered pavition for
various community events and a
raised stage. An at grade water
feature and fountain creates a
vibrant and distinctive attraction
for residents and visitors alike.
Walkways connect the various
use areas and special features
including a memorial to a fatlen
police officer. The project also
includes a lighted park entry sign,
ornamental pedestrian lighting,
seasonally attractive accent
plantings and site furniture.

Completed: Fall 2023

Scan the QR code above
to view project concept
video

[l LaBella




BROOME COUNTY
Endicott iDistrict Strand Park

LaBella Associates worked under
the direction of the Broome
County Department of Planning
and Economic Development and
the Village of Endicott to design a
diverse, welcoming, and notable
urban plaza in the center of the
Village of Endicott.

This unigue multi-generational
public gathering space is
intended to foster urban renewal
placemaking, incorporate
interactive public art installations
and smart technolegy features
that will engage visitors, inform
them about the history of the
community, and promote

public events within the core

of the Village. The project was
funded in part through a New
York Department of State grant.
LaBella's landscape architects
designed the project, with plans
for construction in 2025. The
Endicott iDistrict Strand Park
project consists of the design and
construction of a pocket park on
Village-owned property.

The park will provide for outdoor
gatherings, small performances.
and include art installations,
interpretive signage, smart
technology features, compelling
lighting design, intimate seating
areas and landscaping. Upon

Renderings created by LaBella's landscape

CLIENT PARTNER

Beth Lucas

Planning Department

Broome County

(607) 778-2375
Beth.Lucas@broomecountyny.gov

architects reimagine the Village plaza into m -

a vibrant culturat oasis.

completion, Strand Park will
provide a high quality, flexible
public gathering space that can
accommodate various events and
programs throughout the year.

The project design features
include unique paving designs,
multi-colored furnishings and a
pavilion for small concerts and
performances. The focal feature
of the park is an interactive,
lighted, modern sculpture.
Long term goals for the project

include art muratls on the
building facades flanking the
park, additional art/scutptural
installations, lighting displays and
interactive technological art.

[l LaBella



CITY OF COHOES

Canal Square Park

The City of Cohoes wished to
reinvigorate its Historic Canal
Square Park. LaBella prepared

a Master Plan and provided
design, a successful Consolidated
Funding Application (CFA)
submission, grant administration,
and construction services to
assist the City with its dream of
reimagining the Historic Canal
Square Park.

LaBella worked with the City to
create a transformative space
that allows for an array of uses
including casual daily activities,
the Cohoes Farmer's Market, Rock
the Block concerts and Music Hall
receptions - all while promoting
an already energetic connectivity
to downtown Cohoes, City Hall,
the iconic Cohoes Music Hall,

and surrounding residential
neighborhoods. In keeping with
the Entertainment District's
theme, LaBella also designed a
musical play area with percussion
instruments and a porous rubber
play surface.

Green infrastructure played a
significant role in the design
with funding through both

Canal Square Park was reimagined to
a green space where residents and

CLIENT PARTNER

Garry Nathan, PE

City Engineer

City of Cohoes

(518) 233-2131
gnathan@cicohoes.nyus

visitors could gather for entertainment.

New York State Environmental
Facilities Corporation (EFC) and
New York State Office of Parks
Recreation & Historic Preservation
(NYSOPRHP). LaBella worked

with the City and EFC to

creatively address stormwater
management with a wide range
of green infrastructure practices,
including permeable pavers and
flexi-pave, bioretention filters, tree
boxes, and a subsurface rainwater
harvesting system to support
irrigation of site landscaping.

The City kicked off the park's
reopening with a Rock the Block
concert, bringing Canal Square
Park back to life again.

Cost: $1.2M

Year Completed: 2020

;— Illﬁ ; ;

[l LaBella



CITY OF TROY
Franklin Alley

LaBella worked hand in hand
with the City of Troy, Downtown
Troy BID (Business Improvement
District), and the Arts Center of
the Capital Region to reimagine
the underutilized yet essential
Troy public space, known as
Franklin Alley, At the heart of
Troy's business district, Franklin
Alley was a pilot project for alley
redevelopment in the City—
transforming neglected back-of-
house space into safe, creative,
event-ready, and animated public
passages.

Franklin Alley was previously
used as storage for dumpsters,
garbage collection, and

access for delivery vehicles to
restaurants, bars, a bakery, shops,
residential units, and commercial
tenants.

LaBella played a large role in

the overall design, precedent
research, refuse management,
stormwater strategy, lighting and
stakeholder presentation. Over
the course of one year, the project
team met with various business
owners, and stakeholders in

an effort to generate design
direction, awareness and support

CLIENT PARTNER

Steven Strichman

Commissioner of Planning &

Economic Development
City of Troy
(518) 279-7392

Franklin Alley was transformed from
back-of-house space (first photo below)
to a safe, event-ready public passage.

for the project. Midway through
the design process, the Arts
Center of the Capitat Region was
awarded grant funds to contract
an artist to provide public art
that would further enhance the
sense of place and history while
celebrating the arts.

With City and private funding

in place, Phase | of the project
(between River Street and
Broadway) was completed in the
fall of 2020.

[l LaBella

Steven.Strichman@troyny.gov



-‘;‘-';-'&#__r

FIRM INFORMATION RAVI ENGINEERING if;
& LAND SURVEYING, F.C.

—==-3

Firm Information

Ravi Engineering & Land Surveying, P.C., (RE&LS) is a consulting firm with a staff of 104 headquartered in Rochester, , New York that specializes in
providing state-of-the-art structural, environmental, and geotechnical engineering, in addition to construction inspection and land surveying services.
Established in 1995 by President & Owner, Nagappa Ravindra, P.E., the firm is committed to providing technically sound solutions to our clients that
include state, municipal and private organizations. At RE&LS, we strive to exceed our clients' expectations for responsiveness, efficiency and timeliness

in delivery of services. We are a certified MBE firm.

Firm Personnel

Survey
David J. Honnick, LS, has over 27 years of experience in all facets of Land Surveying and is a licensed Professional Land

Surveyor in New York. He has worked with State, Federal and Municipal Agencies, including SUCF, DASNY, OGS and
NYSDOT. Mr. Honnick has been responsible for preparation of topographic mapping and boundary determination projects,
instrument surveys, road surveys. He is an expert in records research, analyzing complex survey problems, and resolving land
dispute issues. As our Design Survey Manager, Mr. Honnick is responsible for assuring that survey protocols are followed to
ensure data quality and timeliness, overseeing final survey reports, supervising survey crews and coordinating with clients.

Environmental
Jim MacKecknie, P.G., Jim has over 30 years’ experience and is an expert with SEQRA/NEPA regulations, and has successful

dealings with NYSDEC and with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers on many similar scope projects. Jim leads an experienced
team in completing environmental screenings and reviews for these types of projects on a near daily basis, keeping up to date
on the oft-changing environmental review process including threatened/endangered species investigations.

Construction Inspection
Sean Schumacher, NICET IV has over 30 years of experience with the inspection and administration of highway and bridge

projects. He is responsible for developing strategic relationships with clients and maintaining an experienced team of construction
inspection personnel. His role includes leading and arranging teams, training, and recruitment as well as project management
and coordination. On our construction inspection projects, Mr. Schumacher is responsible for monitoring budget costs, inspector
certifications and continuing education. He manages scheduling, job site visits, and preparing ongoing project reports.

Firm Experience

City of Hornell DRI, Hornell, NY - The City of Hornell Downtown Revitalization Initiative included the establishment of new downtown design
standards; the transformation of the Homell Community Arts Center and Main Street streetscape enhancements. Other improvements include
enhancements to pedestrian alleyways; the creation of a new park space; downtown wayfinding and public art. RE&LS provided a topographic and
utilities survey for this project. The topographic survey included the location of grade breaks on roadway centerlines, edges of roadway, tops and
bottors of curbs, sidewalks, retaining walls, steps, pads, and ramps. The utilities and structures for sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water, natural gas,
steam, electric, power, signal, and communication were placed on the mapping. RE&LS supplied digital files as an AutoCAD Civil 3D 2021 DWG file.

Village of Saranac Lake, Parks, Streetscapes, and Connectivity Improvements, Saranac Lake, NY - The Village of Saranac Lake was selected
as one of ten communities in New York State for Round 3 of the Governor's Downtown Revitalization Imitative (DRI). As part of that program, RE&LS
conducted a topographic and boundary/Right of Way survey, and prepared mapping for several parks and street corridors in the Village of Saranac
Lake. The purpose of the survey was to prepare digital mapping that reflected current conditions for use in developing a series of linked gateway parks,
to increase connectivity between downtown destinations, and enhance Woodruff Street streetscape. Digital mapping files were supplied in an

AutoCAD/Civil 3D format and existing survey information was provided in ACSII format.

Mayville Lakeside Pedestrian and Bike Path, Mayville, NY - This Chautauqua County project included the conversion of a former railroad grade to
a multiuse trail in the Village of Mayville. RE&LS provided surveying, environmental engineering services and construction inspection. Survey
responsibilities included conducting a comprehensive topographic survey along the project corridor locating all improvements within the right of way,
including overhead and underground utilities to aid in the design of roadway improvements. Environmental engineering services included a review of
the project for potential impacts to endangered and threatened species, wetland delineations along the alignment of the proposed trail, permitting and
screenings for asbestos and hazardous waste. RE&LS also provided construction inspection on this project



=
)

FIRM INFORMATION RAVI ENGINEERING (—
& LAND SURVEYING, P.C.

City of Rochester, LaMarketa @ International Plaza, Rochester, NY — RE&LS provided construction inspection for the construction of a Latin
themed event space located within Rochester, New York. He oversaw the roof being constructed of the bathroom facility, the duct work, plumbing,
electrical boxes being installed inside the bathroom facility, and the construction of the bandstand foundation.

City of Rochester Multi Parks - Tacoma Street and Fourth & Peck Street, Rochester, NY - RE&LS provided construction inspection on this $0.5M
park improvement project. The project included; demolition of existing park features; installation of new park features including Tot and Pre-teen play
areas; new safety surface placed at both locations; new water spray features; grading and topsoil; new subbase; concrete sidewalk and curbs; and

asphalt walkways. We also assisted in the inspection of the equipment for safety.

City of Rochester, St. Bernard Trail Rehabilitation, Rochester, NY - RE&LS provided Environmental services for the trail improvements and
enhancements to the St. Bemard's segment of the Genesee Riverway Trail. Services included preparing and implementing a Soil Testing Plan, then
summarizing the findings in a technical memorandum and utilized the gathered information to develop a Soil and Groundwater Management Plan.
RE&LS was also tasked with SEQRA review, including preliminary cultural resources coordination with SHPO through NYSCRIS.

irondequoit Bay Park West Bay Front Roadway Reclamation & Mitigation Project, Monroe County, NY - As part of a Monroe County Parks Term
contract, RE&LS provided environmental services for the Bayfront Roadway & Mitigation project at Irondequoit Bay Park West. The firm's scope of work
was limited to information needed to complete the Preconstruction Notification (PCN) for the anticipated Joint Permit Application. RE&LS provided
environmental screenings for SEQRA Classification of the project. Screenings were completed for; General Ecology and Endangered Species including
completion of the USFWS seven-step endangered species analysis, Ground Water, Surface Water, State Wetlands, Federal Jurisdictional Wetlands,
Floodplains, Coastal Zone Management, Navigable Waterways, and Cultural Resource Review, and permits. A Wetland Delineation was conducted to
identify boundaries of the state and federal wetlands. Wetland boundaries were flagged and GPS technology was utilized to document the location of

the wetland flagging. Five (5) wetlands were mapped and delineated.

Town of Pittsford Erie Canal Park and Preserve Project, Monroe County, NY - This Town of Pittsford project includes the construction of a
connector trail between the Auburn Trail and the Erie Canalway Trail in the Town and Village of Pittsford, Monroe County, New York. A wetland
delineation was completed along the proposed trail alignment to identify potential construction impacts to federal jurisdictional wetlands. Additionally,
the ordinary high water mark of a NYSDEC class B tributary of Allen Creek was flagged to determine potential the Article 15 protection of water

implications. RE&LS assisted with SEQR classification and joint application for permit for the project.

Evans Lakeshore Multi Use Pathway Phase ll, Erie County, NY, PIN 5758.02 - RE&LS was responsible for the environmental evaluations
associated with this 5.5 mile multi-use pathway. Tasks included the evaluation of potential impacts on: General ecology and endangered species,
ground water, surface water, state and federal wetlands, floodplains, coastal zone management, navigable waterways, historic resources, parks,
hazardous waste, asbestos, noise, air quality, energy, farmland, visual impacts and critical environmental areas. A wetland delineation was completed
for the project identifying impacts to State & Federal wetlands. Based on these screenings the NEPA and SEQR Classifications were determined. A
pre-application meeting was conducted with the USACOE and the NYSDEC to facilitate the Permit applications included in the project deliverables.



COMPANY BIO atl

Atlantic Testing Laboratories (ATL) has over 55 years of experience in providing technical support services to a
wide range of clients and projects. We hold term contracts with multiple government agencies and have long-
term working relationships with many private firms and entities. The main categories of services performed
include subsurface investigation on land and water, geotechnical engineering, environmental (including asbestos,
lead, and tank testing), special inspection and construction materials testing, laboratory testing (aggregates,
geotechnical, thermal resistivity, and concrete petrography), and non-destructive testing and engineering.

ATL is a Woman-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) in New York, Massachusetts, and New Jersey. ATL has
11 offices and approximately 260 employees throughout New York State. Our laboratories are accredited, and
our staff hold many and varied professional licenses. We maintain an active and successful safety program that
includes employee training, daily hazard recognition, job safety analysis, and extensive reporting.

OFFICES

QUEBEC -

r«—-«—-'?"”"‘"""‘_,f _
e pm.gurgh /{ e
/'@ Ca !
ONTARIO /@ Comen ¢
‘;).Watertown { vT /
» ‘} } NH _
- '\: Syracuse NY ¢ j P )
S-. Rochester ® Utica ® ;.._M.‘._.._..-._/ -
_-Buffalo  Binghamton Alban‘y MA {
A4 Emira® ® et [T S
| ~Ey el et s
3 ;oughke’epsie s
N A
OH 4 N ::,vf-:fg/"
PA g
L__\ }
s 4
] | B » fz o ’;1
\7)[‘
ol -4 -
; .. A " = - 1‘
l j .. ';* ) I' - \ e
F ',s- N |
= . -

L[]




OVERVIEW OF SERVICES

ATL is a full-service engineering support firm. Our
combination of staff, quality, capabilities, and multiple
locations make it possible for us to successfully
execute any size project.

Subsurface Investigation

« Sampling of Soil and Rock

« Standard Penetration Testing (SPT)

+ Cone Penetration Testing (CPT)

- Groundwater Monitor Well Construction

+  Geotechnical Instrumentation Installation and

Monitoring
«  Environmental Soil/Groundwater Investigations

Water-Based Investigation

- Subsurface Investigation
. Sediment Sampling (Vibracore, Surface, Gravity

Core)

Geotechnical

» Foundation Desigh Recommendations

« Pavement Design Recommendations

e Slab-on-Grade Design Recommendations
» Dynamic Pile Testing (DPT)

» Thermal and Electrical Resistivity

»  Seismic Surveys and Site Classification

+ Slope Stability Analysis

«  Groundwater Studies

- Forensic Geotechnical Investigations

Environmental

« Asbestos, Lead, and Hazardous Materials
Surveys, Design, and Project Monitoring

» Asbestos Incidental Disturbance Assessments

« Sample Collection for Laboratory Analysis

« Mold and Indoor Air Quality Investigations

- Environmental Site Assessments (Phase 1 and 2)

«  Community Air Monitoring Programs (CAMP)
Implementation

«  Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)
Inspections

- Above Ground (AST) and Underground (UST)
Storage Tank Testing and Management

Special Inspection

- Soil, Concrete, Masonry, Wood, and Steel

« Driven, Cast-in-Place, and Helical Pile Deep
Foundations

« Cold-Formed Metal Framing

+  Wind and Seismic Resistance

+ Fireproofing and Firestopping

»  Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS)

Construction Materials Testing

-  Soil, Concrete, Masonry, Fireproofing, Steel, and
Pavement Field Testing

» Concrete and Asphalt Plant Inspection

« Concrete Mix Design and Mix Verifications

«  Precast, Prestressed, and Steel Fabrication
Inspection

+  Welding Procedure and Performance
Qualification

»  Floor Flatness

« Moisture Vapor Emissions and Relative Humidity
of Concrete Floors

+ Pavement Surface Smoothness

+ Coating Inspection and Testing

« Forensic Investigations

« Fenestration Testing (Windows, Curtain Walls,
Skylights, etc.)

Laboratory Testing

« Geotechnical Testing of Soil and Rock

»  Aggregate Testing

+ Construction Materials Testing

+ Petrographic Analysis of Concrete and Aggregate

+  Thermal Conductivity Testing of Soil and
Concrete

Non-Destructive Examination and Testing

« Concrete Investigative Services: Ultrasonic Pulse
Velocity, Impact Echo, Windsor Probe, Rebound
Hammer, Chain Drag, Concrete Maturity, and Half
Cell Corrosion

« Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR)

» Ultrasonic Testing (UT), Magnetic Particle Testing
(MT), and Dye Penetrant Testing (PT)

»  Vibration Monitoring

+ Building Condition Surveys



al

WBE certified company

OFFICE
Buffalo, NY

EXPERIENCE
30 Years

EDUCATION

BS, Civil Engineering Tech.
Rochester Institute of Technology
Rochester, NY

AAS, Const. Engineering Tech.
SUNY Alfred
Alfred, NY

LICENSE

Professional Engineer
New York #079104

Professional Engineer
Pennsylvania #053503

THOMAS R. SEIDER, PE

Senior Engineer

Thomas is a Senior Engineer at Atlantic Testing Laboratories, Limited (ATL)
and has experience in geotechnical and civil engineering projects.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Planning and supervision of subsurface explorations and providing
geotechnical design and construction recommendations for buildings,
bridges, tanks, underground utilities, transmission line towers, and
other structures.

Civil works construction monitoring, field quality assurance testing and
geotechnical laboratory testing.

Remedial investigations, construction oversight and management,
landfill design, and slope stability projects.

PROJECT EXPERIENCE

*

Heritage Discovery Center

Buffalo, NY

Pioneer Camp & Retreat Center Beach Access Ramp

Evans, NY

Amherst State Park Timber Boardwalk & Bridge

Amherst, NY

Stoney Brook State Park Water Storage Tanks

Dansville, NY

Science Building Addition & Renovation, SUNY Buffalo State University
Buffalo, NY

4t Street Parking Garage, Health Now Headquarters

Buffalo, NY

Empire State Transmission Line Pole Structures, NEXTRA
Royalton, NY

Bridge Replacement over Pine Creek, Kheops AES

Orange, NY

Bridge Replacement over Elton Creek, Popli Design
Farmersville, NY

Feed More WNY Facility, Trautman Associates

Hamburg, NY

Prospect Street Slope Stability Evaluation, Town of Perrysburg
Perrysburg, NY

Goodrich Road Improvements, CPL

Clarence, NY

John R. Qishei Children’s Hospital, Kaleida Health

Buffalo, NY

Replacement of 2 Box Culverts, Foit-Albert

Lancaster, NY

Women & Children’s Hosp. Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus, Kaleida
Buffalo, NY

Connecticut Street Academic Building, D"Youville College
Buffalo, NY

Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus Gates Vascular Institute, Kaleida

Buffalo, NY



s

LaBella

Powered by partnership.

WWW.LABELLAPC.COM

(877) 626-6606 @ ®




Exhibit B

Terms and Conditions



Terms and Conditions

LaBella’s Responsibilities: LaBella shall designate a representative authorized to act on its behalf
with respect to the Project. All notices required under this Agreement shall be given to that

representative.

LaBella shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily
provided by members of the same profession practicing in the same or similar locality under the
same or similar circumstances. LaBella shall perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent
with such professional skill and care, and the orderly progress of the Project.

LaBella shall not at any time supervise, direct, control or have authority over any contractor or
subcontractor’s work, nor shall LaBella have authority over, or be responsible for, the means,
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any contractor
or subcontractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for safety or security at
the Project location, nor for any failure of a contractor or subcontractor to comply with laws and
regulations applicable to the performance of their work and the furnishing of materials on the
Project. LaBella shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor or

subcontractor.

Client’s Responsibilities: Client shall designate a representative authorized to act on its behalf
with respect to the Project. All notices required under this Agreement shall be given to that

representative.

Client shall provide LaBella with all available information regarding, and site access to, the Project
necessary for LaBella to perform its professional services, including Client’s requirements for the
Project. Client also shall provide information regarding the Project site and any existing facilities,
including destructive testing and investigation of concealed conditions and hazardous substances
or injurious conditions. If Client does not perform destructive testing or investigation, nor provide
information beyond that which is apparent by non-intrusive observations, or in the event
documentation or information furnished by Client is inaccurate or incomplete, then any resulting
damages, losses and expenses, including the cost of LaBella’s changes in service or additional

services, shall be borne by Client.

Client shall examine documents submitted by LaBella and render decisions pertaining thereto
promptly to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of LaBella’s services.

Additional Services: LaBella may provide additional services after execution of this Agreement
without invalidating the Agreement. LaBella shall not proceed to provide any additional services,
unless and until LaBella receives written direction from Client. Client shall compensate LaBella
for additional services as set forth in LaBella’s proposal, or any supplemental proposal or contract
modification, or as agreed upon in writing signed by both parties.

Assignment: Neither party may assign any benefit or obligation under this Agreement without
the prior written consent of the other party, except LaBella may use the services of persons and
entities not in LaBella’s employ when appropriate and customary to do so.



Confidentiality: During the Project, confidential and/or proprietary information of the Client
might be furnished to LaBella. LaBella shall use such information for the purpose of providing its
professional services on the Project, and for no other purpose. LaBella shall hold such information
in strict confidence and shall not disclose such information to any person or entity, except sub-
consultants engaged on the Project or as required by law. Upon completion of its services, LaBella
shall return or destroy all confidential and/or proprietary information to the Client.

Instruments of Service: All documents prepared or furnished by LaBella pursuant to this
Agreement are instruments of professional service, and LaBella shall retain its ownership and
property interest therein, including all copyrights and the right to reuse the documents. Upon
payment in full for services rendered, LaBella grants Client a license to use the instruments of
service for the purposes of constructing, occupying and maintaining the Project. Reuse or
modification of any documents by Client without LaBella’s written permission shall be at Client’s
sole risk, and Client agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold LaBella harmless from all claims,
damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of such reuse by Client or by others

acting through Client.

Client and Client’s contractors and other consultants may rely only upon printed copies (also
known as hard copies) of documents that are signed and sealed by a licensed professional
employed by LaBella. If there is any discrepancy between printed copies and any electronic copies,
the most recent version of the printed and certified copies shall govern. Any electronic copies
(files) provided by LaBella will be provided solely as a convenience and shall not be considered
“Contract Documents,” “Construction Documents” or any type of certified document. All
documents considered “Contract Documents,” “Construction Documents” or any type of certified
document shall consist only of printed copies having an original signature and seal of a licensed
professional employed by LaBella. Client is advised that electronic copies of documents can
deteriorate or be inadvertently modified without LaBella’s consent or may otherwise be corrupted
or defective. Accordingly, Client and Client’s contractors or other consultants may not rely upon

the accuracy of any electronic copies of documents.

Escalation: In the event the term of this Agreement is extended beyond the period of service set
forth in LaBella’s proposal, then compensation for professional services is subject to review and
escalation by LaBella upon thirty (30) days written notice to Client.

Suspension: Client may suspend this Agreement in whole or in part at any time for convenience
upon seven (7) days written notice. Upon receipt of notice, LaBella shall immediately discontinue
all services. LaBella shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered up to the date of
suspension. If the suspension exceeds three (3) months, an equitable adjustment in compensation
shall be negotiated to compensate LaBella for all reasonable costs incurred by LaBella on account

of the suspension of the Project.

LaBella may suspend its performance under this Agreement if any delinquent amounts due for
services and expenses have not been paid. LaBella may refuse to release drawings, plans,
specifications, reports, maps, materials and any other instruments of service prepared by LaBella



for Client until all arrearages are paid in full. LaBella shall not be liable to Client for delay or any
other damages due to any such suspension of services.

Termination: Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon seven (7) days written
notice with an opportunity to cure any default during that period. In any event, without regard to
the party terminating the Agreement, Client shall remit payment of all amounts that are not in
dispute no later than thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice.

Disputes: The parties agree that mediation before a mutually agreeable neutral third party shall
be a condition precedent to any legal action arising out of this Agreement, unless waived in writing
by the parties. The cost of the mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. The mediation shall
be conducted in accordance with the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American
Arbitration Association, unless the parties agree otherwise. No demand for mediation shall be
made after the date that the applicable statute of limitations would bar a legal or equitable action

based on the claim or dispute.

Venue and Jurisdiction: Any legal suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
agreement shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state and county
where the project is located. The parties hereby waive any objection which they may have now or
hereafter to the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding, and hereby irrevocably consent to the
personal jurisdiction of any such court in any such suit, action or proceeding.

Choice of Law: This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the state where the project is located without giving effect or reference to any conflict

of laws provisions.

Consequential Damages: In any suit, action or proceeding, the parties shall be entitled to recover
compensatory damages incurred as a result of the breach of this Agreement, but, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, neither party shall be liable to the other for any special, incidental,

indirect, or consequential damages.

Late Fees, Costs and Attorneys’ Fees: An additional charge of 1.5% of an invoice will be
imposed each month on all past due accounts. Imposition of such charges does not constitute an

extension of the payment due date. If LaBella must bring suit to collect payment of any invoices,
then Client agrees to pay LaBella’s costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

Remedies Cumulative: The rights and remedies available to a party under this Agreement are
cumulative and in addition to, not exclusive of, or in substitution for, any other rights or remedies
either party may have at law, or in equity, or under this Agreement. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be deemed to preclude either party from seeking injunctive relief, if necessary, to
prevent the other party from willfully or intentionally breaching its obligations under this
Agreement or to compel the other party to perform its obligations hereunder.

Non-Waiver: Failure by either party at any time to require performance by the other party or to
claim a breach of any provision of this Agreement will not be construed as a waiver of any right



accruing under this Agreement, nor affect any subsequent breach, nor affect the effectiveness of
this Agreement or any part hereof, nor prejudice either party as regards any subsequent action.

Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall be liable to the other for delays in
performing the obligations called for by this Agreement, or the direct and indirect costs resulting
from such delays, that are caused by labor strikes, riots, war, acts of government authorities other
than the Client (if a governmental authority), extraordinary weather conditions, epidemics,
pandemics or other natural catastrophe, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or

contemplation of either party.

Severability: The provisions of this Agreement are hereby agreed and declared to be severable.
Any term or provision of this Agreement which is held to be unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction shall be deemed to have been stricken from this Agreement, and the remaining terms
and provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced without such terms or provisions.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each one of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Scope of Agreement: This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between
the parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or
oral, except that terms specific to future projects shall be set forth in LaBella’s proposals. This
Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both parties.



